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l WEDNESDAYo AUGUST 17 1966.o MORNING SESSION- 10:30 A.M. 
., 

2 

j 

THE CLERKg Civil Action 44309 and 44786, Robert 

charles Jordana Jr. vs. C. Jo Fitzharris, et a1, for fur-

4 ther evidentiary hearing. 

5 MR. COHLERg Ready for the plaintiff and petitioner, 

6 Your Hono-E. 

7 MR. GRANUCCI: Ready a. Your Honor. 

8 May it please the Court, at this time the defendants 

g are ready to proceed to call Officer Caldwell, please. 

10 THE CLERK~ Officer Caldwell. 

11 TERRY H. CALDWELL, 

~ called as a witness on behalf of the defendants, being 

~ duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows~ 

14 THE CLERK~ Will you state your full name and occupa-

W tion to the Court. 

16 THE WITNESS~ Terry H. Caldwell, Correctional Officer, 

~ Correctional Training·Facility. 

~ DIRECT EXAMINATION 

19 BY MR. OAKES~· 

20 Officer Cladwell, you stated that· you' are currentl 
~ 

~ employed as a·~o~rectional officer at Soledad State Prison. 

a Is that correct? 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

Yes. 

How l~ng have you been so employed? 

Three years. 
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r 1 
Q. Where have you been employed or assigned? 

2 A. Uenerally completely throughout the institution, 

3 in all facets of officers' work. 

4 Q .• During the course of your employment, ·have you ever· 

5 beeri assigned as an officer to the first floor of O-wing? 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

ll 

12 

13 f 66 0 

14 

15 

16 

A. -:I have. 

Q. How long were you assigned to this wing? 

A. Approximately nine months. 

Q. During what watch was that? 

A. The first watch. 

~ What nine months period was that, please? 

A. Between approximately June of '65 until March of 

Q. What days of the week did you work? 

A. Tuesday through Surtday. 

Q. During this period that you were assigned as an 

11 officer to O-wing on· the first watch--: Withdraw that, 

18 please'. 

19 What hours of the day cc~nisist of<; the firs-t watch? 

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

Between l2:00 mid~ight and 8:00 a.~. 
.{f'I-

During the period wh~:I). you were an officer in O-

~ wing during the first watch 6 how.~any officers·were on dtit 

23 in O-wing? 

24 A. Myself on the,first floor, and another of~icer on 

~ the second f16o~a 
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Q. Did the other offi.cer also have control of the 

third floor? 

Yes. 

Q. Was there a sergeant on duty at that t~me? 

A. No. 

Q. Would you describe briefly your duties during this 

watch. 

A. We make count approximately every two hours, we 
~·-~ 

filled in isolation logso made oallin§s on the half hour. 

MR. COHLERg Excuse me. I didn•t hear the witness. 

ll YOU did what? 

12 THE WITNESSg We made telephone calls to the control 

13 room every half hour. 

u --control and custody of the inmates. 

15 MR. OAKESg ~ would yo~ describe your duties during 

w this period as primarily ctistodial in nature? 

17 A. Yes. 
.. 

18 Q. ' You we.re there primarily to keep control and were 

~ there in case something would.happeri? 
~~ 

20 Yes. 

21 Q. Did you ever go back int9 the cell area other than 

22 to make a count? 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes sir. 

For what purpqses? 
/ 

Security checks, any typ~ of a problem with an 
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'l inmate that;_-

2 

5 

THE-COURT: ·could you speak just a little louder. 

THE WITNESSg I say, any time we had a problem with an 

4 inmate o I would have to go back. 

6 ·THE COURTg You will have to speak a little louder and 

6 a little- slower. The stenographic reporter has to get all 

7 this. 

8 ,; MR. OAKES~ Q. How ~any times on an average would you 

9 be back in the cell areas u other than the times you were 

10 making a count? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

I would say three~ four times. 

A night? 

Yes sir. 

That includes the so-called quiet cell area? 

Yes sir. 

How·long did. it take you to make a count? 

Of the entiie wing1 Or of the one section? 

18 Q.} Of the one section. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Twoo threa minutes. 

What are you ~equired to see when you ~ake a count? 
~ 

Human ..flesh. 

Do you attempt to be thororigh ~n making this :count? 

As thorough as possible in the len~th~~f time. 
I 

You also attempted to be fairly rapid? 
":l \ 

Yes. 



1 
Q. 

z A. 
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Why is this, please? 

607 

We~lu the longer you are back there, the more noise 

5 you are going to make. And this is an essential thing on 

4 the first watcho is to be as quiet as possible. so the 

5 less time you are back thereu naturally the less noise you 

6 are· going to make. 

7 Q. Did you have a specific time that you were required 

8 to provide water or flush the commodes? 

g 

lO 

11 

12 

13 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

No. 

Did you normally flush the commodes? 

Why not? 

Because of the disturbance. 

14 Q. Would you provide an inmate water during this shif 

15 if he requested it? 

16 A. Yeso 

17 Q. How much? 

18 A. As much as he would take. .· 

19 Q. Did you ever limit him to one.cup? 

20. A.· No o 

21 Q. If a man ha~ more than one cup in his cell, would 

22 you fil.l up all his· eups? 

23 

24 

25 

Det.,ini tely 0:, 

Q. On the average, do you recall whether most men do 
( ' ' ~' 

have one cup only? Or more than one cup? 
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' l A. Usually two or three., 

z Q. Would you-generally leave a cup? 

3 Ao Yes" 

4 Q. During the period that you worked in the Adjustment 

5 cente-r or 0-wingu would you say that the flaps in the quiet 

6 cells were more often closed? Or more often open? 

7 MR. COHLERg Excuse me., Would you state the period of 

8 timeo counsel? Are you covering the whole period? 

·g MR. OAKESg I said during the period he worked in the 

w Adjustment Center. The whole period. 

11 MRo COHLER~ The whole period. Thank you~ 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

MR. OAKES: Q. You may answer. 

A. Generally they were closedo 

Q. This is true at the time in July of last year? 

A. Yes sire 

Q. Were they sometimes open? 

Yes. 

Q. Were they al~ays closed? -· 

A. 

Q. If .a man requested his flaps to be open, would'you 

21 open them?~ 

22 Using my own judgment, if the man had been causing 

a disturbance noe I would not open them., But if he re-
O 

rnained quiet for a le~gth of time ~ould ope~ th.em. 

Q. If a man asked his flap• to be closed, would you 

23 

24 

25 
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close them? ' 

Definitely a 

Q. Did that often happen? 
) 

Q. Were the doors open during· that period, or were 

they more often closed? 

A. More often closedo 

Q. When.the flaps were closed, could you still hear a 

person held in a quiet cell if he calied out to gain your 

attention? 

A. Yes o 

Q. Hav"~ you ever experienced difficulty in hearing a 121 
13// man? 

'II 

14 A. No siro Excuse me~ Other than unless there was a 

w disturbance g6ing on some place else in the wing. 

16 Q. When you were making the count and chec~~ng the 

~ cells during the count, did you check the quiet cells more 

W carefully than the regular isolation cells? 

19 Yes o 

20 Q. Why? 

21 Well, because of the type of. inmates that we have 

~ back thereo We are al~ays anticipating something to be 

~- wrong, destroying what facilities he has or attempting to 

M mutilate himself or destruct himself. 

25 Q. In making this check~ would you·be·apt to d.<!tect 
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unus.al state of uncleanliness~ an 

A. I think S0 0 yeso 

61:0 

Officer Caldwell~ would you consi.der a cell which 
) 

Q. 

"' 
had excrement on the floor and on the walls to be unusually 4 

5 unclean? 

6 Yes o I would 0 • 

7 Q .• Is the existence of such a condition quite unusual? 

8 

9 Q. What is the prevalent odor present in O-wing? 

~ MRo COBLER: Counsel, you are asking the whole wing? 

.1 MR. OAKES g Yes o 

j MRo COHLER~ I just want to be clear. 

3 THE WITNESS~ Wherever you have a large number of peopl 

4 living togethera you are going to have human odors, body 

5 odors o I rem~mber when I was in_the service, the dormi-

6 tories that we lived in had an odor that I was not familiar 

7 with. But it is about the same odor that you would get ig 
<!. ,. 

8 a school gymo something like that. 

9 MRo OAKES~ Q. Or perhaps an Army barracks? 

0 A. 

1 Q. 

2 wing? 

3 

4 

5 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

This same odor is perhaps prevalent throughopt any 

'hroughout the entire institution. 

Is the same odor prevalent in the quiet d'~li area? 

Yes. 
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. 

Q. Perhaps a little stronger? Or about. the same? 

Wello because of the fact that· these peopl• are not 
1 

2 

3· 

4 

5 

allo~ed to take a shower every day and clean themselves as 
) 

6 

7 

you or I wouldo ~~is a little str6nger. yes. 
' / 

Q. Do you recognize the plaintiff, Mr. Jordan? 

Yes. 

Q. Do you recall that Mr. Joidan was housed in a quiet 

8 c;ell during the month of July of last year? 

9 Yeso I·doo 
. ) 

ro ~- Do you recall seeing excrement on the floor and on 

U the walls of Mr. Jordan's cell? 

12 NOo I don't., 

13 Q. Do you recall smelling such a condition? 

14 

15 Q. If you had smelled such a condition, do you think 

16 you would recall it now? 

17 Definitely. 

18 Q. Do you recall seeing or smelling vomit in Mr. 

~ Jordan's cell? 

20 A. No, I don 1 to 

21 Q. If you had smelled such a condition, do you think 

22 you would remember it now? 

23 A. I think SOo yesc 
-

24 CROSS -EXAMINATION 

25 BY MRo COHLER ~ 
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~ Officer Caldwello how old are you? 

Ao Twenty-fouro 

Q;. Would you state again, please, how long you hav€ 
) 

worked on the first. floor of O-win_g as a correcti~onal 

officero 

Ao How long I did· work there? 

Q. You are not working there now? 

Ao 

Q,. How long did you work there? 

Ao Approximately nine monthsa 

Q. From what time to what time? 

Ao Between approximately June of 1965 until March of 

9 66o 

Q. You said you never experienced difficulty in hear-

W ing an inmate ~ake a request from a quiet cell. Is that 

16 correct? 

17 A. I said unless there was noise elsewhere, I could 

18 hear him 0 

19 Q. How does one tell whether or not he has heard some 

20 thing~if he ,hasn g t heard it? How does he know·he hasn't 

heard it? 
f 
,. 

21 

22 Ao Wellv you don 1 t knOWo You just assume that if the 

~ is noise and the man is back there and he is holleririg you 

24 are not a>ing to hear him o You don't know whether he is 

~ hollering or noto 

e 
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' 

l 
Q. How do you make the judgment that the man is-not 

2 hollering any more in order to open up the f.laps? 

Well, to my best recoll~ction, the pepple in the 

4 str1p cells were naturally the most apt to be noisy. This 

5 1 s the reason they are back there.· It was generally the 

6~ rule that these were the onl~ people m~king the noise. 

7 However, if we continue to let hi~ make the noiseg the 

8 res t o f the s e c t ion became us u a 11 y in v o 1 v e d " But generally 

9 1 speaking, these were the only people that were in that 
I 

10/
1 

sectio·n making the noise. 

11/1 Q. Was there generally noise from that section? 
!f 

12 I wouldn 9 t say generally. Quite a bit of the time, 

13 there was. 

14 Q. You say there was noise more of the time? Or not 

15 noise more of ·the time? 

16 Not mare of the time, no. 

17 Q. Then why were the flaps closed more of the time? 

18 A. Because of the fact that there was always the 

~ possibility of the noise starting. In other words, if the 

~ flaps remained open, if a man started causing ~ disturbanc , 

~ which has happened several times, •it takes some time to get 

22 back there, and as has been the case several times, b_~fore 
i 

23 the officer could get back there he had agitated ·o.th~ i~:--. 

M mates into going along with him and causing a general dis-

25 turbance. 
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' 
l 

Q . . Then in order to prevent the recurrence of the dis-

2 tur~ance, you leave the flaps closed, is that right? 

A" Yes. 

4 Q. You said you sometimes exercise your discretion an 

5 you open the flapso 

6 Ao That is righto 

7 Q .• Why do you do that if there is cause for recur rene 

8 of the disturbance? 

g Ao Well, lf a person has shown himself capable of 

10 being quiet, I will open the flaps .s 

ll Q. How long does he have to be quiet in order to sati 

12 1 you in your duties? 

For a day, two days, three days. 

14 Q. It could be as long as three days? 

15 A. It could be, yes. 

16 Q. You mention that inmates in quiet cells sometimes 

~ destroy the facilities there. What facilities do they 

18 destroy? 

19 Their clothing, their bedding~ 

20 Q. You stated that your primary purpose iri making a 

21 check w~s to see 11 human flesh," is that· correct? 

22 

23 Q. 

This is.true, 

In other words~ the purpose is to tel~ whether or 

~ not the inmate is still there? 

25 Right. This i• the purpose of the·.counto 

fy 
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l 
Q. How about a security check, is that the sam~_thing? 

2 
Ao 

: j 
Q. What is the purpose of the security check, if it 

I 

41 
d1. ffers? 

Ao 5 A security check is to make sure that the wing is 

secured, that all locks a~e locked. all doors are closed, 
6 I 

7 / also to check for any unusual occurrences, such as a 

8 possible attempted suicide or self mutilation, possible 

9 escape" 

w ~- A security check, as the name implies to me, is to 

ll maintain security, to make sure the man is still there and 

~ 1s not hurting himself or cutting his bars or something of 

13 that nat u r e . 

14 That is true~ 

15 Q. About bow long does it take to make a security 

16 check? 

17 Well, let me start at the beginning. How many cells d 

lli you check in making a security check? 

19 A. There are 24 cells on each side in each section. 

ro Like I say, we go back there maybe three, four·times a 

n night, other than the c~unts to make these checks~ So it 

22 could;tvary. There is no set time. 

23 Q; Do you check all 48 cells yourself? 

A. Yes, I do o 24 

25 Q. Do you check each cell on each security cbeck? 
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i No a ! don 1: t. 

2 
Q. Do you have a -p~anned method of rotating th~ cells 

' 

3 you check? 

4 

5 

A. This is something that we have been inatfucted not 

to dou is to form a pattern. 

6 ~ Do you have a _means for keeping track for yourself 

7 which cells you have-......checked and which you have.n t t 

No, I don 1 to 8 

9 Q. You try to keep track in your memory, "Last· time I 

w saw this one and that one, and I will see this one this 

ll or maybe you double up sometimes? 

12 A, Possibly. 

13 Q. It is a possibility you wouldn't see every cell 

14 in the course of the night, is that correct? 

15 A. No, it· isnVt. 
-

16 Q. What do you do to keep yourself from missing a eel 

~ out of 48? Do you keep track of them all in your memory? 

18 A, I have worked in wings where I kept track of 131 

19 cells. 

~ ~ \You donlt write this down or anything?· 

A. No, I donvt. 
'., 

T v. 

21 

22 Q. About how long does it take to make an avera~e 

~ security check? ,· 

24 Well, I will put it this way: I mentioned before 

~ that you had to make a call in-every half hourQ So the 
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longest I would be back there would be a half an hour" 

Q. You have other duties as well, ~on•t you? 

4 Q. can you estimate the average length of tfme to make 

a security check? 

A. Ten; twenty m~nutes. 

7 Q. While you are making the security check, you are 
_j • 

8 keeping track in your own memory as to which cells you have 

seen and which cells you haven•t seen, and really all you 

w are looking for is to see whether or not bars are cut or 

ll people are out of their cells or things of that nature. I 

12 that right? 

13 Basically, yes. 

14 Q. You have testified about a general odor in o-wing 

l5 as being gymnasium'-like qr barracks-likeD 

l6 Yes. 

l7 How did the odor strike you on the first floor of 

~ o-wing when you first began working there in June of 1965? 

l9 

10 

21 

A. 

Q. 

I donwt recall. 

Would you say the whole place stunk, t6 you? 

The whole institution stunk the first day I went t 

22 work there., 

How about the fir~t floor in ?-wing? 

I didn't notice anything particularly strong about .. 

the odor" ~ 
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' Q. Would you say that when the flaps are closed-on the 

strip cell or quiet cell·s and if the doors are closed that 

thiS may restrict the emanation of odor from the cell? 
'• ) 

Ao No, it would noto 

Q. It would not? 

Ao It would noto 

Q. Would you explain that, pleaseD 

Ao The cells have a ventilating sys.tem, both incoming 

and outgoing air, to my knowledge. 

Q. · I am concerned about how the odor might get out of 

that cell, whatever odor it is, so that you would observe 

it up.in front in the officers' area. If the flaps are 

closed and the door is closedu doesnvt this restrict the 

odor coming out of the cell? 

~ I would like to explain • 

Q. Please . 

Ao The ventilating system that we have in there, for . 

some reason 6 I don 9 t know why, but any strong odor such as 

gasa human defecation invariably comes through the vents i 

the officersv area. we don't have the--i~ the-officers' 

area e we_, don't have any wi~ows and the door is locked all 

the time o The only ventilation that we have is what comes~-

it seems to me, comes from the cells, because whene~er a 

person has been--they have used teai gas back there or 
" " 

there has been defecation in th~ tiers 6 we~gat ito 
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-~ Nowo tear gas has a way of spread~ng in mani.direc~ 

tions, does it not? 

M.Ro OAKES g Pardon me. What kind of tear gas? 
) 

"" MRo COHLER: It is my understanding .the institution uses 

5 only one type 0 

MRo OAKES~ There. are ·three types. 

7 MR. COHLER~ There are three types of containers. But 

8 CN was the only type Mr. Donnelly testified to 6 

9 MR. GRANUCCI: There was also testimony about Mace, 

w which ·is a new type of tear gas. 

11 

12 

13 

MRo COHLER~ Yes. r·am wrong. 

Q. Excluding Mace, which is a new type of tear gas--

A. We have one type. But this comes in two different -

u one is a powder and one is a liquid, as Mr. Donnelly al-

~ ready stated--one is a vapor, rather. 

~ The powder, to my best recollection, does not spread 

17 itself ~ much. It is the vapor that--

18 Q. Let's limit our attention to the vapor tear gaso 

~ When vapor tear gas is used, for whatever reason, isn't 

20 . the presence of that vapor tear gas noticeable· from many 

n directions and in a fairly large area? 

22 Yes, I would say so. 

23 On the tirst floor of O-wi~g, the west corridor, 

' 24 there are no solid doors from the quiet cell area up to 

~ the officers¥ area 0 are there? 
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Q .• And if you noticed tear gas in the officers' area, 

3 . might you not notice that as we~l coming thtough the corri-
~· 

4 dor as it may be po~sibly coming t~rough,the ventilation 

5 system? 

A. I seem to notice it more in the officers v area and 

7 1 n the area that it was used rather than in the corridor~ 

8 whether this is something unusual to me, I donUt know. 

9 Q. The question is how it might get there. It may 

W come down the corridor and be trapped in the officers 9 area, 

ll might it not, since you say you have no doors and windows 

12 l.fl the officers 1 area? 

13 A. This is true. 

14 Q. And there are no closings on the windows in the 

~ corridor, they ·are open, holes, six above each window spac ? 

16 To my best recolle6tion, yes. 

17 Q. So you really don't know whether or not the odor 

l8 of tear gas came through any ventilation system or came 
'. 

U down the corridor and hung in the officers' area, do you? 

20 A. I do know that quite a large amount carne through 

21 the ventilation system • 

22 

23. 

Q. 

A. 

. ·, 

How do you know that, sir? 

Well, in the summer months it gets pretty warm in 

24 there because of the fact we have no windows o And this o.ri .· 
' . .. ._ : .. _,._.::-:- :- -

.. 
~ ventilating--this one vent that we have~~n:the center-at 
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the officers 1 area, 
- ' . ? ' . - . -

when we were--work:e.d ·up a- sweat o-r. 

z something, we would stand under this·and cool off. 

5 . would drape a towel over it so i)t ~o~l.d ·-force . the air down·-
; 

ward, and I would try to remain in: there. for ···awhi.,ie. 
I, I •.' 

5 1 always noticed whenever. the're was· 'te~r' _gas'. used back 

6 therea that ·odor carne from thri v~nts~. 

7 Q. When you said "back there,~· yo* me~n ~o•ewhe~e in 

8 the first floor of o-wing? 

9 Yes. 
. . 

10 Q. Officer Caldwell, July was the sec~qd month of nin 

11 that you had worked on the first floor of 'o-wing, is that 

12 correct? 

13 Yes. 

14 Q. Is your recollection of your experience in O-wing 

w more fresh with regard to those times n~arer the present 

M time? Or do you have a better recollection of t~e further 

17 back times? 

18 

19 

20 

2l 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I couldn't honestly say for sure. 

All sort of jumbled together, your wh~~enc ? 

Yes. 

You can't separate out July 1965 ~n your recollec-

22 tion, can you? 

2Z A. There was nothing outstanding about the month, no~ 

~ ~ Can you separate out July 1965 in your recollec-

~ tion, Officer? 
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No, I cannot. 

2 
Q. Other than the fact that you· may have review.ed 

certain reco?d-s ·to determine that plaintiff Jordan was in 

4 a quiet ce~l in July 1965, db yo~ have any recoll,ction of 

5 his being there?· 

6 A. Inma~e Jordan ~as ~n the quiet cells quite often. 
. . . . . . . . ' 

7 1 remem~er a time in. January. .'I remember a time in July c 

\ 

8 Q. .·Jan.uary 1~66? 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. Do you· ~ctually specifically remember Mr. Jordan's 

ll presence i~ the qui~t cell? Or haven 9 t you refreshed your 
i . 

~ recollectioh with ce~tain r~cords? 

13 A. I would say a little bit of both. 

14 Q. Who :else was- in the quiet cell when Mr. Jordan was 

15 in there in July 1965? 

16 A. 

17 Q. 

During· th~ time that Mr. Jordan was in tpat cell? 

Right .. ·· Cari .y0u. tell us the names of the other in-
\ ' . 

~ mates that were in t~e quiet cells during that time? 

l9 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Several pth~rs mdved in and obt. 

Do yoti recall :their names? 

Well·,·. Efiparza •. 
' ' ' ' 

In July·l96'5? 
•· >, ' • ,., 

"" 

I , 

I believe 'so, yes, to my best -:·recollection. 
' ~ .. 

Go· ah,e:aq. . What ,w¢r~ their n:a~es? 

:Wells a~,d E_s,parza. 
. .l;._ •. 
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l Q. Can you recall any othe:r::s? 

2 A. Not offhand, no. 

5. MR. COHLER: Mr. Grace, may I have Plaintiff's Exhibit 
J 

4 · 13, please. Excuse me. I meant )?lainttff's Exh,.ibit 12~ 

6 Q. How certain is your recollection, Officer? 

6 A. Ohi I wouldn't say it is completely certain, no. 

7 Q. How certain is it? 

8 A. well, I will say I remember these three people 

9 being in the strip cell during the time that I worked ther 

10 and--

11 Q. At the same time? In July 1965? 

12 A. I believe so. I can't say I am absolutely positiv • 

l3 Q. Officer, I would like you to look carefully throug 

u· Plaintiff's Exhibit 12. 

~ First, let me·ask you whether or not you recognize 

~ these copies of an isolation log, two pages: .one_being 

~ official visitations, and one being movements of inmates. 

lB Do you so recognize? 

l9 

20 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, I do. 

You are accustomed to working with those documents 

n 10 the course of Y9Ur duties? ,, 

' 
22 

23 Q. 

Yes, I do.· 

Those documents are intended to reflect the names. 

~ of all inmates in this area, aren't they1 

A. This reflects the names of people .on isolatio.n. 
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~ Yes. A~d if Mr. Wells or Mr. Esparza were i~ the 

qu~et cell or strip cell at this time, their·names should 

be i-J:l, there, shouldn t t they? 

A. No, not necesse~:rily. 

Q .. All right. Would you explain that, please •. 

A. If a person was moved for creating a disturbance .. 
7 ~nd placed in a strip cell, he does not necessarily--there 

8 are times when he is not put on isolation. He may come out 

9 in two days or three days. This is not--isolation is a 

10 classification, and these people are sometimes put in the 

11 quiet cells for one or two days and -then taken out. So 

12 his name would not have to be on this. 

13 Q. would you look through there and see whether or not 

u these gentlemen were on isolation status that you have 

15 mentioned. 

16 MR. OAKES: we will stipulate their names do· not appear. 

~ THE WITNESS: From what I have gone through so farA I -

18 do not see their names. 

l9 MR. COHLER: ~ Do you recall who was on duty with you 

20 July 9th through July 20th 1965? 

21 A. Yes. There were two men that were usually on with 

~ me; Mr. Cecil, who was the regular second tier of£icer, and 

~ Mr. Hendricks who worked the relief po~itions, two days up-
1 

stairs and two days downstairs. 

Q. Do you ever have any conversations with irimates 
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while they are in ·the wuiet cells or strip cells dur-ing 

your watch? 

Many times. 
.. 

Q. Who did you have conversations with July 9th throug 

July 20th in the quiet cells or strip cells? 

A. I can't remember. 

Q. When the flaps are closed on the quiet cells or 

strip cells. are they all closed? Or some open and some 

closed? 

w A.· They are not all closed. Sometimes one cell might 

ll be left open and the other cell closed. 

12 Q. Can you recall which cells had the flaps open from 

N July 9th through July 20th, and which cells had flaps 

u closed from July 9th to July 20th? 

15 A. No. 

16 Q. Isnlt it true, Officer, that you really have no 

~ recollection of July 9th through July 20th other than you~ 

~ general impression of what was supposed to b~ done during 

U the whole peri6d you were on duty? 

A. Basically, yes. 20 

21 MR. GRANUCCI: 
J,._ 

Object to the form of the qu~stion as 

~ overly argumentative. If counsel would rephra~e it to 

23 eliminate the phrase about what was u supposed" to be done, 

~ and substitute in what he generally did, I think the ques~ 

~ tion might be more acceptable. As it is~ I th~nk:it is 
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confusing and a bit unfair. 

MRo COHLER: I would like to be able to ask both ques-

t 1 ons if I have to, Your Honor~ 

THE COURT: All right .. 

MRQ GRANUCCI: With that understanding, I will withdra 

tne objection. 

MR. COHLER: I believe the witness stated an answer. 

D1d the reporter get an answer? 

THE REPORTER: Yes. 

MR. COHLER: What was it? 

THE REPORTER: The answer: "Basically, yes. It 

MR. COHLER: Q. And the same is true, is it not, that 

you have no independent recollection of July 9th through 
~ 

July 20th; it is mel~ed in with all your experiences 

throughout the time you worked on the first floor of o-wLn ? 

lS A. There was nothing that set it out from any other 

17 times. It was a normal period. 

~ Q. would you answer the question, please. 

19 A. No. It does not stand out in my mind. 

00 MR~ COHLER: Thank you. 

21 REDIRECT EXAMI~A,T,Ip,~-

22 BY MR.. OAKES: 

23 Q. Officer Caldwell,. you ·di:d work during the period 

~ of July 9~h through July 20th 1965? 
, 

A. Yes. 



245 627 
-

l Q. Mr. Jo~dan was in the strip cell area durin.g that 

g tip-le, was he not? 

3 A. Yes, he ·was. 

4 Q,. Aside from your independent recollection, would 

5 you have recalled whethe~ or not the cells would h•ve been 

6 in an unclean condition at that time? 
I A. [ 7 I would have known, yes. 

8 Q. WouLd you recall that now? 

9 A. If there was anything outstandingly filthy about 

10 the ceils, such as human defecation, I would notice it be-

ll cause these things do stand out in my mind. There have 

12 been times when this odor has been in the wing, and yo~ 

15 just can it miss it. 

14 Q. Fine. Thank you. Now, when you check the wings, 

15 what do you do? 

16 

17 

18 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

When I--

Or che'ck the cells, pardon me. 

As I stated before, I try to--not to stand around 

19 them too long to arouse the inmates. But I shine my light 

20 around the fixtures, the plumbing devices, the ·bars of the 

21 cell, shine :it on the inmate, ~keeping it out of his face--~ 

~ much as possible, possibly take a glance on t,he bed~ It 

varies. Like I sai, theri is no set pattern, ~o yo~~-

Q. Now, in checking a quiet cell, do you have t.o open 

up either the door or the flap if they happen to be closed. 
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1 A. Genera~ly we open the door. 

z Q. Generally you open the door? 

3 A. . Yes. 
) ~' 

4 Q. You, therefore, go inside? 

5 A. .Might step inside, yes. 

6 Q. so in order to detect, perhaps a nauseous odor, you 

7 would not have to stand outside the cell? 

8 

9 Q. 

No. 

During the course of the evening, will you not 

lO detect this because you had been into the cell itself? 

. 1 A. Definitely. If it was there, you would pick it out • 

,2 Q .. You stated on direct examination that there are 

.3 two men on duty in o-wing. 

. 4 A . Right. 

.5 Q. When you go back in the cell area, what procedures 

.6 are followed? 

. 7 A . If I have to go back into the cell area, I call th-

.8 officer upstairs. He comes down. I give him my keys and 

.9 he opens the doors for me and I go back. I never go into 

0 the cell area on my own. There is always the 6fficer ther 

il Q. That means he has to leave his post? 

A. Yes sir .. 

Q. And vice versa. If he g.~es back, you m'ust leave 

14 your post? 

. '. A. Yes. 
i;- ·• 
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' 
~ .Therefore, if a disturbance were to be created 

during this shift, he would have to come downstairs, open 

the cell, let you inside--

Open the--

Q. I am sorry. Open. the grill~ gate? 

Right, 

Q. And his floor would be left unguarded? 

Right. Yes sir. 

Q. If a disturbance were to spread, you would have to 

w obviously call for more help, is that correct? 

ll 

12 

. A. 

Q. 

Definitely • 

How heavily staffed is the institution during your 

13 shift? 

14 As I remember, on the first watch we have 14 

~ officers takin~ care of 10 wings, plus four towers. plus 

~ we have an outside sergeant, a control sergeant, .and a 

~ watch lieutenant and a watch sergeant. 

18 MR~ · OAKES: I have no further questions. 

19 RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

20 · BY MR. COHLER: 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. Officer Caldwell, in making a security check or 
-

head count, do you ever 9pen the window flaps on the door 

rather than openi-ng the door? 
• -~1 .) ~ ., 

No, I do not. 

Q .• Never? 
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Ao Let me back up. 

Q. Pleaseo Be very careful. 

Ao I would never open the window flap because of the 

fact I can 1 t hardly lift it. 

Q. I don 1 t mean the big one. There is a little flap 

on the door itself, isn't there? 

Yes. 

Q. That is the one I am referring to. Do you ever 

open that to make a head count or a s~curity ~heck? 

w A.· No, because of the fact it is a little taller--! 

u am not very tall, and I can 9t see into the cell. 

12 Q,. You mentioned on some occasions there had been an 

!S odor in the wing, noticeable to you. Isn't it true that 

U on some occasions a number of inmates will throw things ou 

~ 1nto the corridors which would create a large mess, which 

16 would include a large odor? 

l7 A. During a disturbance I have never noticed a com-

~ plete difference in the change of the smell, unless, of 

l9 course, they had been burning. This has been the only tim 

lO that the odor has changed to any significance .. 

U usually what is thrown out on the ti~r, which is alway 

~ every day, thrown out on the tier--there is paper, sand-

!S wichesu orange peelings, just general debris. 

Q. There has been some testimony that on some oc-

~ casions inmates will throw human defecation otit ori·the 
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officers or out into the tier, or throwing it generally~ 

aas this ever happened in your experience? 

A. I have never.had it thrpwn at me. Howev~~~ two 

0 ccas ions- -I can it remembe.r the dates- -t.here has been 

defecation thrown on the tier itself, ~ believe to get me 

to step in it or something 1 ike this., But it has been 

7 there, and you can 9 t miss it. 

8 Q. Has there been a noticeable odor then? 

9 A. Welle this is how I found it. 

10 
Q •. was there a noticeable odor? 

11 A. Yes a definitelyQ 

12 Q. You canBt remember those dates, though? 

13 A. No, I can•t remember the dates. 

14 

15 

Excuse mem I might add that these--both times were on 
·~~-

the H Maxu side" the D side. I have never had it, while I 
~ 

M have been working there, on the west side or the,isolation 

17 side. 

~ MRo COBLER: Thank you. 

19 MR. OAKES: I have no further questions at this time, 

20 Your Honor. 

21 (Witness excused.) 

~ MR. GRANUCCI: 

23 call Raul Mata~ 

' .~, ;_~ ; -

At this time defendant wo~ld like to 

U RAUL MATA, 

~ called as a witness on behalf of defend.nt, beLng duly 

sworn, was examined and testified-as follows: 
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l THE CLERKg State your full name and occupation ~o 

2 the court o 

5 THE .. WITNESS~ My name is Raql Mata. I am a correction 1 

14 . officer o 

5 MR., COHLER~ Your Honor, if the Clerk4'will hand the 

6 court the fileu including the list of witnesses, it will 

7 appear that this gentleman 9 s name is n,et included. I unde -

8 stand there is a limited purpose for which defendants call 

Officer Mataa ~ would like it to be clear on the record 

w by motion, and if it is as limited as it should be, I will 

11 not resist: if it is not, I will res_ist strenuously. 

12 MR~ OAKES: Your Honor, the issues of this case have 

l3 gone broader than what occurred in July, the issues create 

~ originally by the plaintiff 0 s complaint, we have heard a 

l5 lot of testimony about witnesses. who were present and abou 

~ occurrences to them on occasions other than Jbly l~st yeare 

l7 I think it is fair that this man testify about his ex-

l8 periences, which go beyond the time of July 9th to July 

l9 20th 1965. 

lO MR. COHLER: Your Honor, I understand that· Officer Mat 

U may have some testimony very relevant to the so-called 
~';' -·] \..' 

~ tear gas incident previous to Thanksgiving. Testimony ha!:J 

~ been heard from inmate Esparza and in~at~ Wells regard~ng 

M that incident o I have no objections to examination 

ing that incident= 
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l However8 counsel has no opportunity and would be §ur-

2 pri~ed by any testimony by Officer Mata going beyond thato 

3 ·There was considerable pretrial difficulty involvtng fhis 

4 very question which was obviated through ·the courtesy of 

5 defendantsu counsel, and that was very shortly before 

6 trial o On that occasionv Officer Mata was not brought into 

7 the picture and no opportunity for preparation regarding 

8 officer Mat a has been available. 

9 ! am willing to forego any objection which may lie 

lO 

ll 

only insofar as it involves the tear gas 

think I should have to fac~time 
incident. I don't 

about Officer 

12 Mataus general experience ranging the whole period of time 

l3 he may have been at the institution. 

~ MRo OAKES~ Your Honor, as I said previously, there 

~ has been testimony about periods_other than the period in 

l6 question. 

~ THE COURT~ Letls proceed and see what we eventuate. 

lB DIRECT EXAMIN~TION 

l9 .BY MR o OAKES: 

Q. Officer Mata, how are you employed, sir? 

A. How am I employed? 

Q,. Yes. 

I work at the Correctional Training Facility at 

~ Soledad., 

Q. Dor how long? 
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~ .I worked there for approximately eight and a half 

yearso 

Q: What is your qurrent ass~gnment, please? 

Ao I am assigne~ to the isolation sect~on in the Ad-

justment Center, O-wing. 

Q. 

Q .. 

Q. 

During what shift is that, please? 

I work the second watch, 7:30'to 4:00. 

How long have you been assigned to this? 

For approximately ten months. 

That would be beginning approximately November of 

n 1 as t year , 1 96 5 ? 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Yes sir .. 

Q. Do you know inmates Esparza and Wells? 

Yes sir, I do. 

MR~ COHLER: Excuse me, coun~el. Just so the record 

M 1s clear, Mr. Wells is no longer an inmate. 

17 MRo OAKES: ~ Do you know a Mr. Esparza and a Mr. 

18 Wells? 

Yes sir, I do. 19 

2.0 Q. Do you recall their being in the quiet ~ells in 

21 November of last year, 1965? 

22 

23 

24 

Yes. 

Q. calling your attention to the 

giving of last year, do you recall an 

period_ aDound_· .. Thanks~ 
u~ 

incident inwhich 

125 there was a use of tear gas involving Mr .. Espa:r~a? 
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Ao Yes o 

~ Would you like to relate your version of what 

635 

3 occurred at that time? 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Yes siro It was approxima~ely November 23rd or 

24th 8 and the Adjustment Center Disciplinary Committee was 

hearing Esparzaus and wells' disciplinaries in front of 

their cellso 

At that time Esparza "expioded• and climbed on the bars 

and started rattling and shouting obscenities and attempti 

10 to create a general disturbance. It was impossible to 

u continue the hearingu and he was instructed by Mr. Johnsto 

~ and Sergeant Friedrick and myself to cease that kind of 

U behavior, and hef of course, did not comply, and the dis-

14 turbance was beginning to spread. I heard other people 

w shouting and y~lling and rattling bars in the isolation 

16 section o I heard bars rattling upstairs. 

u And Mr. Johnston and Mr. Friedrick conferred and 

18 decided to use tear gas. And, of course, the equipment 

l9 received and Mr. Fr iedrick--

ao Q. Let me interrupt for a moment. Was there first an 

81 request to remove Mr. Esparza 8,s clothing, or that he pass 

22 out his clothing? 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

Q. 

Yes., Yes. 

Please continue .. 

And he. of course 6 Esparza~ refusad to pass out hi 
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clothing and eq~ipment. Mr. Friedrick instructed Esparza 

numerous times, two or three times. The first time Esparza 

went into a fighting stance and 1 told him, 1111 Fuck you, punk. 

4 · come in and get them. 1111 

5 Mr. Friedrick again instructed him to pass out the 

6 equipment, and each time was met with a defiance and a 

7 ~hallenge. As a last resort Mr. Friedrick told him that 

8 1f he didn ° t, · tear gas would be applied •. 

Esparza told him 8 ttFuck you. It ain't no big thing. 

Go ahead. n 

9 

lO 

ll At this time, Mr. Friedrick instructed me to release 

l2 a short burst of tear gas.. I put on a gas. mask and ~tepped 

~ into the small section right outside the bars and squatted 

l4 and released one short spray. 

~ Esparza was appro~imately th~ee-quatters of the way 

l6 from t.he bars~ and he had a blanket over him. 

~ I released a short spray onto the floor. He dropped 

~ the blanket. He ran over. He grabbed me by the gas mask. 

l9 I jerked away from him, bumped my head against the wall, 

ro and then I released another short s~ray approximately knee-

!1 high. He immediately sa.:_id, ""I give upo Here is my clothe.s .. • 

!2 And he took them off and· passed them o~t o 

!3 Q. Am I correct in stating then that you did .not 

11 
~ tear gas about the upper portion--

!5 No sirQ I didnito_ 
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~ As I re6all~ was it two or three bursts? 

A, It was two bursts. 

Q. ·Did you empty the canister into that eel).;? 

A, No sir. 

Q. Was inmate Wells housed next to this man? 

Yes sir. 

Q. Did you spray any gas into Mr~ Wells' cell? 

No sire 

Q .• None at all? 

No. 

Q. Were the flaps on Mr. Esparza's cell closed or 

12 open when you left? 

They were open. 

637 

14 MRo OAKESg A~ this time I would like to go into his 

15 general duties, Your Honor, if I may. 

LS MRo COHLER~ Your Honor, I am hesitating to go into 

~ this, but I feel that I have to object strenuously. Plain-

18 tif~counsel submitted interrogatories propounded to the 

~ Superintendent of the institution. Those interrogatories 

20 have been discussed previously G 

D As Your Honor will recall fro• the testimoriy, in large 

22 part the answers were nNo information is available .. " 

23 What inferences may be drawn from that is not the sub_-

24 Ject of rriy present discussion~ There. was a diff~cul~y· ih 

25 the understanding of t:P,e. interrogatories appr~ntl.y, arid th 
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. -
answers.to them, which was brought out in discussion betwee 

Mr~ Granucci and myself on at least two occasions, the last 

of those occasions was very shortly before trial~was set. 

4 I felt that I would be sur~rised by the presence of eye 

16 

6 

7 

witnesses having once been told--and I am not implying any 

bad faith--ha~ing once been told that there was·no informa-

tion available o 

8 To obviate that.problem, the courtesy was extended to 

9 

10 

me to go with Mro Oakes to the institution to interview 

all people who were thought to have eye witness accounts. 

ll This was tape recorded and transcrib~d. 

~ not one of those persons. 

Officer Mata was 

13 A good deal of the testimony before the Court to date 

u has been more succinct than would otherwise have been with• 

~ out these informal depositions. My preparation has been ~ 

w enhanced greatly in terms of time. 
~ 

~ I do not feel it is even necessary or proper for this 

~ witness to go into his general experience when I have had 

~ no opportunity to examine the man before in any way and 

~ have relied upon the fact that he wouldn't be ~alled. I 

n just feel it is not necessary to defendants' case, and I 

22 am being unduly surprisecL I don't feel it is proper. 

MRo OAKES: Your Honor, the interrogatories raised, 

24 I recall it--and you may correct me if. I am wrong,. cou!lsel -

the officers that were on duty at the. time. This man was 
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not on duty in.July. l 

2 Frankly, we did not decide to use this man until last 

3. Tuesday' at the institution whexi we heard how the, case was 

4 goingu what witnesses counsel was ~oing to .call, and par-

5 ticularly as far as the incident and also the fact that we 

6 visited the cell, and Your Horior was in there. 

7 We have heard a great deal of testimony about changes, 

s about how the system is being conducted now .. This whole 

9 th1ng is in fact an issue, and I think the man should be 

w willing to meet such issues that have been raised at this 

ll time. 

12 THE COURT~ Well, with respect to any of the issues, 

U that is, the incident of the tear gas, any changeovers 

U that have been ma4e, I will hear testimony. But relating 

15 to his experience as wholesale over a period of years, I ·· 

W can~t see that--

l7 

18 

MR. OAKES: 

THE COURTg 

I was referring to the time--

we will go alongG If you have any objec-

~ tions, you may reserve them. 

ao MR. COBLER: Thank you, Your Honor. 

MR. OAKES g Q. You are presently an office,;x:: in the 

~ isolation side? 

Yes siro', 

~ Will you! describe your duties as the second w~~cih, 

second duty officer. 
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The sec.urity and custody of the inmat'es is my re-

sponsibility, the~r welfare, the general cleanliness of the 

section o the feeding, the changing of the clothT~g, escor.t­

ing inmates frequently thrbughout the day for various com-

mittees. That is about the generalization of my duties. 

Q. Your duties keep you fairly busy? 

A. Very busy o 

~ Regarding the period prior to the time the auto-

matic flushing devices were installed; how often during 

W this shift would you flush the co~modes in the quiet cells? 

11 A. A minimum of twice a shift. 

l2 Q. What times? 

l5 A. The morning and in the afternoon. 

l4 Q. Would you flush them oftener if request~d? 

l5 A. Yes. It was requested frequently. 

l6 Q. Were you quite regular about flushing? 

l7 A. Yes sir. 

l8 Q. As a general policy, are the flaps during your 

l9 shift left open or closed? 

lO A. They were open. 

Q. Has this been true since last November? 

A. Yes sir. 

13 Q. When might they be left close'd? 

A. When an inmate is creating a ~isturbance. 

Q. How often do you _clean the cell al;'e.a-.on the 
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and strip cell.side? 

MRo COHLER~ Counsel, I am going to ask you to be care"'" 

ful abo'ut time nowo Since Nov~mber? 

1

4 MR. OAKES: Well, the ·whole thing is limited to that. 

5 He wasn 1 t there be fore then. 

6 THE WITNESS: On Saturdays they are GI'd thoroughlyf 

7, and during the regular working week I. take a trash can and 

s a broom and it is issued to the occupied cells and the in-

9 mates in them sweep out the cells. And if there is any 

w spilled food or milk or coffee, I issue a mop. And if they 

u desire to use a mop more frequently, why, it is availabler 

~ and also a commode brush and soap, et cetera, cleaning 

lS. 

l4 

16 

16 

l7 

material. 

Q. On your general GI that you mentioned, this in­

cludes the quiet cells? 

Yes sir~ 

What procedures are involved when you clean the 

l8 quiet cell area? How do you go about this? 

J ~ We have a hose that we use. I open all of the 

~ empty cells and spray soap, and we use scrub brushes and 

n squeegees and mops and they are hosed down and ~ashed 

!2 thoroughly. 

tS The occupied cells, if the inmat-e wants to use the hos_ , 

14 it is available and he can roll ·up his equj,.pment and set 

~ it up on top of the toil~t and he can proce•d.to 
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cell with the hose and soap and all of the available equip-

mento 

If he refuses, then he is aSked if he wants to use the 

mop and the other material, commode brushes and soap. 

Q. Would you furnish a man housed in a quiet cell 

cleaning material at other periods than on Saturday if he 

requested it? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You have had occasion to place men in quiet cells? 

A. Pardon me? 

Q. You have had occasion to place men in the quiet 

12 cells, haven't you? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Have you ever placed a man in a dirty cell? 

15 A. No. 

16 Q. By the way, Officer, a week ago yesterday, I 

17 it was, when His Honor, Mr. Cohler, Mro Granucci and myself 

W visited the quiet cell area, I noticed you appeared to b• 

19 scrubbing., can you explain why you were scrubbing on that 

20 day? 

21 A. That was a Tuesday, I believ•· And the reason for 

22 that is I was not able to GI the .-quiet cell section on 

U Saturday because we_had been having difficulties. We had 

24 

25 

a disturbance and we were very busy and we were anticipat:i.n 

from Saturday up to. Tqesd~y, anticipating more .difJiculty.' 
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-However, Tuesday was kind of quiet·so I proceeded to chang 

into coveralls and proceed with the cleaning of the sectio • 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

You had not cleaned from the Saturday b~fore? 

Not from Saturday, no. 

Are you familiar with what might be called the 

ninrnate grapevine?» 

A. Pardon? 

Q. Are you familiar with what might be called the 

ninrnate grapevinen? 

A. Yes sir. 

Q. The ability of inmates to get information from one 

~ another throughout the institution, even though they are 

13 not face to face? 

14 

15 

16 

17 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

The rumors? 

Yes. 

Yes. 

Is it your opinion, based on your experience, that 

W even an inmate held on o-wing could get information to 

19 another? 

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

It is very easy. 

Would it be fair to say that you spend a good deal 

22 of time in the cell area? 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

Probably more so than officers on the other watch? 

Yeso 
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-· 
Th~s includes the quiet cells? 

Yes. 

You have a lot of cont•ct with the inmates? 
~ 

Yes, I do. 

As a general statement, how would you describe you 

a approach when dealing with an inmate? 

7 A. It is an easy, soft approach~ 

Q. Why? 8 

9 A. Because we certainly don't want to create any prob-

w lems by being harsh with them. We have people that are 

ll very excitable. 

12 MR. OAKES: That is all I have. 

U CROSS-EXAMINATION 

14 BY MR. COHLER: 

15 Q. Officer Mata, do the inmates, generally speaking~ 

~ who are in quiet cells or strip cells require p~rticular 

17 custodial care? 

18 A. What, sir? 

19 Q. Particular custodial care? 
' 

ao A. Are they allowed--! don't understand your question. 

Q. I will start over. I am sorry. 
' ... 

'• . 
ell With regard, generally speaking, to inmates who are 

~ housed in quiet or strip cells, is a particular degree of 

M care required in terms of custody and security1 

A. Yes sir .. 
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Q. These ~rethought to be, generally speaking,"the 

rno~e dangerous, hostile, volatile inmates: is that correct? 

A. -Yes. 

Q. You are more careful aboue what ·you give them in 

the way of potential weapons than you are of other inmates, 

is that correct? 

A. Yes sir. 

Q. You are careful that when you are in the cell area, 

the strip cell area, there must be high security in terms 

of opening the cell doors, aren't you? 

A. Yes sir. 

Q. In fact, there always must be two officers present? 

A. Not all the time. 

Q. Would you explain that, please. 

A. If a person has been emotionally disturbed, has ha 

w sufficient time to calm down, quiet down, and af~er estab-

~ lishing a friendly relation with him, it is up to the in­

~ dividual 1 s judgment at the time, if another officer is not 

~ available, immediately available, if it is nece~sary to 

ro bring this man out, if he ~n his judgment feels that no-­

U there will be no violence of incid~nts involved, he might 

22 bring the inmate out by ·himself. But it is not custo~ary. 

23 Q. All_right. For instance, and turning to bodily 

24 cleanliness, for one, in order for an in_mate to have_ a 

25 shower, he must be e.scorted if he is corning from a quiet 
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cell, or strip .cell, is that right? 

A. That is right. 

646 

5 ~ -when he is passing fromJa quiet cell or !trip cell 

14 to the shower area, he has no tools or equipment or 

0 portential weapons ~ith him, does he? 

6 A. No sir. 

Q. At least he is not supposed tdc I understand, and 

8 there has been testimony, ! believe, that something as 

9 simple as a toothbrush can be made into a very dangerous 

W weapon with other matter, is that correct? 

11 

12 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. 

What do you think about the potential dangerous 

13 weapon use of a broom? 

14 

15 

l6 

17 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

It can be used as a weapon. 

or a mop? 

They also can be used as weapons. 

Or parts of a bucket? All those things can be used 

lB as weapons? 

l9 

20 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

In fact, you don't e~en have to do very much to a 

21 broom or a mop to use it as a weapon, do you? 
' 

A. No. 

Q. What security precautions are taken in givi-ng .broo 

or mops to inmates in quiet or strip cells? 

A. The officer is present during the time_ they are 

·--
··' 
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using this equipment, and he is accountable for it after 

they finish. 

~ That latter portion of your statement i~ in terms 

of making sure they aren't left b~hind, is tbat right? 

A. That is right, tb make sure the inmate returns it 

6 to you. 

7 Q. Is there but one officer present while the inmate 

8 is actually-using the equipment? 

9 That is correct. 

10 Q. About how long would it take a man in a quiet cell 

u or a strip cell to use this equipment to clean out his eel ? 

12 A. It varies, depends on whether he is going to use 

~ the hose or if he is just going to sweep it out and mop it. 

M Ten, fifteen minutes, approximately. 

15 Q. During that time the officer, and yourself if you 

M were the officer, would be standing directly ou~~ide his 

17 cell? 

18 A. Yes sir. 

19 Q. You have stated that you are very busy. Is it eve 

00 possible that you don't get to every cell in all of the 

U area of your responsibility f6r cleaning ev~rr\saturday? 

22 A. No sir. It is ~ difficult--it is very difficult 

23 to do it.., . but it is done. The officer- -my pa-~-t:oner that I 

M work with holds the keys and he sits in an area where he 

~ can observe me, and ·I. take the t'ime to go ,.'Qac'~ ther·e ·and 
:. ' 
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l clean them thoroughly. 

2 ~- You do it yourself personally? 

·s ~ ·I take an in~ate porter; with me, and I p~rticipate. 

Q. You both do it? 

5 A. Yes sir. 

6 Q. Do you find any difficulty, Officer, in having an 

7 -inmate porter clean another man's cell? 

8 A. Yes sir. 

9 Q. What is that difficulty? 

A. They just don't like to do it. 

Q. But you have them do it? 

A. Yes sir. They do it reluctantly. 

lO 

ll 

l2 

.s Q. Do you feel the cleanliness of the cell is more 

~ important than the problem that may be created by asking 

~ an inmate porter to clean another man's cell? 

. 8 A . Yes. 

. 7 Q . Officer, please direct your attention to the perio 

J before Thanksgiving, the so-called tear gas incident with-. 

. 9 M i . E spar z a • I would like to see if we can straighten out; . 

~ the timing of this as closely as po~sible. 

!1 recall, please, say S?· 
.. 

If.you can't 

I 'Do you recall about·what time there began to be~ dis-

!3 turbanc;e. frq~ Mr. Esparza's cell? 

A. Approximately 3:30. 

Q. 3:30? 
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~ · A~proximately. 

~ Is that afternoon? 

A. Yes sir Q 

. . 
Q. About how long did that disturbance last before an 

5 officer went back to the cell-- Excuse me. There was a 

6 committee that day, wasn't there? 

7 A. Yes sir~ 

8 Q. I am sorry. Was the Committee examining Mr. 

9 Esparza or Mr. Wells? 

lO 

ll 

A. 

Q. 

I believe they were hearing Wells' disciplinary~ 

You said before that the Committee was hearing 

~' both Esparza and Wells on disciplinary. Was that an error? 

13 A. No sir, that was correct. 

Q. They were hearing both--14 

15 A. No, not at the same time. They were going to hear 

16 both of them at this time. 

~ ~ .Do you recall what the incidents were leading· up 

18 · to their examining both Wells and Esparza? 

19 

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes sir, I do. 

Please relate that. 

I had to--I· had observed some contraband that w~s 
. -e·. 

•r/l 

~ brought in from the window, into the :isolation section, an 

D up into the vicinity of Esparza's cell. So I proceeded to 

~ search approximately three or four cells. 

25 Esparza's cell was ~he last one. As I was searchLng 
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l hiS cell, I foup~ tobacco, which is not allowed in the 

seQtion, and I confiscated it. Esparza at this time z 

3 "exploded.n He thought it wasn't fair that I sh~uld searc 

4 · hiS cell like I did the rest of the othe·r inmates, and he 

5 went into a rage and shouted curses, obscenities, and I 

6 decided that since he was creating a disturbance that the 

7 best thing that could be don~ was to segregate him from th 

8 section, to a quiet cell. 

g As Esparza was acting out his hostility in the corrido 

w the exercise corridor, Mr. Friedrick and Officer Foncannon 

U arrived on the scene, and we had to ·order Esparza two or 

~ three times to proceed to the quiet cell. He finally did oQ 

13 While this was occurring, Wells participatedQ He also 

U became unruly and _shouted obscenities, and there was a lot 

~ of unrest in the section. Other inmates were beginning tQ 

16 shout. 

~ So after we celled Esparza, we moved Wells also. 

~ Esparza and Wells had a close relationship, and it is 

~ my opinion that whenever one got into tfOUble, the other 

20 one had to participat.e,. to back him _up or to save face-~ 

21 And on their way back to the quiet cells, Esparza-- I 
~ 

22 mean, Wells was arguing,- and he stopped two· or three times 

~ The last ti•e,he stopped abruptly, he had his hands 
,., .-

U clenched, and he stopped abruptly and he started to turn 

25 around .. He i~ a pretty big man. ae is a weight lifter. 
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so the ~fficer .behind him, thinking that Espar~a was-going 

to. start fighting, put an arm lock on him. And I grabbed 

one leg·and Mr. Friedrick grabbed the other. 

Wells started struggling viol~ntly. · We were having a 

very difficult time. It was necessary for another officer 

to enter the section and take him around the waist, and we 

carried him back to the quiet cell& 

Q. When you say "waist," are you using that somewhat 

9 figuratively? 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

l5 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir~ Around the waist, like this (indicating). 

The waist. 

Well, around his back, let's put it that way. 

Not between his legs? 

No sir. 

This was a bit of a conflagration, and you were 

~ interested on holding onto a leg, werentt you? 

l7 

lB 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. 

were you looking around to see where the other 

~ officers were--

lO A. I was tryin:9. to hold onto the leg. 

Q. You we~~n't very concerned about where the other 
~' 

~ officers were grabbing Mr. Wells? 

A. I remember seeing Mr. Friedrick holding onto the 

other one, and the other officer had an armlock while WelL 

was struggling. 
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1 Q. ·In the middle of this strugglin<,J, you were exerting 

2 as much force as you could to carry out your duty properly 

5 and hold onto that leg? 

A. I was trying to hold onto bim, let's put it that 

6 Q. You remember p~ecisely where all of the oth~r 

7 officers were holding him? 

8 A. Yes sir, I do •. 

9 Q. Let's turn back to 3:30 when Mr. Esparza began 

lO making ·a lot of noise, rattling on the bars~ climbing up 

u the bars, during the meeting. What was the next thing tha 

~ happened? · And how long afterward? 

A. The next thing that occurred, Mr. Friedrick in-

u structed him to stop and he didn't. Mr. Johnston instruct d 

w him to stop and he didn't. I instructed him, and he woul~ 

w not comply with the instructions. 

17 Q. Did you close the flaps to try and keep him qu~et, 

~ to try to keep this agitation from spreading? 

19 

20 

A. 

Q. 

I do not remember. 

You dori't remember whether the flaps w~re closed 

21 or open, is that right? 

22 

23 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. 

Go ahead, please. How long did he continue making 

~ noise and disobeying the orders to stop? 

25 For approximately-- I can•t esti~·te the ti~e. 
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l Q. A matt~r of min~tes? 

2 ~ At the time the other sections were becoming unruLy. 

5 ~ Wouldn 9 t it have been normal procedure tp close 
~' 

4 the flaps? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. That is their.purpose, to stop this type of agita-

7 ,tion? 

8 A. Yes. 

Q. But you can't remember whether or not they were 

W open or closed? 

ll 

l2 

A. 

Q. 

No sir. 

Was Mr. Esparza making all this noise and dis-

~ obeying orders to be quiet for a minute? A half hour? An 

l4 hour? A couple of hours? Three hours? Have you any re-

l5 collection? 

l6 A. No, he just kept on rattling bars and shouting. 

l7 Q. Then what happened? 

l8 A. Thereafter the--while he was instructed various 

~ times to cease, and he didn't and the. rest of the sections 

W were becoming unsettled,~ so he was instructed to pass out 

n his clothes, and he--he was instructed to pass out his 

22 clothes, and he refused • 

25 Q. At the time he was instructed to pass out his 

24 clothes and he refused, who was present, as you recal.l? 

25 A. Mr. Johnston, Mr. Friedrick, mys~if, and I B~li~ve 
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1 
,Mr. DeCarli. 

z 
Q. Was Mr. Kiepura there? 

A. I do not remember if he /Was there 0 

4 
Q. After he refused to pass aut his· clothes, what 

5 happened? 

& 
A. Mr. Friedrick ·and then Mr. Joh~ston conferred, and 

7 r believe they decided to obtain gas. 

8 

10 

11 

Q. Were you in on that conference? 

A. No sir. 

Q. Go ahead, please. 

A. So we went up to the officers 1 area and waited for 

12 the gas. 

13 Q. uwe," being all the people? 

14 A. All of the group, and of course, this disturbance 

~ was going on at the time, and after it arrived, why, we 

16 went back and Mr ~ Friedrick instructed--

17 Q. All right. I want you to back up a little b~t, 

~ please. You say you all went out into the officers' area. 

19 That is out in the front part? It opens into the east and 

20 west corridor? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

~ 

A. Yes sir. 

Q. About how long did it take before the gas arrived? 

A. I donYt remember. Ten, fifteen minutes, or more. 

Q. During that ten or fifteen minutes, was there 

general agitation throughout o-wing? 
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l A. Yes si~~ There were people rattling upstairs and 

2 th.ere we.re people rattling bars downstairs. 

Q. Was there anybody dispatched to take car,e of the 
~' 

4 rattling upstairs? 

5 A. Yes sir. I believe the officers were attempting to 

6 cope with it; 

7 ' 

8 

9 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

There were otber officers upstairs at the time? 

Yes sir. 

But the same group, Johnston, Friedrick, yourself, 

w and DeCarli, were waiting out in the officers' area: is 

ll that correct? 

12 

13 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. 

During this ten or fifteen minutes, about how loud 

u was the general bar rattling in the o-wing section itself? 

15 A. It was loud. It would stop momentarily, and it 

M would start again. 

17 

18 

Q. 

A. 

You considered it a fairly major disturbance? 

No sir. It wasn't a major disturbance, but ther$ 

H were people participating. 

20 Q. You had called for tear gas to stop something whic 

ft wasn't a major disturbance? 

22 

23 

A. 

Q. 

No sir. We called for gas to make Esparza stop. 

Was it just to make Esparza stop? Or was it to 

M stop Esparza because of the spread of this agitation? 

25 A. It was stop stop Esparza. 
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l Q. To youz:.knowledge, there was no consideration give 

2 

s 

to the fact that the agitation might spread? 

MR. ·· GRANUCC I: Objection. Your Honor. I thipk that 
~ 

4 question is argumentative.· 

5 THE COURT: Sustained. 

6 MR. COHLER: Q. Was the noise throughout O-wing about 

7 at ordinary level for bar rattling noise? Or was it soft? 

s or was it particularly loud? 

9 A. Esparza would start it. He would rattle, and then 

~ somebody else would rattle. He would stop and they would 

11 stop. 

12 Q. 
_ r··-.- 1 _ 

Could yoU estimate how many cells were rattling 

~ their bars, how many inmates in their cells were rattling 

14 their bars? 

15 A. No sir, I couldn't. 

16 Q. After approximately fifteen minutes, when the tear 

~ gas arrived, would you go very slowly and tell us what 

~ happened, please. Try to remember every detail. 

19 A. we returned to Esparzajs cell~ He was instructed 

ro to remove his clothing. He went to a fighting·stance. He 

H told Sergeant Friedrick, "Fuck you. You come in here and 

22 get them." Mr. Friedrick instructed him two or three 

E He still refused. He was defiant and challenging~ 

i24 Finally, Mr. Friedrick told hi;nLi'that if he didn t t he 
! 

~ would have to use.gas. Esparza to-ld him~ _··"well,, that· ain 8 
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no big thing," ~nd cussed him out. Mr. Eriedrio~ instructe 

2 me.to go ahead and release one short spray. 

5 ~ ·r think you have forgotten something. You put a 
., 

4 ·gas mask on, didn 9 t you? 

6 A. Before I entered the cell, yes. 

6 Q. Mr. Friedrick instructed you to put the gas mask o 

7 before you went into the cell? 

8 

9 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. 

Let's stop right there. 

10 Officer Mata, what instructions have you had and what 

U training have you had, if any, in the use of tear gas? 

12 A. We are trained how to use the different equipment. 

13 Q. Is that when you first come to work? Or when? 

14 A. This is general in service training for all per-

15 sonnel. 

!6 Q. When did you receive your training in the use of 

17 tear gas? 

18 A. This training is received around July of every 

19 year. 

lO Q. Every year? There is annual in-servic~ training? 

!l A. Yes sir, alonq~~ith firearms and different types 
~ .. 

!2 of weapons. 
' !3 Q. What are the instructions you receive in 

~ tear gas, Officer Mata? 

A. we had an instructor there that gave us th• riame 
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l of the equipment and how it is used. 

. 2 Q. Can you be more specific? Doesn't he tell you more 

3 about-- What does he· do? What 1is the real traiD:,,ing here? 
. 

4 A. He shows you the different weapons, like the gas 

5 cylinders, the gas guns. 

6 Q. The gas guns. 

7 A. The different shells or different makeup of the gaso 

8 Q. What does he explain to you about the dangerous 

9 quality, if any, of tear gas? 

10 A. He stated it was harmless. It was irritating, but 

11 harmless. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

That it could never cause great bodily harm? 

That is right. 

And it could never kill anybody? 

No sir. 

When you say "no sir," you mean that is what he 

17 told you? 

18 A. ~es. 

19 Q. Does he give you instructions on where to direct a 

~ spray or a shot of tear gas? 

21 A. No sir, he 4oesn 1 t. 

22 Q. Have you ever had any instructions in where to 

m spray or direct a charge o~ t•ar gas? 

24 A. Yes sir.. Mr •.... Friedrigk has instructed us on how t 

i25 I use ito 
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What we~e those instructiona? 

He stated not to fire directly into a man's face, 

3 to fire--release the gas down low. 

Q. When did receiv·e those 
. instructions? you 4 

6 A. I do not recall. ·It wasn't at this time. He told 

6 me--he instructed me not to release gas high. 

7 Q. Did he say why? 

8 A. No sir. 

9 Q. How often had you used tear gas, Officer Mat a, 

w personally been the one to turn the knob? 

ll A. About three, approximately three or four times. I 

u do not recall. 

13 Q. How often of those three or four times did you use 

u it in a cell itself, as opposed to out in a corridor or a 

W general gathering of inmates? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

How many times? 

Yes. 

About three or four times. 

Each time you have personally used it, it has been 

~ directed into a cell itself? 

21 

22 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. 

were those three·or four times, some of them or 
~ 

23 all of thelJl,. before or after this Thanksgiving i~n.c_i?ent · 

~ with Mr. Esparza? 

25 I believe 1t-was after. 
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A. No sir. 
) 

Q. I am a little confused. How many times~before this 

time had you used tear gas? 

A. Before E spar z a? 

Q. Yes G 

A. Approximately three or four times. 

Q. I misunderst6od you. Thank you. 

THE COURT: We will take a recess for ten minutes~ 

(A short recess was taken.) 

THE CLERK: 44309 and 44786. 
' _.,__-.:.o-- .. '!=i I 

MR. COHLER: Ready for plaintiff and petitioner, Your 

Honor. Mr. Mata will take the stand again, please. 

Q. Officer Mata, you were relating the incident in-

volving the use of tear gas prior to Thanksgivingo You na 

stated the nature of your training and experience in the 

use of tear gas. 

Now, would you slowly describe for the Court, after 

Sergeant Friedrick, among others, had ordered Esparza t6 

thro~ out his clothes, and when the tear gas w~s brought 
;, 

and you put your mask on, what happened? 

A. I stepped inside the outer section of the cell, an 

I squatted, and I released a short spray of tear gas. 

Esparza, at that time, threw his blanket down, ran ov~r, 

grabbed my gas mask, I pulled away from him and bumped my 
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l head against the wall, and I released another short spray 

2 loW •. 

3 Q. Did this all happen very quickly? 

4 A. Yes sir. 

5 Q. Condensed into a matter of about a minute? 

6 A. Seconds. 

7 Q. You said "a short spray~" would you m~nd going 

8 "pssst 11 for the length of time that you sprayed the first 

9 time? 

lO 

11 

12 

13 

14 

l5 

16 

it 

in 

A. 

off. 

Q. 

your 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

It was a very 

How does this 

left hand? 

Yes s~ro 

And you turn a 

It has a valve 

short spray, just 11 ps sst 11 and I shut 

work? There is a canister you hold 

knob--

on top with a small spout, and I 

~ believe you turn left. And I just barely turned it, and I 

18 released a short spray, and I shut it off. 

l9 

20 

n 
22 

23 

is 

and 

Q. 

all 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

he 

I am trying to find out what 11 shoret means 

I am trying to do, Officer. · 

Well, I will demonst;J:"at,e. ' ·" 

Please. 

"Pssst, 11 
; 

and that is it, and then Esparza 

grabbed me by the gas mask, I jerked away, 

to you, 

ran over 

bumped 

my head. Then I released another one, 11 pssst1u and that 
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1 was enough, he gave up and passed out all of th• equipment. 

2 'Q .. You say this was all condensed into a few seconds. 

:; How quickly does tear gas permeate an area? . . 
A. I don't think I am--I don•t.think I can answer tha • 

5 rt spreads. 

6 Q. Let me ask you this: If a man had a blanket over 

7 hlm and you were shooting it towards the floor, would it 

s be just a matter of ·seconds before it got inside under the 

9 blanket, and he threw the blanket down and came rushing at 

lO you? 

I don 8 t understand that question. 

l2 Q. well, I have never had tear gas shot at me. I 

J ~ould like the record to be clear as to how quickly it 

~ takes, in your ~ecollection, for the tear gas to be shot 

B out at the floor, rise up under ' blanket, get a man to a 

J point where he feels the effects, throws down the blanket 

.7 and comes rushing at you • 

. 8 A . I don't know. 

. 9 Q. Half a minute? 

lO A. I don't know. 

ll Q. You couldn't say then that that was just a matter 

!2 of seconds? 

!3 A. I am talking about the actual incident itself when 

l4 the gas sing was taking place. 

Q. How long did it take for the shoit burst f~red at 
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1 the floor to rise up under the blanket_, have an effect upo 

2 the inmate, have him throw down his blanket and come rush-

5 ing at you? 

4 

5 

A. I don't know. As soon as I--

MR. GRA,NUCCI: Objection. I don't know that it did 

l 6 affect him. It may have persuadeq him psychologically 

7 ·that he ought not continue resistance. It may have had a 

s physical effect on him. The question, to that extent, is 

9 vague. 

10 MR. COHLER: I will go back a little further. 

ll ~ When you released the ~hort,burst, as you describe 

~ it, did Mr. Esparza thereafter t~row down the blanket? 

A. Yes. 

14 Q,. Did he say anything, that you recall, as he threw 

~ down the blanket? 

18 A. No. I donWt remember him saying anything. He jus 

17 rushed over. 

l8 Q,. Did he say anything like, "I 

A. No. 

Q. Did he cough? 

A. No. 

19 

20 

21 

22 Q. He was about three-quarters 

~ cell, is that right? 

24 

25 

A. 

Q,. 

Yes. 

Away from the bars? 

give upet? 

1;i • 
~ .:, 

of the- distance of the 
' 

~-., .. 
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ll A. Yes. 
! 

Q. Did he spring at the bar~? 2 

s 

4 

6 

~ He rushed over. 

Q. He ran? 

A. Yes. 

6 Q .• Now, you were standing in between the bars and the 

7 ·wall. 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. How close to the bars were you standing? 

lO A. Close enough to where as I could aim the spout of 

ll the gas cylinder~ 

l2 Q. How close do you have to--

,3 A. Between the bars. 

:4 Q. You had to be close enough to get the spout to fit 

.5 between the bars, is that the idea? 

. 6 A. Yes . 

. 7 Q . He rushed at you. Did he actually grab your gas 

lS mask? 

l9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. Did he pull it off? 

ll A. i He was trying to. 

~ Q. Did it come off ·at all? 

!3 A. No. I jerked away. , . .. 

~ Q. You fell backwards, is that it?-·· 

~ - A. I didnfit fall back .. I jerked away and I hit my 
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head against the wall behind me. 

665 

· Q. As you jerked away and hit your head on the wall 

behind you, 
. ) 

did you release the second burst? 

4 A.· No. After my head bounced off the wall, then I 

5 released another short spray. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

lO 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Did your 

Yes. 

Did you 

I think 

Are you 

head hurt from 

blink?· 

I did. 

as certain as to 

hitting the wall? 

where the gas was aimed 

U for the second burst as you are as to where it was aimed 

l2 for the first burst? 

13 

14 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. It was lowo 

And you are just as sure of the second burst after 

W you hit your head as you are of the first burst when you 

~ stood up close and aifued it between the bars, is that righ ? 

17 

18 

A. 

Q. 

I didn 8 t stand up. 

Excuse me. I didn't mean to imply that. 

~ You are just as sure of the aim of the second burst 

00 after you hit your head against the wall and blinked--

21 

22 
' 
A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. 

--as you were 

:\'b. i 

the first when you crohched and 

~ actually held it between the bars? 

24 Yes sir. 

Q. Why were you so careful about holding it right 
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1 between the bars on the first time, and you felt you could 

2 just spray immediately the second time after you bounced 

5 back and hit your head? 

A. Because I didn 1 t want to release a high spray. 

. 5 Q . I understand what you didn't want to do, Of~icer. 

6 You felt it was necessary in releasing the first burst 

7 to squat and actually get the nozzle or whatever it is, 

s between the bars so. you could control, direct it. · Is that 

9 right? 

lO 

11 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

And the second time you released it immediately 

~ after you bounced back and hit your head. I Is that correct? 

13 A. Right. 

14 Q. Was there a goo~ deal of confusion during this 

15 incident? 

16 A. I wouldn't say confusion. 

17 Q. Is it normal to have that many men back at the 

~ strip cell area? 

19 A. No sir, i~ isn't. But they were having a dis-

W ciplinary hearing. The Committee itself was there. 

U ~ ~But there were more men there in what might be 

~ considered a small area than there ordinarily are. Is 

23 that correct? 

24 A. There is always a group of people in a disciplin-

~ ary committee. 
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l Q. was th~re anyone besides your~elf standing in the 

2 space between the bars and the wall of the strip cell area? 

s 
4 

A. 

Q. 

No sir. 

You couldn't recall wheth~r or not the flaps were 

5 open or cl.osed? 

6 A. I know they were open when the disciplinary hear-

7 ~ ing was taking place. 

8 

. 9 

10 

ll 

12 

Q. 

A • 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A few minutes ago you couldn't recall. 

You confused me. 

I am not trying to. 

I know that, but you still confuse me. 

we will let it drop. 

U You stated that yourself, as well as Sergeant Friedric 

U had ordered Esparza to take his clothes off. Is that 

15 correct? 

16 

17 0 ff. 

18 

19 

20' 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

No. I didnft instruct Esparza to take his clothes 

The sergeant did, Sergeant Friedrick? 

Yes sir. 

Did Sergeant Friedrick tell Mr. Esparza why he 

fi wanted his clothing passed out?r 

22 

23 

i24 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

That's right. 

What did he a~y? 

Well, first of• all, when Esparza "explodeci 11 and 

25 was making all this noise~ he was inst'ructedto_be q-q.iet 
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and quit, and he didn 1 t. And, of course, after the equLp-

ment was obtained, he was instructed to re•ove them. He 

was told that he would get the~ back as soon as~he quit 

disturbing the section. I do not recall the exact words 

Mr. Friedrick used. 

Q. The removal of clothing then, as you understood it 

7 , at the time, was an instrument of punishment and hopeful 

6 deterrence as to the noise-making. Is that correct? 

9 A. No sir. 

10 MR .. GRANUCCI: Objection to the question as argumenta-

11 tive. 

THE COURT: Sustained. 

MR. COHLER: That is all, Officer. Thank you. 

14 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

15 BY MR. OAKES: 

16 Q. Officer Mat~, last Tuesday did you have any idea 

~ that the Court was going to view the area? 

lB A. No sir. 

19 Q. There was some mention about weapons, and referenc 

~ was made to broom~ and mops during cleaning anij'the fact 

H that these might be used as a weapon. Now, isn't a broom 

~ or a mop quite a bit larger than th~ normal weap6ris f6und 

I 1n th~ in~titution? 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. 
' J 

- A 
When brooms and mops are being -used by. '_an inmate 
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1 the quiet cell~ is he not inside the cell? 

z A. Yes, he in the cell, and I pass the equipment; in-

5 side. 

4 Q. You are on the outside? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. Discussing this Disciplinary committee hearing 

7 , that was in process in front of Mr~ Esparza's cell and Mr. 

8 wells 1 cell, if th~ flaps had been closed, would that ade-

9 quately have closed down the noise? 

lO A. No sir. You can-- If a person is creating a dis-

u turbance in the quiet cell with the falps up, you could 

12 still hear him. 

15 Q. Could this still disturb the rest of the inmates 

14 in the wing? 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. 

How much d~ you weigh? 

Approximately 200 pounds. 

How tall are you? 

Five-nine. 

Would you say rather stocky? 

Yes sir~ 

How much room is between the steel front of the 

I quiet cell and the metal bars, vertical bars? 

A. 

Q. 

Approximately two or three feet. 

When you stooped down--
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l A. I squatted. 

I z Q. --squat down, do you pretty much fill up the whole 

3 space? 

4 A. There isn't much space left. 

6 Q. So if you were. to fall backward., would you ·have 

6 very far to fall? 

7 A. No s~r. 

8 Q. So you would not strike your head, probably, to sue 

9 a state that you would lose consciousness? 

10 

11 

A. No sir. 

MR. OAKES: That is all I have. 

12 MR. COHLER: That is all. Thank you, Officer. 

13 MR. OAKES: Just a minute. If the Court has any ques-

14 tions--

15 THE COURT: No quest ions. 

16 (Witness excused.) 

~ MR. OAKES: I'd like to recall John Nash. 

~ THE CLERK: You may resume the stand. 

19 JOHN L. NASH, 

~ recalled as a witness on behalf of the defendarits, having 

D been previously duly foworn, resumed the stand and testifie 

22 further as follows: .· ·· 

23 

24 

25 

THE CI,.ERK: 

please. 

THE WITNESS: 

wiil y~u restate\~our name for the record, 

_My name' is John L'ewis Nash·. 
I 
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67:1 

l 

2 

5 ~ .Mr. Nash, you have previously testified pt some 
~ 

! 4 
length in this matter. First of all, I ·would like to thank 

5 you for your patience~ 

6 I should like to review, if I might~ just briefly what 

7 has been stated. Counsel will correct me if I misstate 

g anything, and I wish you would also, please 0 

9 I believe you testified that you are 34 years old, you 

w work the third watch in the isolation side, the quiet cell 

u side, and your duties also include the "Max~ side or the 

"" 
~ "Max" security side in o-wing~ that your duties are b~si-

~ cally that ~ou make security checks during this watch, you 

U make counts, you pass out equipment, including shaving 

~ equipment, supplies~ you counsel inmates: you ser~ice the~ 

M cells, which include the strip cellsi and things"6f this 

l7 nature. Is that correct? 

~ ~ Correct. 

~ ~ I believe you testified also that you know inmate 

ao Jordan. 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. I would like to call your ~ttentioh to--I beJieve 

lZ it is Plaintiff's Exhibit 13, the isolation segregation 

~ record. 
I~J r 

MR. COHLER: •i.3~ counsel? 
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1 MR .. · OAKES: Yes. 

2 Q. I call your attention to the sec.ond entry for 

5 7/9/65. I believe that s·ta tes, J 
18 We seized, searcr,hed, and 

-celled, I/C moved, n initials 

' 
"JM. ... Are yo'Q.r initials? 

5 A. Yes sir. 

Q. Does that ind{cate you were on duty the evening 

7 Mr. Jordan was moved to a quiet cell? 

8 

9 

10 

ll 

l2 

lS 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. 

Do you recall the occasion? 

I recall it vividly. 

Specifically? Or do you rec-all it fairly~ll? 

Fairly well, I would say. 

What procedures are generally employed when you 

~ receive a man in the watch, he is to be plac~d in a quiet 

l5 cell? 

l6 A. The man usually, if he is in the Adjustm~bt Center~ 

~ is searched before he brought down. And when he comes dow 

~ to me, I go back and search his cell and I inspect his eel , 

~ look for contr~band, 6heck for the cleanliness of the cell. 

Q. You indicated that you searched the cell. Did ~ou 

n search the cell on this evening? 

A. Right. I did. 
-.-· 

Q. How do you conduct th~s search? 

A. At this time, I used my ~lashlightw I usually 

started at the door, look around the commod area-- and_ the 
.. -· _.,_ -: 
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bars and the ventilator. 
" . 

I look--it is pretty well de-

tailed when I search. 

~ .Do you also check the walls, perhaps? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. During the course of such a search, would you 

6 notice if there was excrement on the walls? 

7 

8 

A. 

Q. 

I would. 

Would you notice if the cell is in an otherwise 

9 unclean condition? 

10 

ll 

12 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

I would. 

What would you consider to be an unclean condition? 

Well, if it have foreign matter, food particles, 

p excrement or anything that shouldn't be in the cell, I 

U would call it in an unclean condition. 

15 Q. Officer Nash, have you ever placed a man in an un; 

16 clean cell? 

17 A. I have. But I have given him stuff to clean it 

18 out with. I tell him, "If you want to clean it out," or 

U give him a broom, something to clean it out. 

20 Q. What dictates? Why have you placed a •an in an un 

21 clean cel.l? 

A. l!1ainly becau~e I- didn • t have another one to put 

23 him in. 

Q,. would this be, perhap~, during a Q.is1:,urbap<:e or 

25 something going on when you needed to·. use the cell? 
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No. not necessarily. 

674. 

In other words, there were no other cells available? 2 

s 

4 

5 

6 

A. -No other cells available. 

Q. Did you place Mr. Jordan in an unclean cell? 

A. No sir. 

Q. The conduct of your duties includes checking on 

7 your inmates during the course of the ·evening, does it not? 

8 

9 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, it does. 

Do you recall that inmate Jordan was housed in a 

w quiet 6ell during the month of July 1965? 

11 A. 

12 record. 

13 

14 

15 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Well~ about the only way I can recall is by the 

You have reviewed the record? 

Right. 

You refreshed your recoll~ction to the extent that 

W you know he was there? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

A. 

Q. 

Q. 

Right. 

Do you recall talking to Mr. Jordan? 

I recall talking to him. 

In talking to him, did you h~ve to be in quite 

n close proximity to his cell? 

I 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Would you probably enter in past the steel door? 

Yes, I would. 

Furthermore, I believe you testifi~d t~at you 
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l serviced the cell every night. 

6 

6 

1 

A. Yes. 

~ Would this not require ~ou to go inside ~he cell? 

A. It does. 

Q. Pardon me. Inside the steel door area. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Nash, did you ever at any ·time notice the odor 

8 of human exd~ement emanating from Mr. Jordan's cell? 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Would you have noticed such an odor? 

I am quite sure I would. 

Would you remember it now? 

I think I would. I am quite sure I would. 

Did you at any time notice the odor of vomit 

~ emanating from Mr. Jordan's cell? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

No sir. 

Would you have noticed it? 

I would. 

Do you think you would recall it now? 

I think~! would. 

Officer Nash, during the course of his testimony, 

~ Mr. Jordan referred to you as a nfish bull.n Do you know 

what that term means? 
.·1 

A. I have heard it used mo;-~ or lej;s for new officers. 

Q. You do know what it means? ....... , 
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Yes. 

Does the term concern you? 

Not too much~ I don't ~hink. 

Why not? 

676 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

A. Well, I think I have the same approach to inmates 

at this time as I did at that time. 

Q. What is that approach? 

~ Well~ I use a moderate approach to them. I don't 

try to make them afraid of me or anything. I just try to 

10 be friendly. 

ll MR. OAKES: I have no further questions at this time. 

l2 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

~3 BY MR. COHLER: 

~ Q. Officer Nash, how long, once again, have you worked 

] as first floor o-wing officer? 

~ Oh, I'd say approximately 14, 15 months • 

. 7 Q. Since June of 1965? 

. 8 

.9 

A . 

Q. 

Yes. 

You are presently working there as well? 

10 A. Y e s , I am . 

a ~ Officer Nash, can you separate out in your re-

~ collection any particular period of time during those 12 o 

~ 14 months, as opposed to your recollection of your gen~~al 

!4 experience? 

l5 A. Yes sir. we have had some disturl:>ances there. 
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Q. Short 9f a disturbance, which wou~d be a particular 

ipstance, can you separate out in your recoilection a 

particular period of time, such as July 9th thr~ugh July 

20 1965, as opposed to your general experience over the 

past 12 or 14 months? 

A. Yes. But not where Jordan is concerned, no. 

MR. COHLER: Miss Reporter, would you read the answer, 

8 please. 

9 (The answer was read.) 

MR. COHLER: Q. You stated that you refreshed your re-

U collection through examining various documents; is that 

~ correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Before you refreshed your recollection, did you 

~ have any memory of that period of time, July 9th through-

~ July 20 1965? 

A. No. 

Q. What you are able to testify to today is only what 

~ you learned from the documents you reviewedi is that 

W correct? 

n A. Yes. I have a vivid.memory, but I wouldn't say it 
4 ~ 

~ would be concrete that Mr. Jordan was iA the cell that--! 

~ couldn't say I moved him on the 9th until I. did look at 

~ the documents. 

Q. You had known that Jordan had been in a qui•t cel4 · 
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at some time. 

A. Sure. 

Q. ·You could separate out which period of t!me in your 

4 ·memory. 

6 A. No. 

6 Q. Indeed, isn't your memory of more recent experiences 

7 in the quiet or strip cell area more fresh than your memory 

8 of previous times? 

9 A. Sure. 

lO Q. Particularly going back as far as the second month 

ll you had been on duty, is that correct? 

12 

13 

A. 

Q. 

Sure. 

For instance, can you remember what other inmates 

W were in quiet cells or strip cells at the same time Mr. 

~ Jordan was in July 1965? 

16 A. No, I cannot. 

17 Q. Or whether or not window flaps 6r doors were open 

~ or closed on various cells during that period? 

19 

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

No, I can't. 

Or whether or not--

I can•t distinguish which cells the flaps was open _ 
,.: 

~ and which cells the flaps was closed at the time. 

23 Q. or even whether during that period \:/~S ;_o_ne, ot tb.e .. , , 

24 occasions when a man was in a dirty cell and 'refused t.o 

25 clean it up? 
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24 
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A.· I don '.t remember any incident of that nature· at. all. 

~ You couldn't tell the Court whethe~ an incident of 

that nature happened during this period of time~or some 

other period of time? 

A. Well, I don't remember any time--at any time that 

a man was in the quiet cell and refused to clean it up. 

Q. Oh, I am sorry. I misunderstood your testimony. 

I didn't me~n to ask.you that way. 

You looked at Plaintiff's exhibit and read part of an 

entry including ni/C moved.~ Do you have that before you, 

for July 9th? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Is that your handwriting, n I/C movedn? 

~ I don't think that is my handwriting. 

Q. The "we seized, searched and celled, 11 is your ha].ld-

writing? 

A. I am sure that is mine. 

~ That was the entry with respect to wh~ch you put 

your initials "JN,n is that correct? 

A. Right. 

~ After that entry, there appears ~I/C moved,• is 

that correct? 

Right. A. 
.;!·. 

MR. COHLER: Thank you. No further question~. 

THE COURT~ we will. take the noon recess at this. time' 
~ ' 1- • 
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1 and tesume at a_quarter past 2:00. 

2 (Whereupon the luncheon r~cess was taken until 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

lO 

11 

l2 

l3 

l4 

l5 

l6 

l7 

l8 

l9 

2:~5 o'clock p.m~) 

--ooo--

680 

·--..... ·-.-
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l 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 17 1966 AFTERNOON SESSION - 2:-.15 P.M. 

.g MR. OAKES: I don't know whether Mr. Nash was dis-

S missed .. But in any event, I would like to recall him. 

4 

6 

6 

7 

8 

9 

"' 
THE CLERK: Officer Nash? 

JOHN L. NASH, 

resumed the stand, ha~ing been previou~ly duly sworn, 

testified further as follows: 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. OAKES: 

w ~ · Officer Nash, during the course of your testimony, 

ll you stated that you had put a man in an unclean cell. 

l2 

l3 

l4 

l5 

l6 

l7 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

l8 cell? 

Yes. 

Is that correct? 

Yes sir. 

Was that a quiet cell? 

No. No sir, . it wasn't. 

What was the state of the uncleanliness of that 

l9 A. Well, it had some tooth powder on the floor and a 

!0 couple of pieces of paper. That is all. 

!1 Q. Was the man provided an opportunity to clean up the 
_t£..1 

cell? 
., 

'·[_ . 

!3 ' A. Yes. I told him-- Let me relate it:to 
-~ 

you as it 

!4 ; were. 

~- I had some old cells- -I had another ce·11 that didn ;·t 
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1 have a light, any light fixture. The light fixture was 

2 broken. And I told him, which cell he would prefer, "~his 

3 one? Or the one that had the toothpaste in it?" And he 

4 . took the one that had the light. ·I told· him I would give 

5 him a broom to sweep it up. 

6 Q. Have you ever ·put a man in an unclean quiet cell? 

7 A. No sir. 

s MR. OAKES: I have no further quest ions. 

9 MR. COHLER: No questions, Your Honor. 

w Th~nk you, Officer. 

U (Witness excused.} 

12 MR. OAKES: Call Mr. Johnston, please. 

~ THE CLERK: Mr. Johnston? 

U GEORGE F. JOHNSTON, 

~ called as a witness on behalf of_the defendants, being 

M first duly sworn, was examined and testified ~s follows: 

17 THE CLERK: State your name and occupation to the Court. 

18 THE COURT: George F. Johnston, Program Administrator 

U at the correctional Training Facility ·at Soledad. 

20 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

21 BY MR. GRANUCCI: 

22 Q. Mr. Johnston, what are the duties of a program 

~ administrator? 

A. Well, in my own case I have the supervision 

125 3, which includes the supervision of the general o·rd~rline $ 
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l of the unit, the .cleanliness, the feeding in those wirtgs 

that we feed in the wings, the programs that take place in 

3 ·the unit, the classification and) disciplinary committees 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

ll 

"' 
are under my supervision. 

~ The wings over which you are in charge include the · 

Isolation Row, do they'not? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And some cells known as strip or quiet cells? 

A. Right. 

Q. Do your duties ever bring you into o-wing? 

A. Many times. In fact, my office is attached to o-

12 wing. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Do you ever visit the Isolation Row? 

I do. 

The quiet cell area? 

I do. 

could you tell us how often? 

Well, this is difficult to state exactly. However, 

~ I go in there when the occasion demand~. It could be mayb 

20 twice in the same day, or it could be maybe once or twice 

21 a week. 

22 Q. 

~ of that section? 

A. I am. 

Q. How do you effectuate, how do you carry out your 
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responsibilities as to cleanliness~ 

A. Well, we make inspections periodically. 

··.684 

I make 

5 them whenever I am not--my attention isn't dem~nded else­

i where. My sergeant or my lieutenant makes them regularly, 

5 at least once a week. 

6 Q. If you saw ~omething that wasn't up _to your 

7, standard of cleanliness, what would you do? 

8 A. Well, I would give an order to the lieutenant or 

9 the sergeant to take care of it. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

.3 you not? 

A. I am. 4 

5 Q. Do you have any laice against the plaintiff Jordan? 

6 A. No, I don't. 

Q. 7 Did you ever conspire with the other defendants to. 

8 subject him to cruel and unusual punishment? 

9 MR. COBLER: For the record, Your Honor, I wish to 

0 object to the question as calling £or·~he witn~ss' con­

;1 elusion on an issu~ wh:hG"h must be decided by the Court. 

2 THE COURT: Overruled. 

'3 THE WITNESS: I have not ever conspired with anybody 

4 about any nefarious activity. 

5 MR. GRANUCCI: Q. And that includes·· activity directed· 
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against the plaintiff, is that correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Now, do you remember an incident involv+ng the use 
,., 

14 of tear gas on the day before Thanksgiving of 1965, with 
I 

5 
! 

respect to an inmate named Esparza? 

6 A. I don 8 t recall the date specifically, but I do 

7 recall the i~cident where we used tear gas to control in-

8 mate Esparza. 

9 Q. Could you tell us about that incident, such as 

10 you remember? 

ll A. Well, we went back to the quiet cell area as a 

~ disciplinary committee--

13 Q. Who was that? 

14 A. Mr. Kiepura and myself and the sergeant and Mr~ 

15 DeCarli. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

to 

his 

Q. Who was the sergeant? 

A. Sergeant Friedrick. 

We heard the disciplinary 

the cell of Wells, who was 

disciplinary •. 

At this time Esparza set 

on Esparza and moved on then 

next door, and began to hear 

\.lP a terrific din in his cell· 

' 22 that was almost deafeni.ng, so that we couldn 1 t make our.;. 

~ selves heard in talking to Wells. 

~ So we had to stop our disciplinary hearing with Wells. 

25 Then we retired to the officers 1 ar.ea ·to disc\lss among 
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1 ourselves what steps we should take to control the s±tua-

2 tion. We did decide that· we would like to control him with 

3 tear gas and that we would take)his clothing from him. 
"' 

Q. Why would you take. his clothing ·from him? 4 

5 A. Well 6 I suspect that this is a little bit punitive,· 

6 but punitive with the 'thought in mind of gaining control 

7 and restoring order. 

8 Q. Was the clothing to be taken from Esparza for a 

9 definite period of time? 

w A. I dontt think we had stated any definite period of 

ll time, no. 

12 Q. Was the purpose of attempting to get Esparza's 

~ clothing to bring him under control at the present time? 

U Or to punish him for conduct which had occurred and had 

~ been completed in the past? 

16 A. It probably was a little of both. 

17 Q. All right. I wonder if you could take up the 

~ narrative. As I recall, you had gone back into the 

~ officers' area to await the arrival of the tear gas. 

20 what? 

21 A. Well, first I had to get permission to use the 
<· 

Then 

22 tear gas~ I can 1 t recall whether I called the Associate 

23 

24 

25 

Superintendent or called Mr. Donnelly, the Deputy 
. -- .,.. '·'' ' j" 

' Superintendent. But I did get permission from one of thes 

people~ 
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So then we called control and had them send the- gas . . 

down to usG And it was then that we went back into the 

area with the gas and that the gas was administ~red to 
~ 

Esparza in the course of getting· his clothing. 

5 Q. How much gas did you use? 

6 Two short bursts. 

7 Q. What happened then? 

8 I ~as standing actually observing the operation 

9 outside the cell itself--not outside Esparza's cell, but 

ro outs{de of Wells' cello over by the outside wall of the 

ll building. It was at that time that Wells threw what he 

~ claims to have been water out in our direction. Some of 

~ it hit me in the face, and it burned my eye. So I ques-

U tioned whether it was actually water or not. 

l5 

16 

" 
20 

21 

22 

~ 

~ 

~ 

Q. What do you think it was? 

A. I feel that it was urine, myself. 

Q. Was any gas directed at Mr. Wells? 

A. 

Q. Do you know why not? 

A. Well, I don't think we felt that it was necessary 

to utilize gas on welLs, ·that he was more or less going 
; 

along with Esparza because of their rather close relation-

ship and that once we had controlled Esparza that Wells 

probably would cease any disturbance that he was making~ 

Q. Now, directing your attention ~6 ·july of 1965, 
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during that period of time. quiet cells were not equipped 

with waterbasinso were they? 

A. N0 0 they were nota 
'" 

Q. Are they now? 

A. They are nowo 

Q. Mr. Johnston a· I am going to show you an art.icle 

7 made out of plastic a 

8 that is, please o 

I wonder if yoQ could tell me what 

9 This ts one of the wa~erbasin~ that we have.placed 

w in th~ quiet cellsa 

ll Q. But Mro Johnston, there is something wrong with th t 

~ waterbasin, isn 1 t there? 

13 Yes. This one has been damaged by an inmate kn the 

14 quiet cell 0 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

MRo GRANUCCI.: Mr. Clerk, will you.mark this exhibito 

THE COURT: It may be markedo 

THE CLERK: Defendants 9 Exhibit H. 

MR~ GRANUCCI: 

(A plastic waterbasin was rnarke 
for identification as Defendan s 
Exhibit H.) 

~ In July of 196~, Mr. Johnston, were 

n there ~ater pitchers in the quiet cells? 
'· 

22 A. 
I 

There were not 0· 

23 Q. Are there any now? 

Yes, there are$ 

Q. I show you an item made out of plastic and ask yo~ 
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l to. tell the Co_urt what that is. 

2 A. This is one of the water pitchers that we have 

689 

J placed in the quiet cells. 

Q. But Mr. Johnstone there is something wrong with 

:5 that water pitcher, isn 9 t there? 

6 It has been damaged by an inmate. 

7 Q. A quiet cell inmate? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 MR. GRANUCCI~ Mr. Clerk. 

W THE COURT: It may be marked. 

ll THE CLERK= Defendants 1 Exhibit I for identification. 

12 

13 

(A plastic water pitcher was 
marked for identification as 
Efendants' Exhibit I.) 

14 MR. GRANUCCI: Your Honor, may these exhibits now 

~ marked for identification be introduced into evidence? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

THE COURT~ 

THE CLERK: 

They may. 

In evidence. 

(The plastic water basin and 
plastic pitcher previously 
marked for identification as 
Defendants 1 .. Exhibits· .'H and I 
were received in evidence~) 

MR. GRANUCCI:: Q. Mr. Johnston, how many water 

~ pitchers and how many wat~rbasins were_or~ered? 

23 

24 

A. 

Q. 

we placed an order for a dozen. 
" f •• •V 

How many did you receive? 
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1 
Q,. How ma~y sets of waterbasins and pitchers dd you 

2 have left? 

s A. Three. 

4 Q. That isu in an undamaged ·condition? 

5 A. Yes. that are i~ use. 

6 Q. Nowu Mr. Johnstono I want to show you a rather 

7 . heavy and somewhat cumbersome item which is made out of 

6 canvas. I wonder if you would tell me what that is, please. 

9 A. This is one of the strong blankets that we use in 

w the quiet cell. 

11 Q. You are familiar with the strong blankets, are you 

12 not? 

13 A. Yes. I have seen quite a few of them. 

14 Q. What is the condition of the particular strong 

W blanket now before you? 

16 A. This is a newo unused strong blanket. 

17 Q. Where are those made, Mrc Johnston? 

18 A. At the Dual vocational Institution. 

Q. Are they in standard size? 

A. I have never actually measu~ed them my~elf, and out 

19 

20 

21 of my observations I would say yes, that this is a standard 

22 sizeo 

23 Q. 

i. 
/ 

. ··"i 

Mr. Johnston, woul-tl you step down ... from the witness 
Jt· 

M stand and help me unravel this str6ng blanket so w~ ~an 

~ illustrate to the Court the size ~f it. 
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A. ·Yes o 

Q. Mr. Johnstong how tall are you? 

A" About six fee.t four and 1 a half o 

4 MRo GRANUCC!g And may.the. record show that I am six 

5 feet and one-half an inch 0 

6 Q. This is typic~l of a new stron~ blanket--

7 A. 

8 Q. --that would be issued to an inmate who is placed 

9 in a quiet cell? 

w ~ · Wello we don 1 t always issue new ones, but we do 

ll when the need arises. 

12 Q. I wonder if you would place that on the floor, 

~ fold it upo roll it over a second time, fold it up, and 

M fold it up againo 

W MR. COBLER: May the record show that the strong 

16 blanket was folded upon the creases in which it arrived. 

17 MRo GRANUCCI: The record may so indicate. 

18 Mr o Clerk o 

~ THE CLERKg Defendantsu Exhibit J .. 

W (A strong blanket wjs marked fo 
identification as Defendants~ 

21 Exhibit J.) 
.,· . ..: 

22 MRo GRANUCCI ~ Your -Honor 0 I move the ~dmission of 

I Defendants' Exhibit J into ~vidence. 

24 

25 

THE COURTg It may be marked. 

.. 



309 692 
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2 

s 

4 

(A strong blanket previously 
marked for identificat~on as 
Defendants.' Exhibit iJ was re­
ceived in evidence.) 

MR. GRANUCCI g Q. Mr •. Johnstono how long have you been 

6 in corrections work? 

6 ~- It will be JO·years next May. 

7 ~ I wonder if you could recount.for the Court your 

8 background. 

9 Wello I started work at San Quentin in 1937 and 

w worked there as an officer~ correctional officer until 1942 

ll when I enlisted in the Navy. I ret~rned to work at San 

~ Quentin as an officer ina I believe8 December 1945. And 

~ in March of 19478 after having passed a promotional examin -

M tionu I became a parole officer. 

w I worked {n paroles in both the Fresno and San Francisc 

w offices until 8 I believe it was, January 1951, wheri I was 

17 recalled to active duty with the Navy in the Korean War. 

lli I returned to work at the Correctional Training 

l9 Facility in March of 1952 as a grade II ·ins'titutional 

W parole officer. That classification has since'been change 

n to correctional counselor. ·. . 

22 I stayed at the training facility for about 18 months, 

~ when I transferred back to San Francisco in the parole 

24 office as a grade II professional officer, and about four r months lat~r transferred to San Quentin a• a grade rr 
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institutional parole officer and remairied there for five 

years~ 

In Marchq I believe it was ~arch of 1959 I--well, I . 
"' guess I will have to say that through a.reclassification 

of our series and expansion of our· series, I again found 

myself at grade I and· had to go through promotional examina 

tions againe and I again passed the examination and became 

a correctional counselor. grade II. at the Correctional 

9 Training Facility in March of 1959. 

w Since that time I have taken further promotional 

ll examinations. and I became a correctional counselor, grade 

~ III, and my working title at that time was the classifi-

~ cation and parole representative. I had charge of all of 

u the counselors in the institution, as well as the function 

~ of the Adult Authority visits and hearings of the institu-

l6 tion. 

~ I took further examination and became a program ad-

W ministrator in December of 1964, and I have since complete 

L9 one more promotional examination and am on _the· promotional· 

W list for associate superintendent. 

Q. Then it is fair to sayb Mr •. Johnston, that 

~ had a great deal of exp~rience in w6rking in the prison 

~- system in California in general, and the C6rrectional 

U Training Facility in particularo 

I ~6uld say th~t would b~ true. 
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Q.. I am going to take a pLastic envelope and show you 

certain itemso As I pull these out and hand them to you, 

what I want you to do for the recordo if you will, is 
) 

"' describe them so that the reporter will be .able to take 

down your descriptiono 

All right o 

Q. Mr. Johnstono I am going ·to take out the first ite • 

Will you tell me what that iso please. 

Well. this is a toothbrush handle that has been 

10 melted and a dirk-type piece of wire--I am not just sure 

ll what the wire comes fromo but it looks like it might be 

12 some kind of a dentist's--it has a name stamped on the side, 

13 it might be made from some kind of a dentist's instrument. 

M It is a rather stiff piece of wire, and it could be cer-

w tainly used ~s a dirk-type weapon. 

16 Q. Do you know how such a weapon could·be .made? 

17 Probably with the use of matches or by burning 

~ paper in the cell, an inmate could make this if he has the 

19 rna t e ria 1 . 

20 

21 

Q. All right, Mr. Johnstono Leave that there. I·am 

going to take out another item, and I ~ill ask youa just 
. ". ~ 

' . 

22 as you did with the last one o ~to describe it to the Court o 

23 Thiso I believe, is a handle of a hairbrush that 

M has been melted. with a piece of a nail clipper appended 

W to it by the same method as in the,previous weaport. · ·~h~s 
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' 1 one doesn't appear to have been quite completed, bec-ause 

z the edges are not sharpened. However, it still could be 

S· a damaging sort Of Weapon. 

4 

5 

6 

Q. Mr. Johnston, I will take another item out of the · c: 
envelope and ask you to describe ibis. 

.,I 

Well. again we have a toothbrtish handle that has 

7 been fashioned into a weapon by wrapp~ng string around the 

8 handle and also appending to it a small piece of metal in 

9 the sahpe of about an inch and a half blade. It, too, 

W could.be an effective weapon. 

11 Q. And finallya Mr. Johnston, would you describe this 

~ weapon for the Court. 

15 Again we have a toothbrush that has been melted, 

U and a razor blade, a double-edged razor blade inserted 

15 through it. Here you would have~-probably not the type of 

16 weapon with which you could kill, but you would. dis figure 

~ badly by slashing a person. 

18 Q. NOW 6 Mr. Johnston--

19 MR .. COHLER; Are you going to leave the subject area 

~ of these items? 

21 MR. GRANUCCI~ No. I am going to continue with those 

~ itemso counsel. 

23 

24 

25 

MR. COHLER: For the recordq I want to object. I am 

going to move to strike unless there is some connecting up 

between these items and some period of time or people 
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involved in this lawsuito I will wait. 1 

2 MRo GRANUCC!g Your Honor, what I intend to do--I will 

S .make the_ following offer of prooJf 0 I am going to eli~it 

4 

5 

6 

"" from this witness that these items. are thoroughly illus-

trative of the types of weapons that have been found in 

searches of ·the institutiori in general, and the adjustment 

7 center in particular 0 I make no claim that the plaintiff 

8 has ever been.in the possession of such a weapon. 

9 Howeverp there is an issue in this case concerning the 

w reasonableness o£ the conditions that attended petitioner's 

ll confinement in the quiet cell in July of 1965. One of 

~ those conditions of which he now makes complaint involves 

~ the lack of a toothbrusho 

~ I think that we are entitled to bring what evidence we 

~ can to bear updn the reasonablenes.s of that condition. I 

;6 think the availability or the amenability of too~hbrushes 

J to be converted into deadly, vicious weapons like Your Hon r 

.8 has seen, bears upon· the reasonableness of the restriction 

j there involvedu particularly when we heard evidence from t 

10 'lips of the plaintiff himself about how ea'sy it is to get 

rr contraband into a quiet cello 

MRo COHLER~ If it p~ease the Court, for the purposes 

~ that I understand the offer to be made, which are that 

M there can be danger arising from the availabil~ty 

~ items such as toothbrushes, I will .have no.·objectiono 
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2 

s 

Counsel has offered to say that he will not clai~ that 

the plaintiff has had such weapons in his possession. I 

don't think that goes far enough. 
) 

This could be pre• 
W> 

4 judicial. I ask that it be stipulated that the plaint~ff 

5 has not had such weapons~ has not been accused of h~ving 

6 such weapons, and the·fail~re to think he has such weapons-

7 pardon me. I will restate that_) 

8 ~ Arfci" that there was no thought that the possibility 

9 of his having ~uch weapons ent~red into his confinement in 

w the quiet cell. 

11 MR. GRANUCCI ~ well, I can go partway, counsel. I can 

~ stipulate that the fact that he--that there was no suspicio 

U that he had such a weapon which resulted in his confinement 

U in the quiet cell in July of 1965--

w THE COURT: They may be marked for identification pre-

16 sently. I will hear you out later. 

17 MR. COHLER: Thank you. 

lli THE CLERK: Defendants' Exhibits K, L, M, N for identi-

l9 f i c at ion • 

00 (Four items were maiked for 
identification as Defendants' 

21 Exhibits Ku L~ M, and N.) 
' 

22 MR. GRANUCCI: At t}J.is moment, Your Honor, in order to 

n complete my record~ I will move the admission of those 

~ exhibits into evidence. 

THE COURTg I will sustain the objection. 
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l .MR Q GRANUCC I g Your Honor, may the sustaining ofi the 

2 objection be without prejudice to leave to renew my motion? 

s· TH~ COURTg It may be rene~ed if there be some cor-

4 relation or some link with respect to the evidentiary 

5 aspect o 

6 court o 

Just a generalization wouldn't mean much to the 

7 MRo GRANUCCI g Your Honore I ~oul~ like leave to elicit 

8 from the witness that these weapons have been found in the 

9 institution arid are typical of such weapons that are found 

w in the institution. That is as far as I intend to go,with 

ll t hi s matt e r o 

l2 MRo COHLER~ Let's take it question by question, Your 

lS Honoro Is that satisfactory? 

l4 THE COURT g Yes o 

l5 MRo COHLER~ Thank you. 

l6 MR o GRANUCC I g Q. Mr. Johnstonp are the weapons that 

~ you have just described illustrative of weapons found in 

~ searches of the institution? 

l9 A. Yes~ they areo 

lO Q. Are they illustrative of weapons that have been 

U found within the Adjustment Center? 

Ao They areo 
"' 

Q. From time to time? ; 

Ao They areo 

MRo. GRANUCCI ~ That is as far as I intend to gd .•. 
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i Your witness, counsel. 

2 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

5 BY MR o C 0 HLE R: 

"" Q. Mr. Johnston, turning your attention to the tear 

5 gas incident involving Mr. Esparza during November, prior 

6 to Thanksg{ving, 1965~ wh~t was the conversation which 

7 took place involving the obtaining the authority to use 

B tear gas, if you know? 

9 Wello I don't recall the specific words that were 

10 used. · I know that we discussed it, and we did get the per-

ll mission, and we did use it. 

~ ~ Were you personally the gentleman who called for 

13 permission? 

14 Yes. 

15 Q. Do yeti know what kind of_description you gave of 

16 the circumstances, in asking for permission to ~se the tea 

17 gas? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

~. 

Again, I can't recall the words. But--

Can you recall the substance?· 

I·would o~Jy have to assume that I-­

well4 we had better not h~ve assumptions. 

All right then .. _ 

Based upon your exper~ence,_ ~M:J:". Johnston, what 

factors do you consider relevant in a d•terminatio~ whethe · 

or. not to request ·permissi9n to use_ tf,Hir _ga.~?, 
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1 A. . Well, there are many factors, dep~nding upon -the 

2 particular incident that is taking place. In one incident, 

5 . you wou~d consider one set of f~ctors: another incident, 
"' 

4 you would consider another_set of ·factors. But I think one 

5 of the primary things that we are concerned with is main-

6 taining control and order. 

7 Q. You stated, I believeo on direct examination that 

8 the tear gas contained was obtained from control. 

9 Yes o 

10 Q. I don't think we have had a description of control. 

11 would you describe that for t.he Cour_t, please. 

12 A. Control is a kind of nerve center, you might say, 

W of the institution. This is where we keep our master count 

U or the master files for the daily institutional head 

W Our PBX bo~rd is there, and ~e also keep certa~n emer-

W gency equipment there that we can call on and obtain 

~ readily without having to go outside to the armory. 

18 Q. Are all types of tear gas containers which were 

~ available in November 1965 available f~om Control? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

. 24 
I 

~ 

A. r couldn't say. 

Q. Did you specify which type of container ·you wanted ,. 
·''' -~ 

to have authority to use 4 :if you recall? )-

A • I don•t recall. 

~ How many times have you personally ~e~n involved 

in the use of tear gas at Soledad? 
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. . 
l A. By upe~sonally involved," do you meart the super-

2 vision of the use of tear gas? 

5 ~ -Either present at its use, or asked to r~quest 
~ 

4 authority, or using it yourself, involved at least to the 

5 extent that you were on this occasion. 

6 A. Oh, probably in the order of half a dozen times. 

7 I can't be too specific here. 

8 Q. Don 1 t guess. Just your best recollection. 

9 Would you say that the tear gas which was used in the 

10 incident involving Mr. Esparza spread to some extent beyond 

ll Mr. Esparza's cell itself? 

12 A. Yes, it usually does when you use tear gas in a 

~ unit like that. It spreads almost throughout the un~t. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Q. It didntt all stay.in Mr. Esparza's cell, did it? 

A. No, it definitely didn't. 

Q. Some of it was around yourself, was it not? 

A. It waso 

Q. Mr. Johnston, on the six occasions that you had 

been involved-in ~he use of tear gas, ·and particularly on 

this occasion, what is the sensatio~ of having tear gas 

near your face, particularly your eyes? 

It causes them to water. 

Q. To sting a little bit? 

A. I have never really h~d th~~ burn m"ch. There is 

a little--probably a little sensatioa tq it, 1tinging 
:--.; 
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sensation a 

Q. Mr. Johnston~ I understand, and I a• asking you if 

3 you agreeo that when you have tear gas around yo~r face, 

4 and particularly your eyes~ and w~en it is burning a little 

5 bito that if you put water in your eyes it becomes very 

6 stinging. Do you know that? 

7 Not out of my own experience, because I have never 
,\ 

8 put water in my eyes when I have had tear gas in them. 

9 Q. At the time that some liquid was thrown on.~ or 

10 spilled on you or whatever by Mr ~ Wells, did you know 

ll whether or not water in combination with tear gas could 

~ cause a stinging sensation? 

13 

14 Q. 

No. 

In other words, you assumed it was urine because 

~ of the stinging? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. On the basis of that assumption, a man was given 

~ 29 days disciplinary isolation, is that right? 

19 A. I don v t recall what our disposition wa.s. 

20 Q. But the disposition resulted from the incident of 

n the throwing of the liquid, is that correct? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

THE 

MRi 

THE 

That is correct.· 

COU~Tg,_, Throwing of what? 

-COHLER; Liquid a 

- :.--.~-

WITNESS~ Well, nQWr' wait a minuteo I '.m not _quite 
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sure of that even. 

MR~ COHLER: Q. Please explain. 

Yes. I donut remember 1 whether we--

Q. The ll5 would show it, wouldntt' it? 

A. We had-- I donit recall that we wrote a 115 on th~ 

6 throwing of the liquido The disciplinary that we were hear-

7 , ing was over an incident in the past.· 

8 Q. Perh~ps there is an error there. 

9 A. Prior to that time. 

10 Q. Mr. Johnston, you stated that you make inspections 

u periodically. During the course of those inspections, 

~ there is always an examination of the cleanliness by your-

~ self in all areas, including the quiet or strip cell area? 

l4 

l5 Q. 

That is right. 

About how often do your yourself personally make~ 

~ such inspections? 

l7 A. Well, weekly if I can. But I can't always do.it 

~ weekly. So, as I said, I have sometimes delegated it to 

~ the lieutenant and the sergeant. 

Q. The most often, depending upon your schedule, woul 

al be weekly? \1 '' 

That would be t·he most often. 
c 

Q. Do you have any recollection of how often you made 

inspections in June, July and August 19651 

A. No, I. "adn v t .. 
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l Q. You also stated that if you observed a stat~ of 

2 uncleanliness, you followed up by ordering your sergeant 

r or lieutenant to do something about it; is that,correctt 

4 
I 

5 

A. 

Q. 

"' 
Yeso 

After you ordered them to do something about it, 

6 what do you do to follow up beyond t.hat? 

7 Wella I check with them now and then, sometimes 

8 look myself.· 

9 Q. You became a program administrator in December 1964, 

W is that correct? 

11 A. That is correcto 

12 Q. Have you been program administrator in Unit 3 since 

13 that time? 

14 

15 

A. 

Q. 

16 Unit 3? 

17 A. 

18 Q. 

19 A. 

20 Q. 

No, I haven 1 to 

How long have you been program.administrator of 

Since the latter part of April of last year. 

That includes o-wing, does it not? 

It does& 

' generally could. You described several items that 

n be called weapons. 

22 

23 

A. 

Q. 

Yeso 

Can you tell the Court when, iri fact, thos~ parti-_ 

24 cular items which were shown to the Court-were found? 

125 A. No# I couldn't.. I __ .obtained thes~-· exet.m!)les .· from 
I 
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our S-squad, which is a search and security squad. 

Q. They are kept by the S-squad over a period of time? 

A. Yes. They have quite ~ collection of these items. 

Q. Several of the items you ·described involved the 

use of toothbrush handles, is that correct? 

A. That is corre~t. 

Q. Toothbrushes are now availabl~ ~n the quiet or 

8 strip cells area, are they not? 

9 ~ Yes, they are. 

w ~- In deciding to make them available, do you know 

ll whether or not-- Withdraw that. E~cuse me. 

~ You have also described, and there have been marked an 

13 entered in evidence as Defendants' exhibits, a plastic 

u washbasin and plastic water pitcher. You stated that ther 

~ was one dozen ordered, and three sets now remain. Is that 

M correct? 

17 

18 

A. 

Q. 

That is correct. 

When these were ordered, was there any expectation 

19 that they might be destroyed or dama~ed by inmates? 

20 A. I don't know whether there was or not.· 

21 Q. Would~t you say generally the inmates in the quie 
~ 

~ cell or strip cell wera hostile and a destructive group? 

23 

~ 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, ! would say that. 

In fact, generally that is why they are supposed t 

~ be there. 
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A. . Correct o 

Q. Wasntt there an expectation when the items were put 

S in the cell that they may be daxy.aged? 

4 A. I don 9 t know. 

5 Q. The inmates were put in the quiet or strip cell 

6 because, at least in part, they damaged--

7 A. Maybe I misunderstand you. Bu.,t if you are saying, 

8 did we talk about them damaging the things before we put 

9 them in there, ·no, we did not. If we had something up in 

D the babks of our heads somewhere that they might destroy 

,l them 1 this might be true a I don't know. 

.2 Q. Isn't it fair to say t.hat the people who are put 

3 in the strip cells or quiet cells are more or less a 

4 destructive lot, and it didn't even need to be said, it was 

5 more or less expected that some of these would be damaged. 

6 A. That is what you are saying, not me. 

7 MR. GRANUCCI: Object to the question as argumentative, 

8 Your Honor. 

9 

0 

THE COURT: 

MR. C'OHLER: 

Sustained. 

Q. When one ~were ordered, one dozen 

1 sets, did iou yourself have any estimate as to how long 
• 

2 that do zen might last? 

A. No, I have no idea how long. 

Q. To your knowledge have any more plast~c pitchers 

5 and plastic waterbasins been ordered? 
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l A. Yes. I have recently replaced an order for another 

2 dozen. 

MR. COBLER~ Thank you, Mr.J Johnston~ 

4 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

5 BY MR. GRANUCCI: 

6 Q. Mr. Johnston,.without sounding facetious, I want 

7 to ask you whether you know the difference between water 

s and urine. 

9 A. I think I do, yes. 

10 Q. Are you sure that the liquid that wells threw on 

U you was not water? 

12 A. I couldn't really say this, no. I assumed that it 

~ was urine because it burned my eyes. 

l4 Q. Did it have any smell? 

l5 A. I canvt say whether it did or not. 

l6 Q. You can't recall? 

l7 A. I can't recall. 

lS MR. GRANUCCI: Your Honor, I have no further questions 

l9 of this witness. Perhaps the Court would have some. 

!0 THE COURT: I have no questions. 

!1 MR. GRANUCCI: May he be excused? , 

!2 THE COURT: Yeso .'' 

!3 (Witness excuseGh, r 
l4 

., 
MRo GRANUCCI: Call Mr. DeCarli, please~ 
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1 A. ALFRED DE CARLI 11 

12 called as a witness on behalf of the defendants 11 be~ng 

3 ·first duly sworn u was. examined a)ld testified as follows: 

THE CLERK: State your .name and occupation for the 

5 court. 

6 THE WITNESS: A. Alfred DeCarli, Correctional Counselor, 

7 correctional Training Facility. 

8 THE COURT: D-e-C-a-r-1-i? 

9 THE WITNESS: Yes sir . 

. 0 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

.l BY MR. GRANUCCI: 

2 Q. Mr. DeCarli, what grade of correctional counselor 

3 are you? 

4 

5 

A. 

Q. 

Grade I. 

What are the duties of a correctional counselor 

6 in grade I? 

7 A. well, there is many. I sit on--in on classificati n 

8 disciplinary hearings, censor problem mail, case work, 

9 Board reports, other duties, searchin~ foi lost items of 

) clothing or personal property. 

l Q. -,~To what section of the prison are you assigned? 

A. Adjustment Centar. O-wing. in particular. 

Q. Your duties cause you to be in o-wing? 

A. Yes. 

~ What percentage of your time do ~on spend in o~win 
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1.l A. ·I am assigned full time. There is times whelf I 

2 am elsewhere, records, mail room, or areas like that. I 

3 ·would say 90 percent of the time in the wing itself. 
"' 

4 

5 

Q. Are you in the isolation section·of O-wing? 

A. My duties take me there. 

6 Q. Your duties take you there. Do your duties ever 

7 ~ake you to the area of the quiet cells? 

8 

9 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, they do. 

Mr. DeCarli, were you employed at the institution 

w in Jul~ of 1965 from the 9th to the 20th? 

11 A. I was employed there, but not in the Adjustment 

12 Center. 

~ ~ Where were you employed? 

U ~ I was at the North Facility. 

~ ~ What were your duties th~re? 

16 A. 1 I was the training officer. 

~ ~ Did you have anything to do with the placement of 

18 plaintiff Jordan in a quiet cell from July 9th through 

~ July 20th 1965? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

I did not. 

Does the perf.ormar'rce of yQur duties take you int-o 
J 

I• 

the area of the quiet cells? 

A. 

Q. Have you had an opportunity to observe the condit~ 

of cleanliness of thos~ quiet cells? 
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1 A. . Yes. 

2 Q. I wonder if you would tell the Court your 

3 descript~on of those conditions~ 

4 A. The first thing that I would be affected by might 

5 be the smell, body, a musky odoro And after spending a 

6 few minutes there, maybe a half hour, I don't notice it any 

7 more. The condition otherwise, of cleanliness, I couldn't 

8 tell. I would notice that there might be coffee stains on 

9 the bars from cups. Aside from that, I don't know~ If 

w there ~ere filth--if there was filth in there I didn't 

11 notice it. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

How about fecal matter spread on the walls? 

I never seen any. 

Vomit on the walls? 

None. 

Urine? 

No. 

When you go back to a quiest cell area, how often 

~ do you spend back there? 

20 A. In some cases I have spent an hour and·a half ther 

U with one person. 

22 THE COURT: That would be approximating the cell?· Or 

e 1n the cell? Or where? 

MRo GRANUCCI: I am going into that, Your Honor. 

Q. When you are back there, where do you stand iri 
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relation to the cell? 

A. I stand on the inside, not on the inside of the 

! 3 . bars, but just across. from him on the inside. 
~' 

4 Q. Is that in the little ante room between the outside 

5 wall and the bar gate? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. You say you spent an hour and a half in a quiet 

a cell with a particular individual-- Withdraw that. 

9 You say you spent an hour and a half visiting with.an 

w individual in front of a quiet cell. 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

Do you recall the name of that individual? 

This was Esparza. 

Do you recall when you made that visit? 

I'm nof positive. This ~appened shortly after th! 

16 gassing incident that we have been talking about • · If that 

~ was the day before Thanksgiving, it wasn't the next day 

~ because I was off. But very possibly on Friday. 

19 

20 

21 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

How long did you spend with E~parza? 

I estimate about an hour and a half. 

Without going into what Mr. Esparza told you, did 

~ he make any complaint t~ you about hav~ng been tear-ga•sed?. 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

He did not~ 

Did you notice the effects of the tear gas? 

There was $light ir·ritation to my eyes·, a~d t-hat 
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was about it. 

Q. 

Ao 

Q. 

Was it such that it was uncomfortable? 

Slightly, but it didn't make me leave. 

Didn't make you leave. Is there anything in your 

5 mind now that would cause you to recall the condit~on of 

6 the cleanliness in E•parza's cell at that time you visited 

7 him? 

A. No, I don't. 8 

9 Q. was it any better then than the conditions that 

w ordin~rily prevail in the isolation section as you observe 

11 them? 

12 MR. COHLER: Your Honor, the witness has already said 

~ he doesn 9 t recall the conditions. I don«t think this lead-

U ing should be permitted. 

15 MR. GRANUCCI: All right. 

16 Q. Could you tell us why you spent an hour 'and a half 

~ with Esparza at that time? 

18 A. Well, Esparza, as a rule, is a person who needs a 

~ lot of attention, and ~hen he gets g6ing--I think we ~ave 

00 observed this--he just goes on and on and on. There wasn' 

U much I was doing. I was doing a lot of listening, and he 

~ was telling me about hLs past, his problems at·other in-

23 stitutions, and family, and future. He just went--he caul 

24 

25 

go on for hours .. 

Q. It was part of your duties to l{s~en to th~ inmate 
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1 and talk to them? 

2 A. Yes. 

5 Q. c What is the purpose of .that? 

A. Well, possibly to draw out some·of the hostility 

5 and--he has got to talk to someone, and I was familiar with 

6 his past to some extent, through the fileso 

7 At this time I felt that he had been upset pretty badly 

s a few days before. I wasn't going to do any counseling. 

9 I was just going to listen to him and let him--he had 

w settl~d; he was pretty, I would say, responsible at that 

u time, and he could talk without getting upset. He just 

~ talked at length. 

15 Q. I want to jump back a little bit to two days befor 

14 We.re you present at a Disciplinary Committee hearing befor 

15 the cells of Wells and Esparza when the tear gas was used.? 

16 A. Yes, I was. 

17 Q. Would you narr~te to us your recollection of ~hat 

18 incident? 

19 A. Well, we had--the group that ~as mentioned earlie~ 

00 had gone back to hear Esparza's case--and I dori't recall' 

U th~ disposition, but he wasn't happy with it. So we heard !. , .. -

~ it, and the disposition-was given, and then we left h~s 

~ area to go next door to Wells' cell. He also had a di~-

ciplinary. 24 

25 As we attempted to hear the case on W~:flls, we wer·e 
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!l' unable to complete it because Esparza had started clamoring 

2 the bars and had set up such a commotion that it was im-

3 possible to hear what Wells wasjtalking abouto So we had 
~ 

4 to leave the area. We were not able to ·continue. 

5 And we left the areai went out to the officers' area. 

6 And to my best recoll~ction, I would say that from the tim 

7 we left that area to the time that Esparza was gassed, I 

8 would estimate it was probably eight to ten minutes in 

9 which the noise I don't believe ever let up. It just buil 

w up to ~ tremendous crescendo and state there. You could 

U hear noises from upstairs and on the "Mam side, so other 

~ people were getting irritated by then and made some attemp s 

~ to join in. At that time he was gassed. 

l4 Q. Do you know how much tear gas was used? 

l5 A. Two bursts, short bursts. 

l6 Q. They were short bursts? 

l7 A. 

l8 Q. Getting back to Esparza, have you had occasion to 

~ counsel with him since November of 19~5? 

10 A. Numerous times. 

;~ Have you noticed any improvement in Esparza? 
\ .. ·· ·-.· ~ .. 

A. There has been a great improvement.. As a matter--~ 

~ 
I 

of fact, he is being recommended for minimum institution 

at the present timeo 

Q. Is it institutional policy, as you· understand·_ it, 

! • . 



333 
?:15 

. 
1 when an inmate is confined in a quiet cell to just let him 

2 

3 

4 

5 

sit and rot? 

A~ No, 

Q. What 

A. This 

this is 

is the 

is part 

not the policyc 
) 

"" policy? 

of my job, to visit him whenever I 

6 get in the ~rea-- First of all, I generally go down there 

7 when someone has asked for me, either ~rom the officers'--

8 at the officers' request, at the inmates' request through 

9 the officers, or a note. And when I go in to see one pers n. 

w I see whoever wants to see me. This is the way it is 

U throughout the wing. 

12 Q. It is your duty to counsel with these inmates: and 

13 what is the purpose of that counseling? 

l4 A. Well, I think my reports have some bearing on mayb 

~ the Adult Auth6rity. I have to P.resent as clear a picture 

lS as possible to the Adult Authority, and if I know.the man 

~ I think I can do a better job than if I just read the 

~ records and reported on that. So I get to know these p~op e 

l9 quite we 11 • 

lO Q. Do you attempt to draw them out? 

A. Yes, their families, their background, their futur , 

~ problems that they have been confront~~.with either befdre 

'3 coming to the institution or problents that have-: -they have 

M been confronted with on the main line. 

Q. Mr. DeCarli, in your opinion, is the improvement 
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1 that has been noted in •sparza, at least in part, related 

2 to the counseling and other services furnished to him by 

I 3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

the institution? 

.A.. I believe so, yes . 

Q. Now, do you know.the plaintiff? 

.A.. Yes. 

Q. Have you had occasion to 6ounsel him? 

.A.. Yes. 

9 Q. What is the nature of the contacts that you have 

w had with the plaintiff? 

11 

12 

.A.. 

Q. 

Primarily in processing writs . 

What does that involve? 

13 A. Well, there is quite a lengthy process. The writ--

14 the rough draft is picked up by myself, delivered to the 

15 education department for typing, when it has been typed 

M it is returned to me and I return it to the person who 

17 wan ted it. He reviews it. If it is satisfactory, he will. 

18 ask me to provide envelopes, whatever it takes to get it 

~ mailed. Also, I furnish legal paper, ·writing pape~. 

~ ~ The inmate has to pay for those legal ~upplies, 

21 doesn't he? 

22 A. Since I have bee;:n there, the inmates do not. This 

~ is, I~~magine, part of the procedure. But it is not very 

U expensive to provide it, it saves a lot of time, so we 

~ just go ahead and provide itQ 
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l Q. . Do you now or have you ever had- a-ny malice towards 

2 the plaintiff Jordan? 

5 A. No., 

Q. Did you conspire with the ~ther defendarits to de-

5 prive him of his constitutLonal ri~hts? 

6 MR .. COHLER: For t·he record, Your H'onor, I object to 

7 the question as eli~iting a response bearing upon something 

s the Court must decide. 

9 THE COURT: Overruled. 

10 THE WITNESS: No o 

ll CROSS-EXAMINATION 

l2 BY MR. COHLER: 

Q. Mr. DeCarli, do you have an opinion as to whether 

14 or not t-he plaintiff has improved over the past six months? 

15 A. I think he is well controlled. 

16 Q. T~ank you. Mr. DeCarli, during the so-call~d gas 

~ incident involving Mr. Esparza, where were you standing 

~ when the gas was turned on? 

19 

20 

A. 

Q. 

21 Where? 

22 A. 

23 time. 

I was just outside of the ce11·. 

More precisely, where? Near a window £lap? A door? 

No. I was in line with some of the activity at t 

I was outside the cell, approximately four or five 

~ feet outside of the outer door, in the area, bU·· ~Qtside 

1
25 the o·uter door. 
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~- Was there anyone standing between you and the 

outer door? 

I couldnVt say. Ther~ was activity thereQ There 

4 were four or five around. I couldn~t say at all timeso 

5 At times, I was in direct line. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

ll 

Q. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

At the time the gas was turned on. 

Yesj I was able to obser~e this. 

You actually saw the gas being turned on or off? 

Yes. 

You saw the officer's hand turning the knob? 

Noo But I observed the officer holding the con-

12 tainer .. I did not see the movement of his hand. He had 

~ his back to me. 

l4 

l5 

l6 

Q. 

Q. 

There was still this noise going on? 

Yes. · 

Mr. DeCarli, you have related your reco~lection of 

~ your observation as to the state of cleanliness during the 

~ time that you have been in o-wing. When did you first com 

l9 to o-wing? 

lO 

l2 

!3 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

About the middle of August. 

1965? 

1965. 
. ' 

In your present capac.ity, .Mr. DeCarli, are you 

responsible~ or at least a part of your resppnsibili-ti.es, .· 

for the stat~ 6£ cleanline-s artd the location of.~nmates 
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l in o-wing? 

A. I don't believe I am responsible. 

Q. Are you partly respons~ble? 

2 

S· 

4 A. If I see a condition that is ·a hazard, I believe I 

5 would call it to my supe~ior's attention. 

6 Q. Mr. DeCarli, you ~ay that you ~poke with Mr. 

7 Esparza for about an hour and a half~ 

8 

9 Q. 

Yes. 

About two days after the gassing, is that ~ight? 

lO A.· Two or three days, I am not sure. 

~ ~ And two or three days after the gas incident, there 

2 was still enough gas around to irritate your eyes? Is 

.S that right ? 

A. Yes. ~4 

.5 Q. Incid~ntally, Mr. DeCarli, Mr. Esparza was a stamp 
~ 

J collector, wasn't he? 

.7 A. Not at the timea 

. 8 Q . Not at the time of the gassing. 

l9 A. Right. 

Q. But in the time that you had known him1 

ll A. This has been in several months past. 

~ MR. COHLER: Thank you. 

13 MR" GRANUCCI: I have no further questions of this 

U witness. Perhaps the Court does? 

THE COURT: He may be excused .• 
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l MRo. GRANUCCI: Your Honor, would this be an appro-priate 

2 time for a recess? 

~ THE .COURT: Yes. 

4 {A short recess was ta~en.) 

5 MR. GRANUCCI: Call Mr. Swagerty, please. 

6 THE CLERK: Mr. Swagerty. 

7 CLEMETT L$ SWAGERTY I] 

8 called as a witness on behalf of the defendants, being 

9 first duly swor·n, was examined and testified as follows; 

o THE CLERK: State your name and occupation. 

1 THE WITNESS: Clemett Swagerty, Associate Superintende t, 

2 Correctional Training Facility, Soledad. 

4 

6 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. GRANUCCI: 

~ Mr. sw•gerty, how long have you been Assoqiate 

Superintendent of the Correctional Training Facility? 

A. Since November 28 1965. 

Q. What did you do before then? 

~ I was Program Administrator at the California Men' 

College in San Luis Obispo. 

~ Wha~ are the duties of an associate superintendent~ 

Ao At the correctional Training Facility, I am in 

char9e of thr~e program units and Central services~ ·, 

Q. What are the three program units? 

Unit 1, Unit 2 and Unit 3. These comprise the 
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hdusing in the total institution. 

721. 

Q. Do your duties also relate to the classification 

3 . of irimates? 

4 . A. Yes. Each program.unit has its classification 

5 committee 0 

6 Q. Do you know the pl~intiff Robe~t Jordan? 

7 A. Yes, I doo 

8 Q. Did you have anything to do with the incident that 

9 brought about h~s confinement iri a quiet cell in July 1965? 

10 No, I did not .. 

ll Q. Were you in any way connected with that confine-

12 ment? 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

LS 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Q. 

No, I was not. 

Or with the conditions of that confinement? 

No .. 

Do you have any malice toward the plaintiff? 

No, I do not .. 

Did you conspire with the other defendants to de-

~ prive him of his constitutional rights1 

lO A. No, I did not. 

ll MR. GRA~UCCI: Yo~r witness, counsel. 
., 'l.. 

l2 ,MRc COHLER: Excuse ~e, Your Honor. For the record, 
I 

the ~ame.objeqtion. 

··.THE COURT: Overruled. 

5 MR. COHLER: I have no questions of this witness, 'You.r 

Honor. 
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1 THE COURT: Thank you" 

2 MR. GRANUCCI: May Mr. Swagerty be excused? 

3 THE COURT~ Yes. 

"" (Witness excused.) 

5 MRc GRANUCCI: Call Mr. Kiepura, please. 

6 THE CLERK: Mro Kiepura. 

7 WILLIAM T. KIEPURAg 

8 called as a witness on behalf of the defendants, being 

9 first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows: 

10 THE CLERK: State your name and occupation to the Court. 

11 THE WITNESS: William T. Kiepura, Correctional 

12 Counselor, Correctional Training Facility, Soledad. 

13 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

14 BY MR. GRANUCC I: 

15 Q. 

16 are you? 

17 

18 

A. 

Q. 

Mro Kiepura, what grade of correctional counselor 

Grade II. 

What are the duties of the correctional counselor, 

19 garde II? 

20 A. Administrative to a g~~at degree, supervising the 

21 grade I counselors, sitting on classification_ committe~s 

~ and disciplinary committees. 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Where are you assigned as a correctional counselor. 

Unit 3o 
_ .. -.. 

Does that include the Adjustment Center? 
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8 

9 

10 

11 

12 
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A~ · It does. 

~ Does that include O-wing? 

Ao .It does. 

Q.. Does that include the Isolation Row? 

A. It doeso 

Q. Do your duties take you into O~wing frequently? 

A. They doo 

Q. Do they take you into the isolation section? 

A. Occasionally0 

Q. Occasionally? 

A. YesG 

Q. Could you estimate how often, say, in the period 

13 of a week, you go into the isolation section? 

14 A. It varies, sometimes I may go in there daily for 

15 two or three days in a row, agai~ it might be once a week. 

16 Q. Have you had. an opportunity to obser~e the condi-

~ tions of cleanliness in the isolation section? 

18 A. I have. 

19 Q. How long have you been making·visits. to the isola~ 

20 tion section? 

21 

22 

23 

'24 I 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Two years, a little over two years. 

And you have observed the conditions of cleanlines ? 

I have. 

What are those conditions? 

Satisfactory, in my opiniono 
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l Q. Does that include the strip cells? 

A. That includes the quiet cells 6 yes. 2 

5 Q. Do you remember the Esp~rza incident involving the 
' "' 4 use of tear gas in connect~on wit~ inmate E.sparza? 

5 

6 

7 

Q. 

A. 

Some details, yes~ 

Could you narrate to the Court what you rememberG 

Well, we were back at the cell, hearing inmate 

8 Esparza's d~sciplinary. When we finished we proceeded to 

9 inmate Wells, who I believe was in the next cell, and 

w inmate.Esparza apparently became somewhat distressed at 

ll our decision and began to make considerable noise, so much 

~ so that we were unable to hear inmate Wells and complete 

U his disciplinary hearing at that particular time. 

U We left to go back into the back end of the unit in the 

~ officers' section and Mr. Johnston obtained permission to 

16 use gas. When the gas came, we went back and· Mr ~, Mata 

17 then proceeded to use the gas when inmate Esparza refused 

~ to follow the instructions. 

19 

20 

Q. 

Q. 

A. 

Do you know how much gas was used? 

As far as I can remember, o~ly two bur~ts. 

Were they long bursts?: Or short bursts? 
.. ·.·. ··· .. .' . 

very short burs~s. 

21 

22 

23 MR. GRANUCCI g May I hav~ plaintiffts Exhibit No. 3, 

24 if-lease. 
\. 

25 Q. 

.. 

Now, Mr. Kiepurao directing your attention to July 



J43 
725 

I l 

2 

13. 1965, did you participate in a disciplinary commit!tee 

proceeding Mr. Jordan? 

3 £ According to the record, I did. 
) 

4 Q. Did you have any independe.nt recollection~ of that 

5 committee proceeding? 

6 A. None. 

7 Q. In fact, your sole memory is what is on the record 

8 there? 

9 A. Correct. 

10 Q. Were you the person who wrote the disposition find-

11 ing on that, on that CDC Form 115? 

12 MRo COHLER: Your Honor, in view of the witness' state-

13 rnent that he has no recollection* I think the only proper 

14 question is whether he recognizes his handwriting. 

15 THE COURT:· He may, by examination, refresh his re-

16 collection of events. 

17 THE WITNESS: This is my handwriting. 

18 MR. GRANUCCI: Q. Would you read what you wrote there. 

19 A. ~Denies bar rattling, but did-spit on officer. If 

20 not treated right, will spit on him again and ~gain. Will 

21 slap him in the face if he gets a chance. Vulgar and dis.;. 
'. 

22 
~. ' Disposition: LST-1, 29 days respectful towards committee~ 

23 isolation. u 

24 Q. Now, was plaintiff confined in a quiet cell at that 

25 time? 
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~ I couldn~t say. 

Q. That disciplinary form and the ·disposition have 

3 nothing on it about the confinement of inmate Jordan in a 

4 quiet cell as part of the punishme.nt, does it? 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

lO 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

No, it does not. 

Would there be a r~ason for that? 

Yeso 

What is the reason? 

I forgot to write it. 

~ Ordinarily 6 as a matter of practice, when an inmate 

ib rought out of a quiet cell for a disciplinary committee 

hearing and the matter is heard and determined, is there 

a discussion as to whether he should be returned to the 

quiet cell or not, or whether his housing status should be 

changed? 

A. 

Q. 

There is a discussion. 

Based on your general practice, do you believe that 

~ such a discussion occurred in this case? 

~ to general practice, not your memory. 

And I am referrin 

20 

21 

I would assume so. 

You would assume so. 

~ Now, Mr. Kiepura, d~·you have any malice toward the 

23 

24 

25 

plaintiff? 

Ao None. 

~ Did you conspire with the other de£endants to 
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7 

8 

9 

lO 

11 

12 

13 

14 
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deprive him of his federally pr6tected constitution~l 

rights? 

MRo COHLER; Same objection, Your Honor. 
J 

THE COURT~ Overruled. 

THE WITNESS: I did not. 

MRa GRANUCCI: Your witness, counsel. 

CROSS-EXAMINATibN 

BY MRo COHLE.R: 

Q. Mr. Kiepura, if I understand your testimony cor-

rectly, you have no recollection of the disciplinary hear-

ing other than what you read from the form 115, which you 
-~~ 

have .shown us, is that correct? 

A. That is correct$ 

Q. Even looking at that form it doesn~t refresh your 

15 recollection?· It is only what is on the form that you kno ? 

16 A. That is correct. 

17 Q. Mr. Kiepura, how do you remember that you forgot 

'18 something you didn it even remember to do at the time you 
i 

~ were filling out the fOrm, when you have no independent 

~ recollection at all? 

21 MR. GRANUCCI: Your Honor~ objection as to the form of 

22 the question as highly_ compound and confu.s~ng" 

23 THE COURT: Sustained~ 

24 MR .. COHLER: ~ ,Mr. Kiepura, you te~tified t6at you 

25 forgot to write 11 quicft cell," or something: 9f that nature 
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'n the disposition on the form ilS which you were showno l. . 

would you expl"ain to the Court, please, how you are pre-

sently able to testify that you forgot to do that. 

Ao Becausee if I remember correctly, this information 

is on the 114 form, and knowing Sergeant Friedrick and our 

practices,. I know he will not write aqything down unless 

we are decided in the committee" He wrote it down that 

8 - that was the decision and therefore I must have forgotten 

9 it in this caseo 

10 Q. In other words. it is no recollection of what you 

ll did or didn 1 t do: it is a statement you are making based 

~ upon what is your understanding of the general practice. 

13 Correct a 

14 Q. Regardless of the reasons for there being no in-

15 dication of u quiet cell" on the disposition which was 

M written, there was approval, was there not, on the form 

~ 115 itself, other than those who were in attendance at the 

18 hearing? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

RHD? 

A. 

Q. 

Ao 

Q. 

Ao 

Q. 

Correcto 

Can you identify what appears to be the initials 

' : 1-c , 

Mr. Donnellyo 

Was Mr~ Donnelly present at the hearing? 

No .. 

Can you identify what appears to be Mr. Fprden•s 
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.signature as his? 

2 ~ Non I cannato 

5 ~- Does it look to you like it says Forden? 

4 A. It says Forden, yes, but I _don 1 t know it well 

5 enough to identify that as his signature. 

6 Q. Was Mr~ Forden .at the meeting? 

7 A. No. 

8 Q. No one was there except yourself and Sergeant 

9 Friedrick, Mr. Jordah. and an escort Officer Spoon. Is 

W that correct? 

ll 

12 

A. I would assume so. 

MR. GRANUCCI: Objection, Your Honor. There is no 

~ testimony, at least from this witness 6 as to identity of 

~ ~he escort officer. 

l5 MRo COHLERg · Q. · Mr~ Kiepura, you say you were present 

~ at the so-called gas incident involving Mr. Espar~a. Can 

17 you recall where you were standing when the gas was being 

~ used? 

A. 

Q. 

Q. 

I believe I was quite close to .his cell. 

Can you recall where you were? 

Not within a foot or two, no. 

Do you recal~ whether or not you saw Officer Mata 

I turning the control device on ~he gas cylinder? 

No, I do not. 

MR. COHLERg Thank you. 
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z 

MRo GRANUCCI: No further questions of this witne~s, 

your Honora 

3 THE COURTg Thank youQ 

4 MRo GRANUCCig May he be excused? 

6 THE COURTg Yes sir. 

6 (Witness excused.) 

7 MRa OAKES~ Call Mr. Robert Hoagland, pleaseG 

8 THE CLERK~ Mr. Hoagland. 

9 ROBERT Rc HOAGLANDa 

w called as a witness on behalf of the defendants, being 

u first duly sworno was examined and testified as follows: 

l2 THE CLERK: State your name and occupation to the Cour c 

l3 THE WITNESS: Robert R. Hoagland. I am a Correctional 

~ ~rogram Supervisor I at Sierra Conservation Center, 

~ Jamestown, Califorriia, formerly of CTF, Soledad. 

l6 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

l7 BY MR. OAKES: 

l8 Q. What is a correctional program supervisor? 

19 A. Well, in essence it is a correctional officer with 

W case work# case work duties: that is, he is as~igned a cas 

n load of 16 inmates, and he is their case worker and re-

~ sponsible for reports and communications, group counseling· 

23 with this 16. 

24 Q. Were you a correctional program supervisor while 
l <· 

25 , you w.e:J;e at Soledad? 
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They do not have that status there. 

When did you transfer to Sierra Cons~rvation Cente ? 

I reported September 1 of '65. 
J 

~0 

Prior to that time you were an o~ficer at the 

5 california Training Facility at Soledad? 

6 That is correct. 

7 Q. How long were you an offic~r at the Training 

8 Facility? 

9 Approximately nine years. 

lO Q. During your assignment to Soledad, were you as-

u signed to the o-wing? 

12 

l3 

l4 

l5 

l6 

l7 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sirQ 

How long were you in O-wing? 

Approximately seven yearse 

What watch did you work? 

First and second. 

During the period of July 1965, were you assigned 

l8 in o-wing? 

l9 A. Yeso 

lO Q. What watch were you then wo~king? 

I worked first floor 8 isolation officer, second 

l2 watch. 

Q. Do you know Mr. Jordan? 

~es ~ 

Q. Do.1o~ ;ecall Mr. Jordan b•ing in a wuiet eel~ or 
I ' 
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1 strip cell during July of last year? 

2 

s 

A. . Yes a / 

Q. . Do you have any specifip recollections about that 

4 period? 

5 By date? By date? 

6 Q. Yes. 

7 No 6 not necessarily by date. 

8 ~ You have some recollections of that period? 

9 A. Yes. 

w ~- Would you describe your duties while you were 

U assigned to O-wing much the same as what Mr. Mata describe 

12 this morning? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Were you required to provide water during your 

15 watch? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. How much water would you provide? 

18 A. Well, the supply wasn*t limited. It was to meet 

~ the demand of the inmate. 

20 Q. How often would you bring w~ter? 

21 Regularly scheduled, t\(ice a day,· in the morning 
··~· 

~ and the afternoon. 

23 

24 

25 

Q. Would you provide water more ofte·n? 

Ao. More often? 

Q. Yes. 
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A. Yes • 

Q. Did you provide water more often? 

A. _ Yesu I have provided water~ 

Q. Would you ever res_trict an inmate t.o one cup? 

A. 

Q. Do the inmates often have more'than one cup? 

A. One cup of water? Or one cup? 

8 Q. No. Do the inmates have more than one cup availabl 

9 to them to hold water? 

w ~- Yesu they have more. 

11 

12 

15 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

You allowed them to keep mo+e than one? 

Yes. 

If an inmate had two cups in his cell and you gave 

U him water, would you fill up both of his cups? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. Would you fill up his cups, let him drink it down, 

~ and leave water in the cups when you left? 

18 Yes. 

19 Q. Would that reduce the number of trips you were 

00 required to make back to the qui~t cell area, ~erhaps? 

21 

22 Q. 

It could 0 yeso 
• l \ 

Have you ever noticed il)mates washing their hand&--

i with the water in these cups? 

24 

25 Q. 

Yes. 

Do you also supply toilet paper td the cells? 
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1 Ao. Yes. 

Q. Did they use the toilet paper to clean their hands? 

A. They could have 0 I do.n • t recall seeing, any inmate 
~ 

1 4 do that Q 

5 Q. You were required to clean the cell block during 

6 your watch o were you? 

7 That is correctc 

8 Q. What procedures did you follow when you cleaned the 

9 cell block? 

10 I had a policy of--in the strip cell areas on Satur 

11 day was our scrub day, and we would take back the mops and 

~ the scrub brushes and there is a hose back there. And we 

~ would have soap powder and cleanser. And I had a friend 

U in the culinary department that would supply me with a 

15 bleach 1 quite strong bleach e you. had to take a teaspoonf~Ul 

M to a gallon of water or something like this, and we used 

~ all of these articles in cleaning. And there was a toilet 

18 brush. 

19 

20 

21 

Q. 

Q. 

Did you use ~he bleach to clean the stools? 

Yese the whole cell with it. 

Was the equipment made available to the inmates to 

22 clean thei~: cells 6 particularly.,having in mind those inmates 
~ .. 

23 

24 

25 

in the quiet cells? was equipmen:b ,made available to the 

inmates~to clean their cells at times other than the ~eekl 

c leand~ng.? ·. 
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l A. Every aay. Every day I had a cell broom th•t I 

. 2 just left in the tunnel area where--well, it· wasn t t always 

5 in the tunnel area either--but it was available to me and 
"" 

4 the inmates would ask if they could sweep t.heir. cell, or 

5 1 would ask them 0 The broom was available every day. 

6 Q. Are the quiet·cells cleaned at'any other times? 

7 A. Are they cleaned any other times? 

8 Q. Yes. 

9 A. Other than on Saturdays? 

10 Q. · Yes~ 

11 A. Wellu they are cleaned when.the inmate leaves the 

12 cell. 

Q. Is he required to clean the cell before he leaves 

14 it? 

15 A. He was when I had the section, yes. 

16 Q. He may be held over if he does not clean·,the cell, 

~ is that correct? 

18 A. Yes. Well-- Yes, that is correct. 
~ - .. : 

19 Q. You also fed the inmates duririg this watch, did you 

20 not? . 

21 

22 

A. 

Q. What were your policies concerning the flaps during 

~ the period of July 1965? 

24 

25 

MRo COHLERg Excuse meo I didn't hear the question. 

MRo OAKES~ Q. What were the policies· conce,rning the 
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1 flaps on the cell doors during July 1965? 

2 MR. COHLER: Your Honor, I think there ought to be a 

~ foundation of whether or not apy policy which existed was 
~ 

4 followed before the policy is stated. 

5 THE COURT: You may lay the foundation. 

6 MR~ OAKES~ Q. Was there a policy concerning the flaps. 

7 A. Yeso there was. 

8 Q. Did you follow the policy? 

9 A. Yes. 

10 What was the policy, please? 

11 A. The policy was that if a man was not making a dis-

~ turbance and wasn't causing a problem that might disrupt 

~ the rest of the unit, the flaps would be left down. This 

U wasn't followed necessarily all the timei but at any time 

W it wasn't followed it was at the_request of the inmate ip 

16 his cell. He would.rather have his flaps u~ than down. 

U This has happened. 

18 Q. Does this happen fairly often? 

19 A. Right. 

20 Q. Do you usually leave the·· doo_rs open? 
·,. 

21 A. I left them open onl'Y during the feedings or whezy 
~-

~ we were scrubbing down.or something like that, or unless 

~ the cell was empty. If the cell was empty, the door and 

the flaps were all down. 24 

25 Q. When you went off duty around, I believe,. 3145 in 
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l 
the afternoon--

Approximately. 

Q. When you went off duty~ would you norma~l~ secu~e 

the strip cell area? 

A. Yes~ 

6 
Q. What would this include? 

7 A. Well, it wasnvt just the strip cell area. The 

8 whole unit was secured, or that section. It consisted of 

9 looking at every cell to see that the cell was on double-up 

lO and that included the strip cell area. The strip cell 

U doors were closed and the flaps were up. 

12 Q. The flaps were up when you left? 

l3 A. Yes, the flaps were up-- Yes, when I left a unit 

u and turned the unit over to the relieving officer, the 

~ third watch oificer6 the unit was secured. This was the 

l6 policy. 

l7 Q. Was it your policy to leave the control of the 

~ flaps up to the next shift? 

l9 A. Yes. Well, they had an Adjustment Center sergeant 

m and an officer, and it was their watch, and th~y handled it 

ll Now, I would like to say here, too, that there were 

~ times when I didn 9 t--or.the flaps were opened wheri I left. 

~ But normally these were specific reasons for it; for 

~ example, after I had come back and $erviced th• strip 

!5 as far as the water and the toilet paper· ai1d so for;th·, the~ 
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I would go flush the toilets" A lot of times orange -peels 

and et cetera were dropped down into the toilet itsel£, 

and when I flushed ito it flooded the cell~ So that meant 

I had to get all of the equipment ~ut, go back to the cell 

and clean it up, and in a lot of cases I. left the doors an 

so forth open to faci~itate the drying ~nd so forth of the 

7 cell. But the officer that was relieving me would be made 

8 aware of why this was left open. 

9 Q. Do you have any specific recollections about any 

10 incidents concerning the doors or flaps of Mr. Jordan's 

ll cell during this period? 

12 Ao All I can say is I remember the policy and not--

1:3 no 6 I can ' t . 

14 Q. Do you remember any requests being made of you 

15 Mr. Jordan? 

16 A. I remember one time Jordan--I was securing the 

~ cells in the evening, the afternoon, and Jordan asked me 

~ I would leave the door open for a minute. a• wanted to 

a finish something he was writing. He w~s writing~-well, I 

20 don't know what he was writing, but he said he· had a few 

n more lines to finish and would I leave it open for a few 

~ minutes. So I went in and secured the rest of the cells, 

~ and he--when~- came back to his cell, he said, •r got.a 

H few more things to do, a few more things to write,• and I 

~ waited momentarily while he finishede arid b• thanked ~e, 
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and I secured his cell. 

Q. Do you think you had a fairly ·good relationship 

with Mr. Jordan? 
"' A. Oho yes, I have known Jox:dan for what, for four 

years, five yearso something like ·that. 

Q. Du~ing the course-of your duties you spent quite~ 

bit of time in the wuiet cell area? 

Oh, yesQ 

Q. You spent quite a bit of time.inside the cells 

w themselvesq in the ante room of the cells? 

11 A. Yes. It was the best policy if you wanted to talk 

~ to a man that was housed in a strip cell, to go in to him 

~ and talk, because if he had something to say, it wasn't 

~ necessarily for the entire inmate population. So you waul 

~ go into him inside the room and talk with him. 

l6 Q. A cell that contains excrement and vomit would 

~ smell quite badly, would it not? 

l8 A. Yes indeed. 

l9 Q. Would it bother you to work in such conditions? 

21 

22 

~3 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes indeed .. 

Would you do something about such conditions.? 

I would. 

Do you recall such a condition existing in_~r.~ 
·, ... ., ,_ 

~ Jordan's cell? 

25 A. No11 I do not .. 
i 

. ! 
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l 

z 

Q. Would you recall such. a conditicin? 

I think sos because this wasn~t a common thing~ 

, 5 If the condition like that exis~ed and--of course, this is 
~ 

4 .roy opinion--but if a condition like this existed in a strip 

5 cell, it was caused by the man within the cell, and then 

6 this showed us that we had other problems than just his-- · 

7 than just hiS disciplinary, and time spent, and so forth. 

8 It would mean that Dr. Hack would have to be advis~d or 

9 consulted. 

10 Q. · You stated, I believeo that you worked in the 

ll Adjustment Center for about seven years. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

A. 

Q. 

Q. 

Seven years# yese 

That is quite a period of time, is it not? 

Yesa it is .. 

Do you remember various 9hanges that were made in 

M the Adjustment Center over the period of yeais? 

17 A. Many changes, physical, as well as programming .. 

M Actually, I started before it was an adjustment center. 

~ It was just called O-wing. 

20 Q. Do you ever recall mattresses being in'the Adjust-

21 ment Center? 

22 You mean the regulation mattre~aes? 

2S '•Q ' . Yes. 
.+.. 

24 In the strip cells? . \ ,1,. 

11

25 
Q.. Yes o 
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Did that create a problem? 

It did one night I will) never forget. 

What was that? 

74:1 

There was a gentleman in one of the strip cells. 

6 I can~ t recall which one G Somehow he got ahold of some 

7 matches o He had the regulation--the thick mattresses. And 

8 I think he had a blanket also o He had proceeded in tearing 

9 up the mattress, taking all of the cotton out of it and 

w tearing the light canvas that encircles, makes up the mat-

11 tresso He tore this in shreds. All this he had piled up 

~ in between his bars and the outside door. He lit this. 

~ My father and I were on duty at the time. This wa~ at 

14 night o And we observed smoke coming o~t from underneath, 

W and it must have been burning fa~rly well, because if yo~ 

W have been there at night, you know that the night light, 

~ it isntt too much light. But we did see smoke--or we 

~ smelled it first, and we went back there, opened the door. 

19 And when the oxygen hit the already smoldering, . it blew up 

20 real good o The man was unconscious 9n the floor. He had 

~1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

to be tak'n to the hospital. My father went to the hospita. 
·., 

for oxygeno All and all, it was a real good mess. 

Q. Your father was a correctional officer? 

He still is, yesg 

Q. Officer Hoaglando calling your attention to the 



742 
360 

1 period between _July 9 and July 20 of 1965, do you r~call 

2 ta.~ing Mr. Jordan out for a shower? 

5 A, -Yes, I do 0 

4 

5 

6 

7 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Are you sure of that? 

I am positive. 

Why are you sure of that? 

For several things, reasonso 

8 One is-- You seer you work in an adjustment center 

9 where there is maximum control 6 maximum custody~ Everythin 

w you do, you have to think about the security involved. 

11 Nowo Jordan was in a strip cell, and as I remember it 

12 he needed a shave c He asked me if 6 
11 I could have a shower- "' 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

if he could have a shower. I didn 9 t answer him then, as I 

recall, and when I left the unit--I told him I would check 

and see. I left the unit, left the areao I don 9 t recall~ 

if I talked to Sergeant Friedrick or I just chec~~d his 114 

to see how many days he had back there. I think Jordan 

knows the rules in regards to running the place better than 

anybody else o 

ro In any case, subsequently I did get him out for a 

21 

22 

23 

24 

shower on the understanding that he would s)lave, wh_~ch he 

agreed to 0 

We came down for the shower, I escorted him down to the 

grille gate where the shower is locatede and I told him, 

25 ~'~I will get you a _razor and a mirror I)" so he could shave _,in 
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2 

j 

the shower. AQd he said that he--that he had changed his 

mipd, that he didn 1 t think he wanted a shav~. I said, 

•wella I have changed my mind. 'I don't think I want to gi e. .., 

4 you a shower. because that was th~ deal~ No shave, no 

"' 5 shower. 

6 So he decided to shave, which he did under the shower. 

7 Nowo the position it put me in, as I started to say 

8 originally, is that getting a man out of a strip cell is 

9 not a problemo You have been down there, and Mr. Cobler. 

w If you have an opportunity to leave a strip cell, you will 

ll normally do so. In most cases, the man would come out of 

~ the strip cell, and he would have other housing or he 

~ would--or whatever arrangements you have made for him. Bu 

U I had to take Jordan back to the strip cell, and I was 

~ quite concerned about this. And it wasntt a good idea o~ 

16 my part. I put myself in a bad position, and I don't 

~ normally do this. 

18 MRo OAKES~ I have no further questions at this time. 

19 CROSS -EXAMINATION 

20 BY MR. COHLER:; 

21 Q. I am not quite sure I understand, Officer Hoagland, 

I what you meant when you·said you put yourself in a bad 

23 position. Would you explain that a Little bit more, pleas ., 

24 Well, Jordan, and I don't;think any of the inmat~si 
'r3 , •'·. 

like to be housed in the strip cel.l, which is understandap e. 
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NOWe Jordan was out and he had a shower and so forth: And 

I personally--! had a few quick moments, because I had to 

take Jordan back to the strip c~llq I was in there by my-

4 .self. This was the explanation I meant to get ~cross. 

5 Q. You said you wouldn't ordinarily do that. What 

6 does that mean? 

7 I wouldnit ordinarily do what? 

8 Q. You said when you were testifying just at the tail 

9 end of direct examination that you put yourself in a bad 

W positi~n and you wouldn't ordinarily do that. What wouldn' 

u you ordinarily do? 

12 I wouldn't ordinarily get him out alone; I mean, by 

13 myself. 

14 Q. You would have another officer on duty? 

15 A. That i~ right. Now, there was another officer on 

16 duty. 

17 Q. In other words, it is a bit of a problem to take 

~ a man out for a shower from a strip cell, is that right? 

19 A. It poses a problem. Not in all cas~s. Not ~etting 

00 a man out of a strip cell, there is no problem ·at all, 

21 normally. 

22 Q. You also re+ated, Mr. Hoagland, that you looked.at 

~ the form 114 to see how long Mr. Jordan had been in the 

M quiet or strip cell. 

25 I may have looked at the blc;tckboar'd., Or I may not 
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l have done eithero What I am saying is, I either talked 

2 wi~h Sergeant Friedricke or I looked at the board, one of 

3 the two, or the 114. 

4 Q. Do you consider the forms"ll4 adcurate? 

5 In regards to how many days a man had been in the 

a Adjustment Center. 

7 Q. You say you were concerned about having ~-r • .;:rordan 

8 out for a shower on this occasion because you were by your-

g self. Is that correct? 

w ~ Well, I was there to take him back by myself. 

ll ~ Was there no other officer or sergeant around at 

12 that time? 

13 A. The sergeant had been in and had gone--he had come--

U sergeant Friedrick came in, in fact Jordan talked with 

a sergeant Friedrick when he was e~ther preparing or had 

W started to take a shower. But he left, the sergeant had 

~ left the unit, the downstairs unit, as I re•emb~r, and the~ 

~ was just the other officer and myself. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

' 
Q. What did Mr. Jordan and Sergeant'Piied~ick talk i. 

·,, 

about8 do you recall? 

~ I think he asked him for legal material, his leg~l 
-~ ~ 

property Q 

Q. 
,. 

You think Mr. Jord&n asked Sergeant Friedrick for 

legal material? 

A. Well, he has legal property, or legal •aterial in 
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1 his property, _and this is what I think he asked him ·for, 

2 which he subsequently got 9 I might add. 

r 
4 

5 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

While he was in the quiet cell? 

While he was in the quie~ cell.· 

You~id you checked a blackboard or a form 114 or 

6 something. Do you recall how long Mr~ Jordan had been in 

7 the quiet or strip cell at the time y·ou say you took him 

8 out for a shower? 

9 A. He had been in at least f~ve days, because I 

w wouldn't have gotten him out for a shower hadn't he been. 

11 But the exact number6 I can't say, no. 

12 

l3 

14 

15 

16 

Q. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Could it have been as long as two weeks? 

Two weeks? 

Yes. 

I couldn9t say. I don 1 t know~ 

Now, the blackboard, does that show whether people 

~ are in isolation? Whether they are in a quiet cell? _Or 

lli what does it show? 

19 A. In Jordan's case it showed he was in the quiet 

20 cell, that his name and number-- No_w, mind you, it has 

21 been a year--his name and number, the date he came in, and 

22 if he was on isolation,- his release date. 

23 

24 

25 

all. 

Q. It shows the cell number he is in? 

A. Yeso 

I think that is 
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l 
Q. How many inmates have you given showers to in the 

2 qui~t cells or strip cells in the last two years on the 

3 first floor of O-wing, approximately? 

4 A. Well, seeing as how I haven't b~en down--I wa~ri•t 

5 down there a full two. years, letts try, maybe, eight. o:r 

6 nine monthso I think I had the "Max" s~ction, and I moved 

7 over to isolation and had it between eight to ten months 

8 prior to trans£er to sec. 

9 Q. Approximately the beginning of 1965? 

lO A. Yes. 

11 Q. From, let's say, January 1965 until September 1965, 

12 about ho·w many showers did you give inmates from the quiet 

~ cells or the strip cells? 

14 A. It would be only a guess, but--

15 Q. Estimate for us if you can. v 

16 A. Perhaps five, .maybe, five or six. That is' about--

~ five or six, that I could say. 

18 Q. About how often do you make availa.'l!ne a shower. to 

19 an inmate who is in a quiet cell or a strip cell? I am 

W asking you for your recollection, not the polidy. 

21 

22 

A. 

Q. 

I am sorry, Mr. Cobler. I lost that. 

I will start overo 

.~ During the period from January 1965 until the beginpin 

M ·of September 1965, you were on the second watch on the fir 

~ floor, weren't you? Is that right? 
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Yes. 

Wouldn't that be the.normal time, if any, when an 

5 inmate housed in a quiet or strip cell would ha~e a chance 

4 to take a shower? 

5 A. No-- I am sorry, I am missing. 

6 Q. You were on the second watch. Now, as I understan 

7 . and I want your testimony, not my understanding--the third 

8 watch doesn't give showers to people and the first watch 

9 doesn't give showers to people, is that right? 

10 You are not right. 

ll Q. Correct me now. 

12 A. People who are going out to court will be showered 

~ on the third watch. 

14 Q. All right. Let's exclude that then. Except fo~ 

15 the group going out to court, does the first watch or th~ 

W third watch generally offer showers to people iti' strip 

~ cells or quiet cells? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

25 

24 

25 

A. No. 

Q. It is generally done in the second watqh., is it? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You w~re on duty during the second watch from 

January 1965 until the ·beginning of September 1965, weren' 

you? 

A. That is right. 

Q. You say you afforded only five or six showers durinq 
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that whole nin,~month period? 

749 

That I can remember, that I can pinpoint, that is 
,. 

3 all I can sayQ 

4: Q. Are you telling the Cour~-- I just want to under-

5 stand what you mean-- Are you telling the court that you 

6 only remember five or six particular incidents? Or that 

7 .your best estimate is that you only gave five or six 

a showers? 

9 A. That I can remember only five or six. 

10 Q. How many showers would you estimate you afforded 

11 inmates during that period? 

12 A. Well, after a man had been there for five days, he 

U was afforded--if he was to remain back there longer, he 

14 was afforded a shower if his actions--if we didn't feel we 

W had to wrestle with him or it would cause a hassel. 

16 Q. Say an inmate was in the quiet cell or ~trip cell 

17 for nine days. How would you know whether or not he had 

18 been afforded an opportunity to take a shower at some time 

19 within those nine days? 

20 A. Normally it would be indicated on the 114 if some-

n one had showered him. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

' Q. You would have·to :rely on the 114, is that qorrect. 

A. Yes, or the officer--;as t·h'e release are run: there, 

the officer that is assigned in Max, letts say, is working 

during the time that the i·solation officer would be off-.; 
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Information is r~layed back and forth this way also~ 

Q. It is supposed to be relayed on a form 114, ls it 

not? 

A. Right~ 

~ Mr. Jordan was in the quiet cell on July 9 through 

July 20, and you have ~elated one time when you say you 

took him for a shower. 

And a shave. 

Q. And a shave. Ought he not, according to the policy, 

w have received more than just one shower during that period 

u of time, if he received one even? 

12 

13 

A. 

Q. 

How many days? 

July 9th through July 20th. Perhaps we could have 

14 some help G 

w Plaintiff's Exhibit 13, I believe it is, the form 114. 

U I show you Plaintiff's Exhibit 13 in this cas~, Mr. 

17 Hoagland, and refresh your recollection if you will look 

at the entry starting July .9th through July 20th wh_en Mr. 

Jordan was in the quiet OT strip cell. I ask you whether 

it is not true, if the policy had be~n followed, he would 

have received at least two showers dur~ng that period? 

A. Let's see, 7/20 is when he moved, wasn't it$ 

Moved 12:05. 

Not necessarily, no. From the 9th to the 20th? Right? 

Q. Let's count on our fingers. 9th, ioth, 11th, ·12th, 
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1 13th 6 14th, 1St~, 16th, 17thu 18th, 19th, 20th. I ge.t 

2 about 12 days. 

s 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

A. ·You are right, counsel. J 

Q. Is it true that if policy-were folLowed, he ought 

to have received at least two showers? 

That is correct. 

Q. You say you recall one shower~ Do you find any 

indication of the shower noted on the record? 

A. It is not on here, no. 

Q. It ought to have been noted, shouldn't it? 

A. Right .. I can tell you when it wasn't, to a degreeo 

~ But I can't tell you when it was. 

13 He came in on Friday, which would be the 9th; it wasn't 

14 Friday. Saturday I worked; it wasn't Saturday, as I recall. 

W Sunday and Monday I am off. And that week, Tuesday I 

16 didn t t work. So it would be from Wednesday ona 

17 Q. The first Wednesday on? 

18 A. Right. But that is as far as I can go in regards 

~ to specifying a certain day. 

20 Q. If an officer who is your r~lief officer were on 

U duty during this period on the second watch, looking at 

22 

i23 
' 

that record 

afforded an 

he would not 

opportunity 

know that Mr. Jordan had been 

for a shower, ·would he? 

24 A. Not unless the other officer told him .. 

25 Q. You stated on direct examination that you didn't 
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recall this per:i,od of timeo 

. A. Not by date . 

Q. By date~ Correct. 

You also stated, I bel~eve, th~t you'didn't recall the 

5 period of time, except for leaving the door open for Mr. 

6 Jordan so he could write a little bit further; is that true? 

7 A. Then; and the showerg I remember that. 

8 MR. OAKES: I don't think that is quite what he stated. 

9 MR. COBLER: We will let the record speak for itself. 

10 Q. You have told the Court that you recall a shower, 

ll a conversation during the shower, a conversation with Mr. 

~ Jordan and Sergeant Friedrick at the time of the shower, 

~ .which days you were on and which days you were off, looking 

14 at a blackboard, looking at a cell number. 

15 Have you done anything to refresh your recollection 

~ before testifying, Mr. Hoagland? 

17 

18 

A. 

Q. 

Not by reading any documents, I haven't, no. 

Except for and excluding counsel and anyone from 

~ the Attorney General•s office, have you spoken to anyone 

20 .-·before testifying about this period of time? 

21 

22 

23 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes .. 

With whom? 

I have spoken with some of the people who have 

K appeared as witnesses for the State • 
. 

25 Q. Inclu~~ng Sergeant Friedrick? 
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l 
. A. That is correcte 

2 Q. Did you talk about this shower incident with 

5 sergeant Friedrick? 

4 A. That is correct. 

5 Q. His recollection w~s about just what you have 

6 testified6 was it not? 

7 A. I told himo 

8 Q. You told him. Did you tell him everything you told 

. 9 the court? 

10 

11 

A. 

Q. 

Perhaps~ Perhaps I didQ 

Is there anything in particular you can recall now 

~ that you havenYt told the Court? 

15 A. Well, we were talking just today in regards to the 

U shower, and they were telling me, actually, that I would 

W no doubt be under quite extensiv~ cross-examination because 

M it wasn't documentedo But the reason--and another thing 

~ that tells me this is what I have done, over and above th~t 

M I remember the incident, is that if Jordan needed a shave 

~ and he was in a regular isolation cell out in front of the 

20 screen, I· would have shaved him in his cell and then 

~ brought him'to the shower. 

Q. 22 
,, 
What if he were in a regular isolation cell--well, 

25 let me ~ack up a~ittle bit. 

M YO~ said that any time from the first Wednesday on, 

25 ·that you took him for a. shower o 
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1 shower, which wasn 9 t also recorded after that, by the time 

2 he got to an isolation cell, he may have been in need of a 

5 shower. Is that correct? 

1 4 Ao Yes. 

5 Q. You_may have afforded an opportunity for a Shave 

6 and shower for an isolation cell inmate, would you not, to 

7 a man who needed it? 

8 But if I was to do that, I wouldn't have let him 

9 come to the shower and shower and shave. 

10 Q. Perhaps you asked him to shave in his cell and the 

U took him out for a shower and that was the deal. 

12 

15 Q. 

Perhaps I did what? 

You asked him to shave in his cell before you took 

U him out for a shower, and that was the deal. 

15 MR. GRANUCCI: Is that a que~tion? 

16 MR. COHLER: I meant it to be a question. 

17 THE WITNESS: I donRt follow you, counsel. 

lB MR. COHLER: Q. You say there was some problem about 

~ Mr. Jordan not shaving, and you didn't want to let;him hav 

00 a shower unless he shaved. 

21 

22 

23 

Ao Right .. 

Q. Is it possible, thinking back over a year now, 

particularly thinking back to the institution at~which you 

no longer work, that the deal was that he shave in his eel 

and then you would let him have a shower? 
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1 A. No, that isn 9 t, because if I--if I had made. that 
~ 

2 ty~e. of a deal, then I wouldn't have escorted him. I would 

4 

: 5 

6 

) 

put the man on--I would take the cell off the do~ble lock 

and then when he was readr I waul~ roll.the bar off front, 

and he would come to the shower that way$ 

Q. When did you speak to Sergeant Friedrick about this? 

7 'Have you spoken to him more than once? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. When was the first time? 

10 A. You mean about the whole case itself? 

11 Q. No. Let's talk about the shower. That is all that 

~ matters right now. 

Well, I can 1 t--I said something to him about the 

u shower--or the-- what I just said, in regard to moving the 

~ man out of his cell if he was isolation$ or escorting hi• 

w if he was strip cell. This was said- -I told Ser'geant 

~ Friedrick today. 

lB Q. When was the first time, if you recall, that you 

~ discussed this shower incident with Sergeant Friedrick? 

W Very roughly, Mr. Hoagland. Was it in the month of August. 

21 · Or earlier? 
"" c'"> '• 

22 

23 Q. 

I think it possibly was earlie~Q 

Was it before or after the 4th of July holiday? 

124 A'< .I can•t remember just when it was.. I know I-:-I 

25 still had family· living_ in--J.et's see. I axn trying to thi 
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l I had a vacation 0 and during my vacation I went to S~ledad 

2 to· see my parents and visited with Friedrick at that time. 

j I think it was probably late JQly, I guess~ 

Q. Could you be sure that it wasntt into the month 

5 of August? _ 

6 A. No, I couldn't. But I don't think it was. 

7 Q. The first time you spoke to S~rgeant Friedrick abou 

8 the shower incident, Mr. Hoagland, did he recall anything 

9 about it at all in your conversation? 

10 MR. GRANUCCI: Objection, hearsay. 

U THE COURT: Overruled. 

~ MRo COHLER: Do you have the question, sir? 

Yes. It was--he said something about he remembere 

14 something about t.alking with Jordan when Jordan was taking 

15 a shower. 

16 Q. When Jordan was taking? Or preparing to take a 

17 shower? 

18 A. Well, it was one way or another. He was either 

~ going into the shower, or he had faken the shower and w~s 

20 coming out., 

n Oh, and there is one thing else I would lik• to add. 

23 

24 

25 

Q. Please., 
P. 

When Jordan--when I brough't: JOrdan out of the stri 

cell, he had his clothe$ on, because we exchanged clothes 
i 

for him. He put his clothes there on the ba:r:s, as you :maY 
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l have seen them doc They take their clothes and stick them 

2 on ·the bars right by the shower. 

3 Q. That may help us to fix )the time a little., bit 0 

4 Pleas~ continue to tell us what Mr. Friedrick said when 

5 you spoke to him in July. 

6 He said that he remembered talking with Jordan, and 

7 he was preparing or had finished taking a shower. 

8 

9 

Q. Did he remember anything about it beyond that? 

Artd I refreshed his memory by sayinga "well. when 

w I took him out of the strip cell you talked to him and you 

11 asked him for his legal papers. 11 
• 

12 

13 

14 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

"He asked you for his legal papers.n 

He asked Mr. Friedrick. 

Was there anything else Sergeant Friedrick could 

15 remember after you had refreshed _his recollection? 

16 No, not that I can think of. 

17 Q. I ask you to look at the entry 7/24, the second 

18 page of Plaintiff 1 s 13. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you recognize the initials? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are those yoursi •' 

A. Yes. 

Q. This was the fourth day after Mr. Jordan was 

from the quiet or strip cellu is that correct?. ·-



l 

~758 
376 

A. Yes. 

Q. What is the entry there, Mr. Hoagland? 

A. "c/EX, shower~" 

~ You took Mr. Jordan out for a shower on that day, 

did you not? 

A. Yese he had a shower that day. 

Q. I believe you testified on direct e_/amination, Mro 

Hoagland, that upon occasion you have observed inmates 

having more than one cup of water in their cell at a time; 

is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

~ In trying to service inmates with water, you try 

• to make the rounds to as many cells in as short a time as 

possible, do you not? 

A. Welle there are only six! 

~ All right. To all of the six cells then. 

A. And that is they are full. 

Q. No matter how many cells there are, do you try to 

service the water as efficiently as possible? 

A. Yes, that is right. 

Q. Do you stop to see what the inma~e does with the 

a water after his stomach is full? 

5 

. . 

A. No, it is just left·th~~e on the bars. In.fact, r·· 

might add, upon s,.ervicing the strip cells in the afternoon, 

on many occasions 1 have observed that the water I-' had Tef 
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previously was-undisturbed, which I would pour out andre­

f~ll again with fresh water. 

Q. You said that you fed ~he inmates. I a~ not try-
~ . --

ing to say that you.+e& anything incorrect. But to be a 

5 little more accurate, you and the inmate-porter would feed 

6 the inmates, is that correct? --~ 

7 ' A. Right. 

8 And the inmate porter would do the actual handling 

9 of the tray? Or would you do it? 

10 A. I wouldo 

ll Q. You handled the food 6 and the porter pushed the 

12 cart? 

A. Right. 

14 Q. You made reference, Mr. Hoagland, to scrubdown, I 

15 think you called it, which was performed at least once 

W every Saturday while you were on duty. 

17 A. Right. 

18 Q. wou~you describe very fully what is involved in 

19 these scrubdowns, please. 

W A. Yes. If a cell is empty, the cell is 6pened up. 

21 There is, in the tunnel--well, not the tunnel, really--

22 _there is a door at the· back rig;ht-hand wall past cell 1224, 

23 and this leads into--actually, it joins to Max, -Max s.ectio.,_:· 

M In the middle of this area is the tunnel are~, which you 

are probably familiar with. 
. .. -.. ... 
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l At this entrance, just inside the entrance to the door 

2 is the hose, the water hose. .With the equipment that I ha • 

1 3 that I spoke of earlier, and tha hose, we woul,d s~eep out 

4 ~he cells. And I normally ·handled the hose myself, put the 

5 water on the floor, the soap and the bleach, and if there 

6 was the inmate in the cell, I would take his mattress out, 

7 he would generally take his socks off, ·roll up his cover-

s alls, and would be issued the scrub brush which he would 

g use, the toilet brush. And after he had a nice soapy 

10 lather in there, we would again put the water in, rinse it 

ll out, and the squeegee for him to use~ And then after the 

~ water had all been--or as much as can be taken out with 

13 .the squeegee, he would then dry-mop the cello And all the 

M doors and flaps we~e left open. 

lli Normally I would take his mattress and put it over th& 

W door of the cell whe~ it was convenient. When the cell dr'ed 

~ out he was given back his mattress. 

W The cells that were empty, on occasions I would take a 

~ porter with me. But I hesitated to do this, because I 

00 didn't trust the porters that much. This was a good time 

21 for them ·cto take things into their friends, an'd ·I was in-

22 terested in cleaning the· cells rather than worrying about 

23 this guy running ar'o·uiid. So a lot of the t~mes I wou1d--

M in fact, ~·would say f~ most cases I had my bight-top 

25 
. . . 

rubber ir·rigator boots on and would be scrubbing the cells 
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2 work back there and the porter didn't. I had observed 
) . 

3 porters on other occasions and they d~dn•t do the job that 

4 I felt should be done back there. So I would go in myself 

5 and scrub with the scrub brush the floors, the walls, the 

6 toilet and the whole area to my satisfaction. 

7 

8 

9 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Anything else? 

Not that I.cari think of. 

Sure? 

w Mr. Hoagland, I was told by Sergeant Friedrick that yo 

U liked to fish--

12 Fish? 

Q. Fish. And you liked your new assignment out at 

U the Sierra Conservation Center, is that right? 

15 

16 

17 

A.. 

Q.. 

A. 

That is right. 

It has been challenging to you? 

Well, not as much as I woqld like, because I found 

lli the job assignment up there was a little more demanding-­

" tha~ my free time isn't like it was at Soledad. 

20 

21 

Q.. You have been busy? 

Yes. well, -as a CPS-1, you haven't--well, maybe: 

~ I shouldn't go into this . 

23_ 

24 

25 

.. 
j>, 

Q. I don't want to go into it farQ 

A. Anyway, what is involved is, there is additional 

case wOrk that is done on my tirnea 
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1 Q. And soma of the things you are do~ng now are dif-

2 ferent from the things you did at Soledad? 

5 A. ~ell, I am working with different people., 

4 ~· Aside from the identity of.the p~ople, are you doin 

5 different kinds of things? There is a certain adjustment 

6 involved in changing jobs, is there not? 

7 A. Well, coming from the Adjustment Center to this job, 

8 it is a real vacation. 

9 Q. It· is true that there are certain procedures, new 

o things to learn? 

1 A. Oh, yes, sure. 

2 Q. Would you say you recall things that have happened 

5 ,more recently better than you recall things happening in 

4 the past? 

5 A. Who is to say what we retain? r couldn't really 

6 answer that and give the whole truth, I donit believe. 

Q. I won 1 t ask you to do anything you can't answer 

truthfully. 

A. I remember incidents that happened many years ago. 

Q. For instance, you remember the burning·mattress 

1 very vividly? 

A. Oh, yes. That i·s quite an experience I don't thin 

anyone would forget~ I also recall an experience with 

' Jordan, when we had to--I was involv~d in fo~cibly moving. 

him from--it was a verbal attack on another inmate 
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felt, as he said, snitched on him. But this is something 

else I would remember. 

THE COURT: 
) 

Have you about finished your examination? 

4 we are running into a late hour~ 

5 MR. COHLER: That is all. Thank you. 

6 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

f BY MR . OAKES : 

8 Q. Calling you~ attention to the entry for 7-24 on 

9 that log--I think it is Plaintiff's 12--

lO 

ll 

MRQ COHLER: 13, I think. 

MR. OAKES: Q. --the entry is wC/EX, shower," as I 

~ understand it. 

13 

14 

15 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

What does that stand for? 

It stands for corridor, corridor exercise and 

16 shower. 

17 Q. Was Mr. Jordan at this time in an isolation bell? 

~ Or a strip cell? 

19 

20 Q. 

He was in an isolation cell. 

If Mr. Jordan had been in an isolation-cell, would 

n you escort him to a shower? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. No. 

Q. Is the normal procedure to be outside of the grill_ 

9ate, the front grille gate, when a man is on corridor 
• 

exercise? 
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A" . Oh, yes.· 

Q. So in this instance, you would have more than, 

764 

3 likely have been outsideo while 1he was in the iso~,lation 

4 cell?· 

5 A. For this exercise and shower 6 was I outside the 

6 grille gate? 

7 Q. Yes. 

8 Yes. This is a matter of rolling the bar, you roll 

9 the locking device, and the man can open his door~ 

10 MR. OAKES: I believe I have no further questions. 

11 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

~ BY MR. COBLER: 

Q. An inmate who takes a shower from the isolation 

14 section and an inmate who takes a shower from a strip cell 

15 or quiet cells takes a shower in precisely the same showe;-

~ room, does he not? 

A. Yes. 

MR. COBLER: Thank you. 

19 THE COURT: How many additional witnesses have you? 

20 MR. GRANUCCI: Your Honor, ··we· have four mo:te addi tiona 

n witnesses. we have another correctional officer whose 

22 examination will be about the same length, perhaps a littl 

~ longer, than Officer Hoagland's. Then we have the buildin 

24 engineer, who wil-l testify as to the ventilation system • 
. . . ~'' 

I don't anticipate that will be· lengthy:::' ;We'c:Jfave. Mr .. · 
;.,-

25 
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l Donnelly to com·e back for- -and I mean this- -about two or 
-·1··~- *~-~ 

z three minutes of questioning and testimonye Then Mro 

3 Fitzharris for what I think wili be a very short~examina-

4 tion. 

5 MR~ COHLER: Your Honor, I would like to advise both 

6 counsel, as I have informally, and Your Honor that there is 

7 ~ possibility there will be one rebutial witness. 

8 THE COURT: Do ,you think we could conclude the testi-

9 mony tomorrow morning? 

.0 MRo GRANUCCI: We think we could, but then again, Your 

l Honor, we might now. 

.2 MRo OAKES: May I interrupt? The testimony of my 

~ witness will not be too long, perhaps ten minutes • 

. 4 MR. GRANUCCI: Well then, I believe we will probably 

~ conclude tomorrow morning, Your Honoro 

~ THE COURT: Do w~ have a calendar? 

l7 THE CLERK: Yes sire I understand from Mrs. Blair it 

~ may run 45 minutes or so. 

~ (A discussion was had between the Court and the Clerk 

~ not withi~ ~earing of the Repo~ter.) 

21 MR. GRANUCCI ~ A possible suggestion is that we 9ould 
"i 

22 come in and go for a half hour, and then adjourn and·· let 

~ the Court conduct the calendar. 

24 THE COURT: Let us start at 9:30, and then we can .re-
- . . -

25 cess at 10:15 so I can g_o ahead with the regular calendar. 
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I will have to· adjourn tomorrow at about 12~00 o'clock~-

r·have other matters during the course of the day, I have 
. 

an accumulation of matterso as it might appear-.:we will 

see how we get along tomorrowo 

I think we can cover all of this testimony tomorrow 

by 12:00 o 9 clock. 

1' MR. GRANUCCI: Your Honoro at least speaking for the 

defendants, we will want some time to argue the case. 

THE COURTg You can argue it Friday • 

. 0 MR. GRANUCCI ~ That. is fine with us. 

l MR. COHLER: I was going to ask about thato Your Honor. 

2 Do you want closing argument before receipt of the 

~ transcript or afterwards? 

l4 THE COURT: I have ordered the transcript, but I am 
I 

~ still without it. I.,r.;~unj~,;not sure _it will be in time .. I am 
I 

~ going to move along on this matter. Next week I have an 

~ extremely heavy week. 
! 

MR .. COHLER: The plaintiff would like to move as quickl 

as possible .. 

THE COURT: All rightQ 
., 

Mis:'s Reporter, will you ask them to get as much of the 

·transcript as is available. 

9:30 in the morningo 

(Whereupon the hearing was adjour:[led UJ:?til 9_: 30 a.m.· 
L 

"'----.... . ..:. 

Thursday, A~gust 18 1966.) 
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1 THURSDAYo AUGUST. 18 ~966 - MORNING SESSION - 9:30A.M. 

2 .THE CLERK: 44309 and 44786, Robert Jordan, Jr. vs. 

3 Co J. Fitzharrise further evidentiary hearing. 

4 MR~ COBLER: Ready for the plaintiff and petitioner$ 

5 MR. GRANUCCI; Ready for the d~fendants, Your Honor. 

6 THE COURT: You may proceed. 

7 MR. OAKES: I would like at this moment to call Officer 

8 Hoagland. 

9 ROBERT c HOAGLAND€ 

w recalled as a witness on behalf of the defendants, having 

11 been previously duly sworn, resumed the stand and testified 

~ further as follows: 

13 THE CLERK: Would the witness restate his name for the 

14 record. 

15 THE WITNESS: Robert Hoagland. 

16 FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR. OAKES: 

18 Q. Yesterday afternoon, during the course of your 

19 testimony you indicated that Mr. Jordan had been in his 

~ quiet cell for a period of, I believe, 11 days~ 

21 A. That is correct. 

22 Q. It was indicated ~t that time that he should have 

~ probably had two showers during that period·. 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

That i$ right. 

Have you since decided that that statement was 
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1 incorrect, and that he was probably only eligible for only 

2 

5 

one. shower? 

Yese I haveo 

4 ~· could you explain that, please. 

5 A. The normal policy· was that a man would shower every 

6 five days, but he had to complete the fifth day, which 

7 would mean--I will use my hands again-~from the 9th to the 

s 13th would be five days. but he would have to complete the 

9 fifth day, which is midnight of that day. 

LO Since his showering was handled by the second watch, 

Ll he would be eligible for a shower on the 14th, which was 

~ actually the sixth day. 

l3 Then his five days would start again with the 15th, 

~ so it would be the 15th, 16th, 17th, 18th and the 19th 

~ would be his fifth day. But he would ha~e to complete th~ 

l6 fifth day to midnight, which would be the 20th. And the 

~7 20th is the day that he came out and was housed in regular 

~a isolation housing, and would be e\igible for the routine 
~· 

.9 exercise-shower that he would fali into in that section. 

lO MR. OAKES: I see. I have no :further que~tions. 

~1 FURTHER RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MRo COHLER: 

Q. Let me. go through this finger exercise with you 

!4 one~ .. again. 

He came in t~e night pf the 9th, is that correct? 
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l That is correcta 

Q. When would be the end of his first day? The mid-

3 night of the 9th? Or the midnight of the lOth? ' 
~· 

4 A. 

5 Q. 

6 A. 

7 Q. 

8 A. 

9 Q. 

10 J\. 

11 Q. 

12 A. 

13 

14 

15 

Q. 

Q. 

Midnight of the 9the 

That is one day? 

Right. 

The lOth is two days. 

Righto 

The 11th is three dayso 

Right a 

The 12th is four days~ The 13th is five days. 

Right a 

So on the 14th he gets a showerc 

Righto 

Then the night of the 14th is the end of another 

16 day, right? 

17 A. No. The 15th starts his next five days, because 

~ he had the shower the 14th. 

19 Q. I want to see how you count the days. Then the 1St , 

W by midnight of the 15th, he would have complet~d one day? 

21 

22 

23 

A. That is correct. 

Q. The ~6th, two: th~ 17th, three: the 18th, four: th 

19th, five .. ·· .. ·. 

24 A. : correct .. 

~ ~ So on the 20th he _is eligible for another show•r. 
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That is· righto 

He didn 1 t have a shower on the 20th, did he? 

Since we have you back again, Mr. Hoagland, do you 

5 remember, particularly toward the end of this period, July 

6 9th through July 20th, that there was a riot or a lot of 

7 trouble of some sort up at North, and several people were 

8 moved down into the. isblation and quiet cell or strip cell 

9 area? 

10 A. Nog I canut--they were having trouble over there 

11 with the Moslem and Nazi groups, but I can 9 t say if this 

~ was during this periodo 

13 Q. Without trying to characterize it, wasn't there 

14 some sort of racial trouble, and a lot of people were 

15 brought down into the quiet or s~rip cell area and the 

16 isolation area about this period of time? 

~ A. It could have been. 

18 Q. You have been able to remember quite a few things 

19 well 0 Do you rec~ll whether or not Jordan was moved out of 

20 the quiet cell or the strip cell int9 regular isolation be-

n cause there was a need for more quiet or s~fiP cells? 

~ A. No, I do not remember that. 
~~ 

~ ~ Without tying you down to this particular period of 

24 time, do you remember that some time around July, perhaps 

25 after or before, letVs just start with generally, there hc:td 
I 
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1 "J:te_en difficulty,. a lot of people had been moved, I believe 

2 from North into the quiet cell areaa into the isolation 
J 

3 area? Do you recall that mucha without pinning i~ down to 

4 time yet? 

5 It could be, yes. 

6 Q. Yes? 

7 This could have been the case. I can't--

8 Q. Do you recall that that happened some time? 

9 A. Some time 6 yes. 

10 Q. In fact, there was a fairly unusual amount of heav 

11 custody and heavy guarding when this group of people from 

L2 North was moved down into the isolation area, whenever it 

~ was? Do you recall that? 

~ A. Heavy g~arding? 

l5 Q. Well, letis be specific. At this time, wasn't the e 

J thought to be so much trouble that even inmates in isolati n 

.7 cells were escorted when they left their cells? 

.8 Well, inmates in isolation cells were normally 

.9 escorted· anyway, wherev~.r they went, other than for a norm 1 

!0 exercise period. 

ll Q. Let's be ca~eful. I think you said yesterday that: 

~· an inmate going from an isolation cell to his shower woul~ 

~ normall~:not be escorted. There would be the roll lock~ 

l4 or whatever it is. .,. · 
; . 

well, I did say »other than exercise.~ Just now~ 
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Q. Right., ·I am not trying to get you confused~ 

No. If a man was to come out under normal exercise, 

then he wouldn 9 t be escorte.d., J 

He would be keyed ~nd rolle e 

Q. That would be the occasion for a shower? 

Rigbt. 

Q. Wasn 9 t there a period after this rioting or whatever 

7 £t was, where they brought a lot of these people down from 

8 North6 where there was escort even for normal exercise and 

9 shower, from the isolation showers? 

10 I don~t remember, Mr. Cohlerc It could have hap-

11 pened after I left., But I donut remember doing that myself. 

12 Q. You don 9 t remember escorting people from normal 

N -isolation cells? Let me see if I can refresh your memory 

M a little bit better. 

15 In fact, there was so much trouble that the escort 

16 officers were carrying billy clubse 

17 A. I can remember that--or I know that in an emergenc 

18 situation like this, that the events you are describing do 

19 take placeo But I can't recall whether it was during the ,, 

20 period that is in the question ric:fht: now~ And· I am sorry 

21 
" " 

22 Q. All right. Don't re~~ll any more than you can. 
.. 

-"1" 

~ Let 9 s just establish what has happened at some time, e~en 

M though you can~t fix the time right no~~ At some time.·· 

~ there was sufficient disturbance and t-ere wa$ ~ufficent 
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1 need, in the opirtion of the personnel at the institution~ 

z that even inmates in isolation cells would be escorted when 

) ' 3 they left the cells for normal exerc~se and showe~s? 

4 This I donut-remember. I canwt remember doing this~ 

5 Q. Do you ·remember that t.hat has ever happened? 

6 Oh, yes. 

7 MR. COHLER: 1 think that is the best recollection you 
.-~ 

8 have. Let 1 s see what other people can remember. Thank you. 

g MRQ OAKES: I have no further questions of this witness 

.w at this time. If the Court has any questions--

11 THE COURT: I have one question that may have been 

12 covered earlier--! doubt that it has--and that is: When is 

13 ·an inmate placed on restrict.ed diet, according to your 

M judgment and opinion? 

15 THE WITNESS: When I--since ~-was in isolation section, 

16 1 never--there was~it a man in there that was on this diet. 

17 THE COURT: That covers what period of time? 

18 THE WITNESS: That covers eight months, from September 

19 back e 

20 THE COURT: What is that diet, s~ecifically? 

21 THE WITNESS~ well, it is a loaf, like a meatloaf, and 

22 it is a-- I have tasted it. It is tasteless. 

~ have much flavor. 

24 

25 

THE COURT: 

THE WITNESS: 

Is it hot or cold? 

I don~t think it is heated. 

It doesntt 

It_ :is not--. 
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1 I don.Qt think it is heated. 

2 ·THE COURT~ What portion is given, what amount is given 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

J 

to an inmate? Once a day? Or twice a day? 

THE WITNESSg Twice a day. 

THE COURT~ Is it like a hard sausage? 

THE WITNESS~ It is like a mea~loaf. 

THE COURT:: Is it hard or soft? 

THE WITNESS: It is not hard like an apple. I think it 

9 is--it is not mushy soft, but it has a consistency. It 

10 can be sliced or--

11 THE COURT: Would you have to have an order before you 

12 place a man on that type of ration? 

13 THE WITNESS: Oh, yes. The medical department has to 

14 0. K. it. 

t5 THE COURT~ Without a medical O.K., you would not serv 

16 a man that? 

l7 THE WITNESS: No. 

l8 THE COURT: I have no further questions. 

l9 MRQ GRANUCCI ~ Your Honor, could I ask a question? 

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. GRANUCCI g 
'· 

~ ~ You were •n officer during your time in the isolati n 

~ section, weren 1
t you? 

Yes sir" 
,;·· .. ·.-· 

Q. As an officer, you had,_no power· to ordl!r ·anybody 
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1 on an isolation diet, did you? 

Noo I did nota 2 

3 Q. That would be for the disciplinary Comm~ttee, would 

4 it not? 

5 The Adjustment Center Committee or the Disciplinary 

6 Committee, yes~ 

7 (witness excused.) 

8 MR. OAKES: I would like at this time to recall 

9 Sergeant Friedrick. 

W WILLIAM T. FRIEDRICKu 

11 recalled as a witness on behalf of the defendants, having 

12 been previously duly sworn, resumed the stand and testifie 

13 further as follows: 

U THE CLERK: Restate your name for the record. 

15 THE WITNESS: William Thomas Friedrick. 

16 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

17 BY MRo OAKES: 

18 Q. Sergeant, you have already testified at length in 

19 this matter. I than~ ydu for your patience. 

~ You have stated, I believe, that you were the second 

21 watch sergeant in O-wing and assigned to O-wing since June 

22 196 5, is that correct? 

23 -A.· "·That is correct. 

24 Q. I believe you have also recounted-your dutiesand 

~ responsibilities as the.Adjustment center off~9ef duririg 
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1 the second watch. 

A. That is correct. 

5 ~ Sergeant Fri~drick, hav• you been presen~ in the 

4 courtroom during the past few days? 

5 Yes, I haveo 

6 Q. Have you heard the testimony of several defense 

7 witnesses concerning an incident where tear gas was used to 

8 

I 9 
I 
ilO 
ll 

12 

control Mr. Esparza? 

A. Yes u I have Q 

THE COURT: Do I understand the witness to say he has 

been threatened in the courtroom? 

MR. OAKES: I asked if he was present, Your Honorm I 

13 . am sorry. 

14 THE COURT: What are the implications of this question, 

15 counsel?-

MR. OAKES: I was attempting to be brief, your Honor, 

~ and ask if he had heard statements made by other defense 

18 witnesses telling about the incident where tear gas ·was 

~ used in the incident with Mr. Esparza, a~d whether his re-

W collection agreed with that of the other witn~*ses~ 

21 THE COURT:. All right. Go ahead .. 
;_ . ·~ 

• "!. 

~ MR. OAKES·: I am sotry if I was not cl~ar~ 

23 THE COURT: would you speak up a little louder.e 

24 MRe OAKES:- I am sorry, Your Honor ... 

25 I will ;~tate the qu.stion agairi; 
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Q. Have you-heard the testimony of several defense 

witnesses concerning an incident where tear gas was used td 

control M~. Esparza? 

A. 

~. 

Yes, I have. 

Would you agree wi~h the facts as related by those 

6 witnesses? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

A. Yes sir~ 

~ Have you also heard the testimony relating to an 

incident concerning Mr. Wells? 

Yes, I have. 

Q. This is an incident where Mr.· Wells was forcibly 

removed to another cell? 

13 A. Yes. 

M ~ Would you l~ke to recount your version of that in-

W cident, please? 

16 

17 

18 

A. As best as I can recollect, yes. I was in the 

office of the Program Administrator. I don't remember the 

date. But an officer called me in there and told me 

19 Officer Mata was on the tier with inmate Esparz, who was 

20 

21 

reacting in an aggressive manner, 

qtiir.ed. 

and assistan6e was re-

~- I proceeded from the officer to the first floor of O-

23 

24 

25 

wingo Officer Foncannon came down the stairwell, a~d I 

asked him to accompany me to the first floor. 

We both enterede and inmate Esparza had--was standin4 
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1 with his back near the wallo He had his fist clenched; and 

2 Officer Mata was trying to persuade him to go to a quiet 

4 There was a lot. of verbal adoo a lot of abusive 

5 language on the part of the inmateo He was quite angry an 

6 upsetQ I didn 9 t immediately know why he' was being removed. 

7 O~viously, at this timeo I felt the officer felt it was 

8 his judgment that he had to move' him at that time. He 

9 wasn't in the cell. He was out on the tier. 

10 As I entered the section 0 Mro Wells, who was the perso 

ll in the second cellw and he was agitat~ng the situation by 

12 his behavior o He was making remarks toward the officer an 

13 encouraging inmate Esparza. 

14 I entered the area and I ordere Esparza two or three 

~ times to move on6 and he dido After two or three orders, 

16 I believe, from what I can remembero he dido He proceeded 

17 and went into the quiet cell. 

18 Because of inmate Wellsi--now Mr. Wells, formerly 

~ inmate Wells--because of his behavior that he exhib~ted 

00 there, it could have been a potential dangerou~ situation. 

~ The inmate cQuld have struck the officer becatise of inmate 

~ Wellsi agitation and encouragemento There were a few ot~e 

23 inmates who were making remarkse Inmate Esparza was in v~ 

M of several inmates in the unit~ 

25 It was a matter of judgmento I felt that inmate wails 
' ,· . . -·. 
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1 should also be ~~moved to a quiet cell.. They were qu1te 

2 clo~e friends at this time, and I felt the necessity of 

5 ·maintaining control of the parti,;cular section .. 
"'' 

4 So I opened the cell personallya and'I explained to Mr. 

6 Wells why I was moving himo He started arguing, but he di 

6 come out of the cell~ And he agreed by his actions, by 

7 coming out, that he would goo 

B However, from the first or second cell to the quiet 

9 cell is a long walk, and he stopped a few times. J;: donjt 

lO remember exactly how many~ But he did stop and proceeded 

.1 to argue, and he was loud and boisterous. I would order 

~2 him, and each time he would go~ Finally, the last time he 

.3 stopped he attempted to make a stand and had his back agai st 

.4 the cell front, and he was acting aggressively • 

. 5 These things happened so fas~, and it happened quite 

.6 awhile ago, so I may be wrong; but I believe he had his 

J arms rather loose as if he might strike out. I don't 

.8 remember exactly, but to the best of my knowledge, he was 

.9 acting aggressively~ 

0 He is a large, strong youth. What it ~mou~ted to, Mr. 

a Foncannon and Mr$~Mat~ and I were in there at th~t time. 
' " ' > .. 

~2 I believe Mr. Foncannon-grabbed Mr. Wells from behind and 

~3 around the neck, you might say it was a shoulder-hold or 

~ a neck-lock, I am not familiar with the terminologyQ At 

!5 this time I immediat~ly grabp~d his left· l·~g and, _Mf .. Mata 



l 

2 

3 

4 

6 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

l4 

l5 

.6 

.7 

.8 

9 

'0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

398 
0078()' 

grabbed his right lego 

I recall having ahqld of him around the thigh, I be-

lieve rny.left hand was underneath the kneeq the hollow of 
) 

the knee; and my right hand I had on his .upper thigh and I 

was holding hirno In fact, I was holding on quite dearly. 

He was kicking violently arid struggling~ We had him in the 

air. 

Mr. Johnston was controlling the keys for the unita an 

he observed we ~ere having considerable difficulty, and he 

ordered Office Nance to enter the area and assist us. 

Officer Nance carne in and between the officers, three 

officers and myself, we carried Mro Wells and place him in 

a quiet cell. 

Q. Did you at that time grab Mro Wells by the testicl s? 

A. No sir~ At no time did I strike him or grab him 

or anything like this. I did hold him. I was holding him 

by the left leg in the area of the thigh. Now,· it is 

possible--he was kicking and I was trying to maint,~in my_ 

balance--r had him like this (indicating), h$ ~a~ going in 

this direction, and I was standing sideways holding him 

like this (indicating). Noww it is possible that in the 

struggle that possibly •Y arm or my elbow might ha~e hit 

him in the area of the crotch~ But at 'd time did l de-

liberately or maliciously grab in the a~•~ of the testicle , 

or strike him or anything like this 8 no s.i:r .. 
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l Q. I call your attention to plaintiff 9 s Exhibit-13 0 

2 the segregation record. I have a copy here. Is there an 

3 entry th~re for 7/13? 

4 A. 

5 yes sir. 

6 Q. 

7 pleaseo 

8 

9 

10 

11 

Q. 

Q. 

Yes siro The last line h~re~ th~ top line there,, 

Would you read that last line on the f~rst page, 

"29 days isolation and then assigned, LTS-1." 

Are those initials? 

Those are my initials there 6 yes. 

Does that indicate that you conducted a disciplinar 

~ hearing on that date? 

13 A. 

14 Q. 

15 A. 

16 Q. 

17 

18 Q. 

19 hearing? 

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Did you conduct a disciplinary hearing on that date? 

Yes. 

Was Mr. Jordan present at that hearing? 

Yes 6 he was. 

Did Mr. Jordan have clothes on at that disciplinary 

Yes~ he did. 

Do you recall the period now of July 9th through 

22 July 20 1965? 

23 

24 Q. 

i 

Yes. I recall some of it~ _yes. 

Do you recali an incident in which it is your 
. \ 

~ opinion Mre Jordan was preparing to take a· shower? 
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1 A. Yes, I do o 

2 Q. Would you like to recount your remembrance of that 

3 ·occasion? 

4 A •. Yes. I entered the unit one morningo I don't 

5 remember what day it was~· But as I entered the first floo 6 

6 inmate Jordan wa$ standing by the front grille gate, which 

7 is next to the shower area$ He was undressing, and he hung 

8 his coveralls on the barsw 

9 I didn't see him take a shower~ but to the best of my 

W recoll~ction he was preparing to take a shower at that tim 

11 Q. I draw your attention to a very crude drawing I 

12 have made on the board, or this piece of paper. Does this 

13 somewhat reflect the layout of the first part of the iso-

14 lation side of O-wing in the officers 8 area? 

15 A. Yes. The front door would be directly in front of 

M that sally port there~ 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

. 23 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q . 

Q. 

Right in here (indicating)? 

That is where I enterede yese 

The grille would be right here? 

Y.es. 

There is a door on tne grille gate? 

xes sir .. 

Is there,~ 'ally port or closed caged area here?· 

That is right. 

There is another door at this poin-t, i$ t~ere not? 
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1 ~ Right. 

2 Q. Are there also vertical bars along this side? 

S A. Yes., 

4 

5 

6 

7 

Q. 

Q. 

A. 

Is the shower located at this spot~-

--or this cell here (indicating)? 

It is not a cell. but if it was a cell, that would 

8 be the first cell 6 yes~ 

Q. 9 The place that you saw Mr. Jordan standing, was it 

W area right here (indicating)? in this 

A. U It was right near where the _two xvs are. 

Q. ~ Right here (indicating)? 

A. 13 Yes. 

14 

15 

Q. 

A. 

And his clothes were hanging here? Or here? 

They were hanging on the front. Right in there, y 

~ standing right near the bars. He was 

Q. rr Sergeant Friedrick, would there be any reason for 

18 man to be in that area other than to take a shower--

19 

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

No sir. Not that I know of. 

--with his clothes off, und~essing? 

Not undressing. He might walk up to that area if 

'22 he was exer,cising.. He might walk. up to that area and ask 

·23 a question~ ask the officer, inquire about something: bu.t 

~ not while he was undressing. He would have to be prepat~n 

25 for a shower .. 
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1 Q. ·To the b.est of your recollection, did this occur 

2 du~ing the time Mr. Jordan was in the quiet dell? 

5 ~ Yes. To the best of myJknowledge 6 yeso 

4 Q. We heard some testimony yesterday by Mro Hoagland 

5 to the effect that he talked to you about this. 

6 Yes sire 

7 Q. Was that in preparation for this case? 

8 A. Yes sir~ 

9 Q. Would you like to recount what you were doing at 

10 that time? 

11 MR. COHLER~ Your Honor 6 I would like the time to be 

12 fixed first . 

13 MR. OAKES: Q. Do you recall talking to Mr. Hoagland 

14 about this case in July of this year? 

15 A. I don 1 t remember whether_it was·Julyc 

16 Q. I am sorry •. It would be June of this· year. 

17 A. It was a month or two months agoo I don 9 t recall 

18 the date. But I did talk to hima 

19 MR~ COBLER: \could it be clear a Your Honor o that it 

~ was not August? 

21 Could you put that question, please~ 

22 MRa OAKES: It was not August. August 1966, coqnsel1 

~ MRa COHLER~ Correcta 

24 THE WITNESS: I donnt believe sou although it~s p'pssibl. 

~ It might have besn June, July or August, l~t's p~t it that 
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1 way. I don't remember exactly when I first talked to Mr. 

2 Hoagland, but it could have been anywhere from one 0 two 0 

5 three--

4 JloiR. OAKES: Q. Well, let 0 s pbt it this way. Do you 

5 recall having a discussion when Mr. Cobler and myself were 

6 present? 

7 Yes. 

8 Q. Do you recall that that was in July? 

9 MR. COBLER~ As a matter of fact, it wasntt. 

W M~. OAKES: It wasn't? 

11 MR. COHLER~ It was early August. 

12 MR. OAKES: Q. Do you recall the discussion that you 

15 had with Mr. Hoagland was prior to the discussion that you 

14 had with us? 

15 A. Would you rephrase the q~estion? I am sorry. I r 

16 am confused now with this. 

17 Q. Do you recall that the discussion you had with Mr. 

~ Hoagland was prior to the discussion you had wi~h--

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Oh, yes .. Yes.' 

Fine. Now, where was this discussion ~adt 

In my home. 

How was it effected? How did you 'et ahold of-~ .. 

As I recall 6 members of the Attorney~Gener~l's 

24 office and possibly the Superintendent asked me to 'co~;::,t~ce 

25 Mr. Hoagland who was transferred to Sonora·, and whe·n" I· 
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1 ·arrived home after work I called Mr. Hoagland's father who 

2 resides in Salinas. The senior Hoagland told me that his 

S son was on vacation at that time; and that he would tell hi 

4 to return my call. Shortly thereaftero that evening, Mr. 

5 Hoagland appeared at my home. 

6 Q. Do you recall during that conversation Mr. Hoagland 

7 indicating to you that you had been pr~sent while the 

8 shower was taking place? 

9 A. He told me I was presento I don•t recall this, but 

10 he told. me about it., 

11 

12 

13 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

14 officer? 

15 A. 

Do you recall Mr. Hoagland being present? 

No, I don 1 t. 

Do you recall any officer? And if so 6 which 

No, I don't recall any o~ficere which officero 

16 mean, there was an officer there, to the best of my re-

17 collection, but I don't remember which officer. 

18 

19 

Q. 

A. 

Do you recall Mr. Jordan being there? 

Yes. 

I 

20 Q. Again directing your attention to the ~eriod July 

21 9 through July 20 19~5,. do you r7·call any other occasion 

22 when you might have talked to Mr. Jordan? 

23 

24 

25 

A. Yes. I had occasion ·to talk to him one morning~. 

I believe in the quiet c•ll a~ea. 

~ It was during this period? 
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l A. During the period that he was confined in the._quiet 

2 cello 

Q. When you talked to him i9 the quiet cell area~ were 
~ 

& you required to unlock the door to-enter his cell? 

5 A. I unlocked the door to.the grille gate that 

6 leads to the quiet cell area itself. Btit~ no. the door was 

7 open when I talked to himo 

8 Q. Do you recall what the discussion was about? 

9 It was either about--! was in the areao I didn • t. 

lO go back· there specifically to see anyone in particular. 

11 In fact, I don 1 t recall why I went back there. But I was 

12 back theree and inmate Jordan called to me and asked me 

13 about either writing paper or legal material. I don•t 

14 remember whicho And I was over there a few minutesw and 

l5 this is all I iemember that he asked me about. I told him 

M I would talk with the officer and see that he got.what he 

i 17 

18 

needed. 

recall. 

I may have talked to another inm~te or soo I don' 

I then returned and passed through the isolation. 

19 section into the other area. 

20 Q. Do you recall any overwhelm~ng odo~s c6ming out 

21 of there? 

22 

23 

A. 

Q. 

24 dition? 

25 A. 

·' 
No sir~ I don't~ 

Do you recall that the cell was in an unclean con-

Now not to my knowledge. It was ·cleanq as far-as 
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1 I could tell. I didn't inspect the walls or anythirrg like 

2 this. I donvt have any recollection of doing this. But 

5 I didnVt detect any odor coming from any partic~lar cellD 
~ 

4 including inmate Jordan's. 

5 Q. Sergeant Friedrick, are you familiar with what 

6 might be called the .Lnmate grapevine? 

7 Yes. 

8 Q. Is it your opinion, based on your experience, that 

9 this is a fairly effective means of communication? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. Is it your <:>pi.niono based on your experience, that 

~ inmates, even though held in an isolation cell or in the 

13 O-wing. could get information from one to another? 

U A. Yes, very readily. 

W Q. Perhaps you might explai~ how some of this occbrs. 

M ~ Well, they communicate in various ways. ·They com-

~ municate through the ventilating system~ many of them will 

18 communicate through the plumbing system. I have often 

~ seen inmates kneeling down in front df the toilet bowl 

20 holleringo They communicate in thiS. manner. 
; 

n They pass notes out the window via fish~lines ~hat .. tbe 
- .... ,. 

22 drop out the window, it. _goes down the building, down to th 

23 
-~ 

various floors 9 and they are r.~-t~iteved by whoever might be 

24 exercising, and the note is addressed to a certain in-

25 dividual and the inmate is obliga~ed to deliver. t.h~ .. nu~ssag. 
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1 There are various meanso There are contacts. We serve the 

2 other units within the complex, there are many inmates who 

3 ·bring in- word from the outside n Jand whatever. ou,r food, 
"' 

4 our clothingo our supplies -come from outside the Adjustment 

5 Center itselfa 

6 We search as well as we possibly can for contraband and 

7 possible weapons and so fortho But there are lettersB note 

8 that can be rolled up and they are quite small. There are 

9 so many hiding placesa They have ways of communicatingo 

10 It is done, let 9 s put it this way. 

11 MRo OAKESg I have no further questions at this timeo 

12 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

13 BY MRo GRANUCCI g 

14 Q. Sergeant Friedricka during your duty as a sergeant 

15 in the Adjustment Center, you ha~e seen a great many weapoft 

16 made by inmates 0 have you not? 

17 Yes 0 I have. 

18 Q. Have you ever seen any weapons made out of tooth-

19 brushes? 

20 A. Yeso I have. 

21 Q. Could you describe the type of weapons that you 

22 have seen? 

~ .MRa COHLERg Your Honor~ we ha~e had considerable test~ 

~ mony describing thes$ weaponso In the interest of time~ 
·~ 

~ perbaps counsel could not pursue this with -~his witn~$B.~ 
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1 MRo GRANUCClg Well, at the present procedural posture 

2 of .the caseo we offered into evidence three ~ample tooth-

3 brusbes.that have been converted into weapons as~illustra-

4 tive of the type of thing that can be dorie ~ith a tooth-

5 brusha Your Honor sustained that objection, but granted me 

6 leave to renew my offer of the evidenceo 

7 I thought that in the interest of ·protecting the recor 

8 and also in getting further available evidence before the 

9 CoQrt which might obviate the necessity of a further offer 

10 of proof 0 I might eliciti similar testimony from thi"s 

ll witnessa 

12 MR .. COHLER~ I have no objection to an attempt to lay 

13 a foundation for the offer of the evidence .. 

14 

15 

THE COURTg Proceedn pleaseo 

MRo GRANUCCI g Q. Have you ever seen weapons made out 

w of toothbrushes? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

A. 

Q. 

Yeso I haveo 

Could you describe such weapons, pleaseo 

Yeso Sometimes the toothbrush handle itself is 

sharpenedo I imagine the--I have never apprehended an 

21 inmate in the act of making a weapon.. This is supposition 

~ on my parto I imagine he might break a portion of it off 

~ or might get a match and burn and melt a portion of it oft 

24 to a point and sharpen it· on the co.ncr~te floor .. 

~ By the same tokeno he m~y s,cure a ra~or ~la~e 
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1 other hardened p~ece of wire, and through the use of 

2 matches he will make a connection through this wire and 

attache a-n appendix to- it to make the handle itself o 
; 

"" 
4 I imagine there are many ways. · I am not an expert. I 

5 don't make weapons. 

6 Q. But you have fo~nd such weapons? 

7 A. I haven 9 t found them personally-as a sergeant. As 

8 an officero I have" As a sergeantg I have had some of my 

9 officers find them and show them to me. I don't recall 

LO whether--it is certainly not during the incident in questio • 

Ll 

l2 

Q. No. Noo we are not relating~-

I believe possibly I have seen one or two tooth-

l3 brush type weaponsc but I am not certain, during my prison 

l4 tour, 

l5 Q. During your prison tour? 

l6 A. Yes" 

l7 MR. COHLER~ Your Honor, counsel just said they are not 

~ relating it to something. 

l9 MR., GRANUCCI:; We are not relating it to the plaintiff • 
. ·-· ~ 

ZQ: THE COURT: When you· spoke 'to th_e incident ·in question~ 

what do you mean by the incident in questiop? 
..•• -.l' 

THE WITNESS: Well, what I am trying ~o say is that I 

2~~ ·!::·~~ver saw any of these toothbrush weapons· during the--
•:, _:>;·: 

24' 

25 

Cl:~-;a;t~,ng the dates in question. 

·-->THE COURTg During the dates in qqestiori? 
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l THE WITNESSg Yes, during July 9th to July--

2 THE COURTg When in point of time were toothbrushes 

s s-upplied to the inmates in your particular section? 
~ 

4 THE WITNESS~ I honestly don't remember. I could esti-

5 mateo Your Honor. I believe it may have been either last 

6 fall around Christrnastifue, or possibly January or February. 

8 THE COURT~ were you familiar with an inquiry made by 

9 Mro McGee concerning the conditions in the facilities? 

10 THE ·wiTNESS~ No sir. The first time I had knowledge 

11 about that was when it was brought out this week& 

12 So you did not relate your period of time 

13 to t.ha t event at all? 

M THE WITNESS: No sir. 

15 THE COURT~ You haventt any ~ndependent recollection 

16 with respect to the time the toothbrushes were supplied to 

17 the inmates in your particular section? 

18 THE WITNESS: No~ 

19 MR. GRANUCCig I wonder if I could ask the witness 

~ something to clarify that, Your Honor. 

21 Q. Sergeant Friedr~pk 6 hav~ toothbrushes always been 
0• 

~ available to inmates in isolation cells as distinguished 

23 

24 

25 

from q~iet cells? 

A. YesQ 

THE COURTg we are only concerned with qui~t. cells,; 
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1 aren 9 t we? 

2 MR. GRANUCC!g That is right, Your Honor. I think one 

3 ·of the Court 9 s questions mentioned isolation cel~so 
~-

4 THE COURTg All right. Thank youe 

5 MR. COHLERg Your Honor, I understand that the calenda 

6 is to be heard, at lea~t in part6 this morning. My 

7 ~xamination may be lengthy. 

8 THE COURT~ Are there any other questions of this 

9 gentleman? 

10 MR. COHLER~ I have cross-examination. 

11 THE COUR.Tg I suggest we pursue ~t. Then he might go 

12 back to his occupation~ 

13 THE WITNESSg Thank you, Your Honoro 

14 CROSS -EXAMINATION 

15 BY .MR. COHLE R ~ 

16 Q. Sergeant Friedricko turning your attention to the 

17 so-called shower incident, please, your best recollection 

18 is that although you can't remember who the officer was, 

19 there was an escort officer; is tha.t c·orrect? 

20 A. 

Q.. 

A. 

I don't remember the officer on duty. 

But there was an escort officer? 

Yes.~ To the best of my knowledge, yes sir. 
' 

. 
{' 

.,. 

21 

22 

23 Q. sergeant 6 perhaps you,, :Qeard me ask Mr. Hoagland 

M about his r~collection regarding a riotoUs incident of .... 
25 some sort, ~I believe, up i~ North, which :ptought several 
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l people into the ~uiet cell or strip cell area. Do you 

2 rem~mber such an incident? 

I vaguely remember a riot having occurred~at the 

4 North Facility. It was during the.time the supervisor of 

5 inmates classification wa~ in o-winga hearing special caseso 

6 The supe~visor of inmates classification for the Department 

7 ordinarily comes around every four months or so to Soledado 

8 Nowo I don 1 t remember what date that was. I know he 

9 was there. I was in the room when hearing some of these 

W caseso participating in the hearing of some of these cases. 

ll But I don 9 t remember what day it was.- 1 do remember that 

l2 it was around noono because the hearings were discontinued~ 

~ and all available personnel were dispatched to the North 

l4 Facilitya 

~ To the best of my recollectiqn8 most of the inmates w~r 

l6 involved@ and there was a large amount of inmates~· :r don 9 t 

17 remember how manyo were scattered between X and 0-wingo. 

ill The gxeat majority, I believeo were placed in X-wing be-

19 cause of the type cells they have in X~wing, the closed d~O 

20 Q. I dongt want to take you to~ far into that incident 

21 What I want to find out is whether you can recall various 

~ inmates being brought down into the quiet or strip cell 

~ area as a result of that situatibno 

M ~ Noo I honestly don 1 t rem•mbe~.how many were brought 
' ~' .• 

25 Q. Do you rem,emqer . t_h~t M.:r o 
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1 Jordan was removed from the quiet or st:rip cell on or about 

2 July 20 1965o because there was a need for further strip 

cells? 

.4 ~· No siro not to my knowledge~ 

5 May I i~terject something here? 

6 Q. Please" 

7 A. To the best of my knowledge, inmate Jordan was 

B placed in the quiet .cell on Friday night. Normally, the 

9 inmates are not removed from a quiet cell until after the 

10 disciplinary hearings. When inmate Jordan appeared before 

11 the hearing, because of his behavior at the time, it was 

12 felt that he should remain in the quiet cell a little 

13 longer until his behavior changed. 

14 We do, with. but a few exceptions, we do try to get in-

15 mates out of a quiet cell as sooq as we possibly can. I 

16 believe it was Tuesday or Wednesday, the 13th, according to 

17 the record, it may have been Tuesday or Wednesday, when 

18 Mr~ Jordan was remanded back to the quiet cell. 

~ Ordinar~ly on Fridays I try to get people out of the 

20 quiet cells before I go home for the. weekend. I am certain 

21 sincerely, in my own mind, that whoever else was in the 

~ quiet cells in addition to inmate Jordan, if I could 

23 possibly have moved him or anybody else, I would have. 

~ Now, I am certain we were~-I am very certain 

25 
. . . " - . 

that we were crowded at that time, and ·it could' have .been 
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1 becaus~ of this riot at North Facility. I dontt really 

I don~t remember. 

3 But in any event~ I could nbt move inmate JoFdan out 

4 of the quiet cell on Friday. I a~ off ~aturday and Sunday. 

5 Possibly the overcrowdedness continued over the weekend. 

6 I know Monday we are often overcrowded because of the 

7 weekend. And Monday all of these various committees from 

s the various facilities and the o·th,er units do come in, and 

9 often it is late Monday afternoon and possibly Tuesday 

w before we can move a man out. 

ll I am trying to recollect and testify to what I can 

12 remembero to the best of my knowledge. 

13 Q. Of course" 

14 Sergeant 0 you have recalled the shower incident after 

~ a discussion with Mr Hoagland8 and you have recalled that 

16 this took place some· time during the time Mr. Jordan was 

17 in the quiet or strip cell as you remember it. What do 

18 you rely upon to fix in mind the fact that it took place 

19 while Mr. Jordan was in the quiet or strip cell, during 

W that period of time? 

21 I just remember:-, when I walked in, I saw him 't;h4;!re,. 

22 Mr. Cobler" To the best of my knowledge, it wa~~during 

23 

24 

25 

time he was in a quiet cello In all fairness, ;I·mU,st 

admit that I possibly wa~ influf!nced by Mr. Hoag·~_and ~avin 

told me that I was the m_~n, possibly b~caus~ ·I ha,ve read 
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1 the recordso but to the best of my knowledge, I did see 

2 him standing thereo 

Didnut you rely to a gr~at extent on the~fact that 

4 Mr. Jordan had can escort officer o ·which woQld generally · 

5 have been the case if he had come from the quiet or strip 

6 cell? 

Wella I believe there was an o£ficer standing ther 7 

8 as an escort officero I do know that the regular isolatio 

9 inmates 0 the officer will take the cell off double lock 

10 and he will return to the officers' area and place the loc 

11 or bar mechanism in the open position and he will not be 

12 standing there while the inmate is showering. 

15 There are many things that lead me to believe that to 

14 the best of my knowledge I am right, that he did take a 

15 shower thereo There is always the possibility I am wroniJ. ... 

16 But I do not believe BOo 

17 Q. Would you answer the queston, please, whether or 

18 not a primary factor in your mind in recalling that it was 

~ du~ing the period of time he was in the quiet or strip eel 

00 was that he had an escort officer? 

21 MRo GRANUCC!g Objection., Your Honor<. It has been 
! ~~ ~.:· 

22 asked and answered o 

23 

24 

25 

MRo COHLER: It has been asked, but not answeredo 

THE COURT~ He may answero 

THE WITNESS: Yes(} I could have been iJ;lfluenced 
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2 .MRo COHLERg Thank youo 

5 THE COURTg This witness is excused. Thank ypu. 

4 (Witn~s& excused.) 

5 THE COURTg We will t•ke up the calendar. 

8 (The Master Calender was heardo) 

7 (A short recess was takeno) 

8 MRo GRANUCCig At this time I request permission to 

9 approach the Bench with opposing counsel. 

10 (A discussion was had at the Bench, not within 

u hearing of the Reporter.) 

12 MRo GRANUCCI~ Mro Clerk, would you call Mr. Lovett, 

13 please o 

14 THE CLERKg Mr o Lovett o 

15 ROLAND LOVETT II. 

u called as a witness on behalf of the defendan~s, being 

~ first duly sworno was examined and testified as follows: 

~ THE CLERKg Will you state your name and occQpation t~ 

19 the Court 0 

00 THE WITNESSg Roland Lovett, Chief Engineet, Correc-

21 tiona! Training Facility~ Soledad. 
·. 

~ DIRECT-EXAMINATION 

23 BY MR o GRANUCCI g 

24 Q. ' Mro Lovett, what are your duties as Chi~f· 

25 Engineer at the Correctional Traininq · Fa,~ili.t_y? .·. -·. 
j• 
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l A. To supe.:r;vise maintenance and operation of all 

2 mechanical facilities, boiler rooms, sewage plant, water 

systemso 

4 Q. Does that also relate to the heating system? 

5 A. Tha·t includes all heating and ventilating systems. 

6 Q. Mr. Lovett, in laymen's terms, would you please 

7 giV~ us a description of the heating system in o-wing. 

8 A. Is it permissible to read? 

9 Q. You may read from notes. 

0 MR. COHLER": That is satistactory. 

1 THE WITNESS: Each and every cel·l in o-wing and the 

2 officers' area is heated and ventilated by a forced air 

3 ,system~ Each cell has a supply duct entering iq one upper 

4 rear corner of tne cell. An exhaust duct removes air from 

5 officers 1 corner and the cell. 

6 One large fan supplies air to the entire building, ~n-

7 eluding the officersw section. This air is heated, if 

8 necessary, by a set of coils which are heated by hot water. 

9 The temperature of this water is con~trolled by sub-master 

:o controls, which 1n turn are con troll-> by an outside therm -

:1 stat, w:ttich senses the ambient air t.-.erature and raises 

~ or lowers the water temperature accordingly. 

!3 This system WfS design~d by the California State De-
I 

partment of Architecture arid. was installed originally when 

l5 the building was constructed. 
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-1 The air is exhausted from the building through ducts 

2 extending to all cells and the officers• area by one large 

3 ~xhaust fan which is sized to pr~vent a negative Rressure 

4 ih the buildingo 

5 MR. GRANUCCI: Q. Mr. Lovettt, I am going to show you 

6 a photograph which I have already shown counsel and ask 

7 you to describe what that depicts. 

8 MRo COBLER~ What photograph, counsel? 

9 MRo GRANUCCI: The first one. , '! L •· l,_ 

10 THE WITNESS: This is a louvere
1
.fi building on the roof 

'·~:"~--4~~--~:~ .... 'i\" 

11 of the Administration Building i~b~titr~l-Tra{hing Facilit. 

12 MRo GRANUCCI~ Now I will show you another photograph 

13 and ask you what that depictso 

14 This is two_ master thermostats operated by air, 

~ which senses the outside air temperature at all times and · 

16 controls the heating not only in o-wing, but all of the 

17 other Central Facility buildings at Soledad~ 

18 Q. I show you a third picture and ask you what that 

19 depicts. 

20 This is the picture of the inside of one of the 

n quiet cells showing specifically the intake or supply air 

22 duct louvers and the exha·ust air louvers. 

23 Q. Mr. Lovett, how often is the air changed in the 

24 quiet cells? 

~ MRo COHLER~ Excuse me, counselo I would obiect, hril~s 
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1 th.e question is .phrased: ·How often is the air supposed to 

2 be changed if the system is working as described? 

3 MRo GRANUCCI: All righto That is the question. 
~. 

4 ~· How often is the ai~ changed wheri the system is 

5 working as described? 

6 Once every six minutesG 

7 MR. GRANUCCI: I offer these three'photographs. 

8 THE COURT: They may be marked for identificationo 

9 THE CLERK: Defendants' Exhibits O, P and Q. 

10 

11 

12 MR. GRANUCCI: Q. 

(Three photographs were marked 
for identification as De­
fendants• Exhibits o, P and Q.) 

Mro Lovett, does that system work 

13 ~utomatically? Or is it operated by a member of the staff? 

14 A. The system operates as preset continually 24 hours 

lli a day, and the only thing required is preventative main-

18 tenance or perhaps repairs are required on occasi6n if 

17 something breaks down. In other words, there is no setting 

18 it manually every day for a certain temperature~ It goes 

19 up and down with the outside air. 

20 CROSS -EXAMINATION 

21 BY MR.. KOHLER: 

22 Q. Mr. Lovett, you stated that the ait change, if the 

~ system is working as described6 in the quiet cell area 

M every six minuteso is that right? 

25 Yes .. 
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1 Q. Would that not be affected whether or not-- Let 

2 me go back, if I may. 
) 

3 Have you ever seen a quiet cell or a strip ceal your-

4 self? 

5 A. Many times. 

6 Q. You are familiar with the flap arrangement on the 

7 doors and windows? 

8 A. Yes sir. 

9 Q. Would the change of air as you have described it 

10 every six minutes be affected in any way by whether the 

11 flaps are closed or open? 

12 A. It would work just as effectively if the flaps wer 

13 ·Closed. 

14 Q. Would it work just as effectively if the flaps were 

15 open? 

16 A. It would. 

17 Q. I will have to ask you to explain that a little bi • 

18 It seems to me, as a layman, if there is a closed room or 

19 an open room, it makes a difference. 

20 Well, you are going into something pretty deep her • 

21 ·To give a sensible explanation, I have ·l.ilrge blueprints to 

~ show you the entire syst~m, how the entire system is--
. .J 

23 building is ventilated through many ducts 1 which in turn 

24 are broken down into.many areas, and those cells, apprQxi-:-
~ .....,.,.,... 

25 rnately 590 cubic ~eet, ·have about 100 cubic feet a minute 
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l coming in through one of the ducts which is in the picture, 

2 or'one of the grilles, and circulates around and back out 

3 another one. 

4 The building is pressurized by_having the supply fan 

5 put more air into the building that the exhaust air is 

6 moving. So if you have it open, there would be a small 

7 balance of air that would move on out into the corridor, 

8 out the open windows and so forth. If it was closed, just 

9 what it was s~zed for. 

10 

11 

12 

Q. 

Q. 

Would you--

If the flaps were closed. 

Excuse me. Would you say that based upon your ex-

~ perience as an engineer, and particularly your experience 

M in this institution with this system, that the flow of air. 

W is such that it could be noticed.by holding your hands u~ 

16 to the vents? 

17 A. It is not. 

18 Q. It is not. 

19 A. That is not good engineering. 

20 MR. COHLER: Thank you. 

21 REDIRECT EXAMINATION.·: 

22 BY MR. GRANUCCI: 

23 

24 

25 

Q. Do you know whether ·the· ventilating ·system was 
. -· 

j 

working during July 19~5? 

A. I have searched .all records, and· I find no reco.rd 



00804 
422 

1 of thac system being down for repairs at any time during 

2 July 1965o 

) 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

4 BY MR. COHLER: 

5 Mr. Lovett, did you inspect the system, that you 

6 recall, in July 1965? 

7 A 0 I don°t recall any particular than of the many 

8 inspections I have mad~ of the system. As Chief Engineer-

9 we have a statonary engineer that operates the heat~ng and 

w ventilating system* and .I merely check with him occasional 

ll if ne requests assistance or I want ~o see how he is doing 

12 on his job. On occasions, I will go through and look at 

13 . t h e s y s t ern rn y s e 1 f . 

14 Q. I not1.ce in the picture which you described as re-

W fleeting the inside of the quiet.~ell, that the vents are~ 

16 

17 

18 

19 

high on the wall. Is that correct? 

Yes~ 

Q,. The change of air would be for the whole cell? 
. . 

Or just for that air which happened to be up? Is there an 

~ circulation system built in, in ter~s o£ u~ and down? 
. . _J, ~ 

21 A. The natural humidity of. air coining through the 

~ venLs, such as this room here, you keep your flow of air 

~ above the occupants. As it comes in, nat~rally it is 

24 mov~ng around and is on its way back out. In other word~:J, 

~ it doesnnt make a circle_from one vent to the othero 
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l Q. Even in·a square cell, or a rectangular cell? 

2 A. No, it wouldn't do that. 

3 MRo COBLER: Thank you. 

4 MR .. GRANUCCI: May the.witness be excused? 

5 THE COURT: Yes. 

6 (Witness excused.) 

7 MR. GRANUCCI: Call Mr. Donnelly. 

8 THE CLERK: Mr. Donnelly. 

9 ROBERT H. DONNELLY, 

10 recalled as a witness on behalf of the defendants, having 

11 been previously duly sworn, was examined and testified 

12 further as follows: 

15 THE CLERK: Restate your name for the record. 

14 THE WITNESS: .Robert H. Donnelly. 

15 FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

16 BY MR. GRANUCCI: 

17 Q. were you in the courtroom this morning during the 

18 session which commenced at 9:30? 

19 A. Yes sir. 

Q. Did you hear certain questi~ns pose~ b~ oppos~ng 
' counsel respecting certain trouble at North Y~cility dur-

22 ing the summer of 1965? · 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

I' did. 

What did fou do after you heard those~~uest~ons? 

I went to out a phone and contacted~Deputy 
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1 Super int.endent. Black presently in charge of the inst1 tution 

2 and asked him to search the North Facility records to find 

5 out if a racial disturbance had occurred on Jul~ 19th or 

4 20th or thereabouts. 

5 Q. What did Mr. Black tell you? 

6 Mr. Black told me over the phone that a racial 

7 ·disturbance had occurred at North Facility on June 29 1965# 

8 and that they have no record of any major disturbance at 

9 North Facility during the month of July 1965. 

10 Q. Now, Mr. Donnelly, I forgot to ask you the last 

11 time on the stand, do you have any malice toward the 

12 plaintiff? 

13 I do not, sir. 

14 Q. Did you ever conspire with the other defendants to 

ill deprive him of his constitutional rights? 

16 MRo COHLER: For the record, Your Honor, the same 

17 obJection as previously stated. 

18 THE COURT: Overruled e 

19 THE WITNESS: I have not conspiredo 

20 MR. GRANUCCI: ~ ·Now, Mr. Donnelly, do you have any 

n responsibilities as *egard to transfer of inmates or re~ 

~ commending the transfet of an inmate between various in~ 

23 s tit u t ions ? 

As a member of the classification cQmJPittees .a.nd 

• also as Deput~ superintendent, being Chairma~ of the 
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2 Q .• Do you have present intention regarding the trans-

3 fer of the plaintiff to another institution at the con-

4 elusion of this case? 

5 I d.o, sir. 

6 Q_. Would you please state that intention? 

7 It 1s my 1ntention to request that Mr. Jordan be 

8 transfecred from the institution at Soledad at the end of 

9 these ~earings. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Q_. 

Q .• 

May I ask your reason for such transfer? 

There are two. 

What are they? 

One reason is that, because of the publicity which 

14 thJ..s tr1al has. received, I believe Mr. Jordan would be a 

W cause celebre, a focal point to ~orm a leadership against~ 

M not that he would necessarily be looking for this 9 but tha 

17 thJ..s would tend to form naturally around him. 

18 Q. You think that this is something that might be 

~ thrust upon him, is that correct? 

20 It is possible. I also believe that if Mr. Jordan 

21 were to get into any disciplinary difficulties at the in-

22 st.1 tution following these proceedings, that there would be 

~ al~a~s th~ question: Were we taking retribution, taking 

24 revenge on Mr.. Jordan because of anything that might come 

25 out of these hearings. 
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l Q. The purp·ose of the transfer then is to alleviate 

2 those.difficulties? 

A. Yes siro 5 

4 Q. Is the purpose of the transfer to in any way re-

5 strict the power of the federal court to act in this case? 

6 

7 Q. 

8 

No siro 

Not to your knowledge? 

Not to my knowiedge. 

9 THE COURT: Will you stipulate, counsel, that any 

10 decree that this Court might enter, that might be entered 

11 notwithstanding the presence or absence of the petitioner 
"---. 

12 Jordan from the Soledad Facility? / 

13 MRo GRANUCCI: Your Honor, could I reserve judgment 

U on that point? We do have some tricky jurisdictional 

15 problems here. 

16 THE COURT: I am used to tricky jurisdictional problem .. 

17 MRo GRANUCCI: It is a matter that I would like to 

18 consult with my clients about, and I think it is also a 

~ matter I would like to consult with my superiors about. 

20 

21 

22 

THE COURT: Until yqu do, we will hold the ·peti.tiotfit'' 

in the custody of the Ma~shal here. 
,.- ~· 

MR o GRANUCCI: I would be prepared to give Your ··Honor 

~ an answer by tomorrqw morning. 

24 

25 

THE COURT: All right. 

MRo GRANUCCI: Your wi tne.ss, counseL. . '-l: •. 

.•. ..:.s 
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FURTHER RECROSS-EXAMINATION ·00809 
.BY MRo COHLER~ · · 

Q. Mr. Donnelly, would it be possible for you to stat 

3 ·on the record that there is no)punishm~nt element whatso-
~· 

4 sver contemplated at this time in ·any form in any move 

5 which may be made of Mr. Jordan? 

6 Yes sir. 

7 Q .• And that his conduct, particularly during the past 

s six months, as it may be viewed by the authorities at the 

9 institution, will be passed along to any transferee in-

10 stitution? 

11 That is our intention, yes air. 

12 MRo COHLER: Thank you, Mr. Donnelly. 

13 THE COURT:~ Mr. Donnelly, do you have any jurisdiction 1 

14 right or authority over the so-called Youth Authority in­

W matesJ that is, with respect to ~he transfer of Youth 

~ Authority inmates to your Facility, sir? 

17 THE WITNESS: No sir. The transfer of Youth Autnority 

~ inmates is reserved to the Youth Authority. All transfer~ 

19 of Youth Authority wards between institutions is don~ by 

~ the Youth Authority itself, and not_by the instit~tion. 

21 THE COURT: Then the order of the Youth Authority--

22 Let us· t'ake the illustra.tion of the young 'man'w:ho-t'estifie , 

23 

24 

25 

19 years of age, who admittedly was in some difficulty~-
·····-··--

you have to accept that transfer, do you? 
t,. 

THE WITNESS: Yes sir. According 'to the law o~f the 
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1 State of California, as I understand it, the Youth 

z Au~hority may place any of their wards in any of the in-

3 stitutions of the State, whether the Department pf Mental 
"' 

4 Hygiene6 well, whatever it is. 

5 THE COURT~ And the wisdom, or lack of wisdom of the 

6 transfer in question would not be for your discretion at 

7 all? 

8 THE WITNESS: Except if a transfer might appear unwise 

9 to mee I might make recommendation to the Youth Authority. 

W But I ~ave no authority to change their action. 

11 THE COURT: How long has that practice been engaged in 

12 in the transfer of the Youth Authority inmates to your 

13 fa c i 1 it y? 

U THE WITNESS: Well, actually, the Youth Authority, I 

W believe, has been placing wards ~n the Department of Cor~ 

16 rect ions institutions for quite some time, Your ·Honor. Th 

17 situation at Soledad, we have worked very closely with the 

18 Youth Authority because North Facility has been for some 

~ time almost, not quite, but almost half Youth Authority 

20 wards. The numbers of wards·· at Not\h :P'acility has been 

21 gradually diminishing. I believe right at the moment it 
;!:'', 

22 mi.ght be s,omewhere in "'·t'he nature of 225. When I was at 
·' 

23 North Facility, we have·· had as high as 550 wards at North 

M Facility, out of a total population of about 1,200, ap-

~ proximat~ly half of the population. 
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. 1 Now~ when the Youth Authority wards at North Fac~lit~ 

2 got into difficultyo the Youth Authority didgive the Nort 

3 ·Facility the authority to transfer the men to the Adjust-
"" 

4 ment Center for holding purposes .. · 

5 THE COURTg Do you know of any reason why Soledad is 

6 selected as a facility to house that type of inmate 6 as 

7 ~istinguished from any other facility that might be avail­

S able? 

THE WITNESS; 1 believe it has been the question of 

w popula~ion pressures on the Youth Authority. 

11 THE COURTg Population pressures? 

12 ~HE WITNESS~ Yes .. The numbers of wards as opposed to 

13 the number of beds that are availablec They are presently 

14 opening an institution at Stockton, and I believe this 

15 accounts o in part, for the gradu~lly diminishing number of 

16 Youth Authority wards that are at North Facility~· 

17 THE COURT~ No further questions .. 

18 FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

19 BY MRo OAKES~ 

20 Q,. Mr. Donnelly, would the Youth Authoritt determina-

n tion to transfer a ward to CTF have to do with the fact of 

22 the type of inmates e primarily. the age grq~p of inamates 

23 normally housed at CTF? 

24 Yes, I believe it is a combination of t.hose things 

25 When it would come down to a question of· needing b~d ·space~ 
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1 I believe they would operate on the principle that th~ mer 

2 ac~ing out inmate would come to North Facility, arid the 

5 ·less acting out inmate or more amenable inm:~te to the·,.; 

4 Youth Authorityo 

5 Q. They would prefer to send them: to·¢TF rather than 

6 San Quentin? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. 

Because of the age factor? 

Yeso .· ·.:-.··,. 

Would also the fact that the Trairiin<Jf ~·acility is 
'• ·,.' 

11 a training facility? I know you can\t ~p~jk'~~~ the Youth 

12 Authority, but do you believe this to·b:e<ttre 6ase? 
. '-· •I ' 

, ' I 

13 A. I believe that the Youth AuthoriFY is concerned 

14 about the atmosphere in which the youth is being housed, 

W and I believe North Facility, de~pite some training op-

W portunities 6 does have the reputation of bein~ a place in 

H which the wards may be better able to conduct themselves. 

18 FURTHER RECROSS -EXAMINATION 

19 

20 

BY MRo COBLER~ 
·.' ··: ' .. :~::~~ ·. 

Q. Mr 0 Donnelly, you have referred to the·· Nort~~/; 

21 Facility several times. · Now, when the ward of the .. ;Y'.q;~t'h 

~ Authority is transferred to Soledad, is that a transfei 

~ - North Facility? or precisely what is it a transf~r to? 

24 The Youth Authority may transfer and ha&transferr 
'· 

25 wards to both North Facility, or they might refer the 
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to Central Faci~ity. 

Q. Do they specify which? 

Ao YeS 6 they doo 

00813 

~ Has it ever happened, to ~our knbwl•dge, that a 

ward transferred to Correctional Training Facility North 

has been placed in the Adjustment Center, which is in the 

qentral Facility? 

Yes siro 

Would you tell the Court, please, in what manner 

W that is jurisdictionally proper, from your point of view, 

11 when the assignment was originally to North, and he is the 

12 placed in the central Facility? 

13 

14 aroseQ 

I was present in North Facility when this question 

I became concerned over wards being placed in the 

15 Adjustment Center, and we receiv•d permission, because of_ 

16 the necessity of trying to operate North Facilit~, we 

17 received the authority to move wards temporarily from Nort 

18 Facility to the Adjustment Center, the fact being then, I 

19 think at the next appearance, which would be the following 

~ month, of the Youth Authority at So~edad, the cas~ of the 

21 ward could be brought up to the Youth Authority for de-

[22 termination as to whether or not he·should be returned to 

~ North Facility, transferred to, perh~ps, another instituti­

M or released, or kept in the Adjustment Center, whatever tb 

~ disposition of the Youth Authority might b~o 
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l Q. · Is it. .fair to say that the transfer to Central 6 

2 including the Adjustment Center, was contemplated as a 

3 temporary populatiori probLem r•lieving transfer! 

4 No siro Transfers from North to the Adjustment 

5 center? 

6 

7 

8 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yeso 

No siro To the best of my kriowledge it--

As far as the authority from the Youth Authority 

9 Board to do so, did they contemplate that you have open 

.0 access to moving them to the Adjustment Center whenever yo 

.1 felt proper in your own discretion? Or was this to relieve 

2 you of a particular problem at North? 

. 3 A . This was simply to provide us with a method of 

A controlling inmates who might have been acting up. 

. 5 Q . Including confinement not only in the Adjustment~ 

.6 Center, but in the quiet or strip cell area if y"ou felt 

.7 necessary? 

.8 I believe that was the understanding. The Adjust-

l9 ment Center has been visited by members of the Youth 

~0 Authority. 

MR. GRANUCCI: No further qu~stions of this witness. 

22 May he be excused? 

23 THE COURT~ Yes. 

(Witness excused.) 

Z5 M.R ~ GRANUCCI; Your Honor, I had planned at this time 
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1 to recall Sup~rintendent Fitzharris. I would ask leave no 

2 to do so., His testimony would be short. I would ask leav 

3· instead to call him tomorrow morning for short ~estimonyQ ., 
4 Without going into too many of the ·details, the reason 

5 for my delay relates to the court's request for corres-

6 pondence between the'office of Mr. McGee and the office of 

7 Mr. Fitzharris., I ask now that these proceedings be con-

a t1nued until tomorrow morning@ at which time we would ask 

g leave to recall Mr. Fitzharrism 

lO MRo COHLER: May 1 say two things6 if it please the 

11 Court? 

12 First, I think it was inadvertent, counsel, but it was 

13 not only the office of Mr. McGee, but that would include 

l4 the office of Mr. Dunbar and anyone--

15 MR. GRANUCCI: Yes~ Sacramento. 

16 MRa COHLER: Secondlyi Your Honor, I would 1~ke to be 

~ advised, if it is possible, if we may move directly into 

~ argument following the conclusion of the testimony tomorro 

19 morning 9 or what the Court may conte~plate in that line? 

20 THE COURT: How much testimony ~o you inte~4 to have? 

21 - MR o GRANUCCI ~ Five minutes, or less, of direct, and 

~ then as much cross as eounsel feels is app~opriate. 

23 MR~ COHLERg And I am going to as.k that the Court for 
~"' ~ ... ... -;. ~ 

M leave to recall Mr. Jordan tor two questions. 

25 THE COURT~ I think, under the circun\stances, you coul 
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l advance into the argumentsa if you desire to do so. -

z MRo GRANUCCI ~ At the present time, Your Honor? 

3 THE COURT;: Or have the matter stand over. I under-

4 stand the transcripts are· not av.ailable·, counsel. 

5 MR~ COHLER: Your Honor, I am prepared to go into argu 

6 rnent following the ccinclusion of testimony tomorrow 

7 morning with, of course, the understa-nding that recollecti n 

8 of testimony may not be as accurate as it wohld be with th 

9 use of a transcript. There has been only one of me taking 

10 notes~ Perhaps other counsel, with two, would have better 

11 notes. 

12 MRo GRANUCCI~ Your Honor, ordinarily I would say I 

13 would be prepared to start now~ However, the testimony is 

14 not complete, and we are the defendants in this case, and 

w I think we should have the opportunity to answer the 

16 plaintiff 9 s argument before we start. 

17 

18 

THE COURT: When would you prefer to go forward,counse ~ 

MR~ GRANUCCI: As soon as counsel finishes his argu-

19 ment .. 

20 

21 

MR.. COHLER: 

THE COURT: 

That is .satisfactory. 

Under the circumstances, if it be agree-

22 able to counsel··, we wil.l go forward with the arguments to-· 
,'<-

23 

24 

25 

morrow. ; 

MR. GRANUCCI: That is fine, Your Hdnor. 

MR. COHLER: Satis£actory. 
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l MRo GRANUCCI ~-. Your Honor, about how much time would 

2 Your. Honor want to limit the arguments to? 

5 THE COURT~ I have said this before, but I gue~s it 

4 bears repetitiono 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

I never try to place limits on argument& It is pretty 

much within the bounds of counsels' own demands and the 

demands of the case~ 

Do you think you can conclude the arguments tomorrow? 

MRo GRANUCCI: I think I could, Your Honor. My own 

experience has been primarily in the Appellate Court of LO 

Ll 

L2 

the State and in this Circuit where they do rather stringe tly 

limit time., 

L3 MRQ COHLER; Your Honor, I have no experience in any 

l4 court prior to this, but I feel that in the absence of the 

L5 transcript I will be able to be as succinct as possible 

~ and contemplate within.an hour, with responsese al~o, to 

~ questions from the Bench if the Court so desires. 

18 THE COURT: We will proceed on that basis, and if the 

19 demands of the arguments run over, or if the matters re­

W quire additional attention, we will continue over until 

n Tu~sday of the'£ollowing week. 

22 MRo GRANUc'CI: I don • t think that will be n~·cessary ~·· 

~ But is quite agreeable. 

24 MR~ COHLER: Thank you, Your Honor. 

25 THE COURT; On this memorandum t;l,lbmittea to the Court, 

1· 

. .... ..,.{ . 
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1 I .should l1ke an opportunity to go over it, ahd we will 

2 discuss it later" 

3 MR .. GRANUCCI: I will not mention that memor,ndum 
~, 

4 further, Your Honor8 until Your H6nor has let us have his 

6 opin1on on it. 

6 TBE COURT: We will resume the calendar tomorrow at 

8 (A discussion was had between the Court and the Clerk 

9 Not within the hearing of the Reporter.) 

10 THE COURT~ 1 would suggest renewing the matters at 

11 hand in this case of Jordan at 10:30 tomorrow. 

12 MR. COHLER: Shall we commence argument immediately 

13 following evidence? 

14 THE COURT: As soon as Mr. Fitzharris is excused from 

15 the stand .. 

16 MR. COHLER: And the two questions of the plaintiff~ 

17 Thank you e Your Honor Q 

18 (Whereupon the hearing was recessed until 10:30 a.m. 

19 Friday, August 19 1966.) 

~ --ooo--

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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l FRIDAYu AUGUST 19 1966 - MORNING SESSION - 10:30 A.M.-

2 

s 

THE CLERKg 44309 and 44786. 

MR. COHLERg Ready for the ~laintiff and petitioner, 

4 Your Honor. 

5 MR. GRANUCCI: Ready for the de~endant, Your Honor. 

6 May it please the Court, counsel have conferred and 

7 agreed that the following statemeni shpuld be read into the 

~ record, with Your Honor's approval# of course, regarding 

the inquiry add~essed by telegram to the Court from the 

father·of Philip Millette, deceased. 

11 All records presently available within the Department 

of Corrections relating to Philipe Millette, deceased, 

when made available, the original documents to the Court 

and Xerox copies to opposing counsel. 

In chambers opposing counsel related the views of an 

independent psychiatrist, known by reputation to .the Court, 

and I related the views of Dr. Hack, consulting psych~atr~.t~ 

"After discussion, it was the judgment of all counsel 

and the Court that the matter of the apprent suicide of 

Philip Millette bar~ no relev~nce to the insta~t litiga-
·1 

tion.u 

THE COURTg That is a correct st~tement. 

MRo GRANUCCI~ Thank yo4, Your ~pnor. 
··~ 

I also want to thank the: Q<::;)UJ:t. i'or the opportunity to 

read this statement into the ~eoord. · 
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'l"HE· COURT~ Very wello sir. 

MR. GRANUCCJg Call Mr. Fitzharrisg please. 

THE CLERK~ Mr. Fitzharris.) 

4 CLETUS J •. FI':£1ZHARRIS, 

00820 

5 recalled as a witness on behalf of the defendants, having 

6 been previously duly ~worn, resumed th~ stand and testifie 

7 further as follows~ 

8 'l'HE CLERK; 

9 for the record. 

lO 

ll 

~2 

THE WITNESS~ 

BY MR. GRANUCCI ~ 

Will the witness please restate his name 

Cletus J. Fitzharris. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

Q. Mr. Fitzharris. I believe that durin 

.3 your previous testimony you testified that certain changes 

.4 were inaugurated in Adjustment Center procedure following 

.5 discussions between yourself and_ your staff. 

. 6 A . Thatqs right. 

. 7 Q .. Would you please tell the Court whether you have 

! attempted to refresh your recollection concerning this 

.9 rna t ter during the interval? 

:o A. On the changes that were--

:l Q. On the changes that were inaugurated? 

!2 Ao we-116 this relates back 
/.i 

to the testimony of Mr. 

~3 Donnelly--

~ Is this what you have reference to? 

That is right, Mr. Fitzharris. 
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l Ao Mr. D~nnelly~s testimony was to the effect that 

2 Mr. McGee had made some representations to ~e or to the 

s· institution. which was not true--not--I represented to him, 

4 I told him that Mr. McGee had maae inqtiiry. May I relate 

5 to the--

6 Q. Please relate the circumstances of that inquiry. 

7 I can~t relate the time, but·at a meeting of all o 

8 che warden~ and superintendents of the Department of 

9 Corrections, plus other staff people 6 Mr. McGee, as he 

10 usually does at one of these meetings, takes a little time 

11 to brief us on many things that are happening in the legis 

12 lative end of things 6 the research and various things that 

13 are going on of which he is aware and wants to bring us 

14 aboard~ 

15 As a part of this discussion! he mentioned. that he h.~d 

16 had conversations with one of the Supreme Court· ·Justices--

17 I don't know which one- -concerning a writ that had been 

18 filed. 

19 Q. Mr. Fitzharris, to interrupt you~ did he say what 

~ inmate h~d filed the writ? 

21 He did not state any inmate, nor did he say what 

~ institution. I have no certain knowledge where that writ 

23 carne from. 

24 

25 

Q. 

Ao 

Proceed. 

His caution was that in these· day·s when the Courts 
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l are taking a mpre searching look at human rights, th~t all 

2 caution should be observed in dealing with the inmates in 

3 disciplinary mattersa That is as far as I can r~call what -
4 was said at that particular point: 

5 Nowe whether at that meeting or the subsequent meeting 
. ~ 

6 of the wardens and superintendents, I am not sure, but Mr. 

7 Dunbar again made the same point, again referring to all 

8 wardens and superintendents, making no reference to any 

9 particular case or no specific institution, but again 

10 cautioning all of us as to the need to keep an eye out for 

11 the rights of the individual. 

12 Q. Mr. Fitzharris, if these comments had been directe 

13 to conditions at Soledad, do you think your memory would 

U be clearer? 

15 A. I am positive. One doesn't like to be embarra~sea 

~ in front of his peers. 

17 Q. Or his superiors, either, I take it. 

18 Now, following these two--following these meetings or 

19 consultations with Mr. McGee and Mr. Dunbar, did you 

20 receive a memorandum from Mr. Stutsman? 

21 A. That is right. 

Q. Have you examined this copy of the memorandum? 

A. I haveo 

Q. Is that copy substantially accurat~? 

~~ A. I think SOo 

I 
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l MR. GRANUCCI: Your Honor, I would like to interject 

2 here. Your Honor asked for a search of the files f~r a 

5 correspondence between, generallJy speaking, the Sacramento 

4 office of the Department of Corrections and Mr. Fitzharris' 

5 office. A search was made at Soledad. 

6 Q. Is that correct, Mr. Fitzharris? 

' 7 A. That is true~ 

8 Q. Were these documents found there? 

9 A. No~ If I may, I might explain that my secretary 

10 is on vacation and the substitute was unable to find any 

file that bore thiso But I do recall that particular--11 

12 MRo GRANUCCI ~ However, Your Honor, I will represent 

~ to the Court that a search was requested in Sacramento. 

14 The documents were found. They were read over the phone t 

15 my secretary 6 who transcribed them from the telephone con-

16 versation. 

17 THE COURT: I will accept the documents through your 

18 office. 

19 MR. COHLER: Yes, Your Honor. Thi~ is the best avail-

00 able evidence, and there is no objection. 

MRo GRANUCCI: Of course, on~he other hand, were-
.. 

~l 

22 serve any ~ther objections. But certainly this is the bes. 

23 available 'evi.dence. 

24 

25 

THE COURTg very well. 
,. 

MR ~ GRANUCCI: 
' -.: 

I am not prepared to vouch for the 



442 . 
1 actual verbatim accuracy of these transcriptions. r-will 

2 vouch for their substantial accuracy. 

3 

4 

THE. COURT~ Very .well. 

MRa GRANUCCI: Q. Now, was the first item of corres-

5 pondence a memorandum dated February 1 1966, from Mr~ 

6 Stutsman 0 Chief Deputy Director of the Department of 

7 Corrections, to all wardens, subject ~nmage discipline? 

8 MR. COHLER: Excuse me. 

9 THE COURT: One moment, counsel. 

10 Have you had an opportunity to examine these? 

11 MR. COHLER: Yes, Your Honor, !_have copies. 

12 With respect to counsel's pending question--

13 Are you asking, counsel, whether this is the first such 

14 document as found? Or are you asking for the witness~ 

15 recollection? I think we ought to be careful thereo 

16 MRQ GRANUCCI: I am representing that th~se thtee are 

17 all copies--are what was found of the correspondencea Now6 

18 I am asking the witness about his recollection .. 

19 THE WITNESS: Aside from the date~ I think the informa-

W tion therein and the signature thereon, it is ~ubstantiall~ 

21 --it is. I dontit remember the date offh~nd. 

22 MR. GRANUCCI: I offer this. as defendantsf next .. for 
\'~ 

.~ identif~9ation. 

24 

25 

THE COURT: 

THE CLERK: 

56 orderedo 

Defendants 9 R for identi£ication. 
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(A letter dated February_ i 1966 
to All Wardens and S~perinten­
dents, was mark~d Defendantso 
Exhibit R for identification.) 

) 

Now, in reply to ·that memorandum 

5 addressed to all wardens~ did you in turn send a reply, 

6 addressed to Director Dunbar? 

7 

6 

9 

10 

11 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

I dido 

Is it dated April 13 1966? 

That is true. 

Is this a copy or a transcription of that? 

Insofar as I can tell, it seems to be, and the 

12 logic of the whole--this is a cover lettere 

13 Q. That is a cover letter. 

14 Defendants 1 next for identification. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

THE CLERK: Defendants' Exhibit S for identification._ 

MR. GRANUCCI ll Q. 

(Copy of a letter dat~d April 13 
1966, Mr. Fitzharris to Mr. 
Dunbar, was marked for identi­
fication as Defendants' 
ExhibitS.) 

With the cover letter, was there in-

20 eluded a memorandum to your:,:;elf from R. H. Donnelly, sub-

21 ject, inmate discipline, dated April 12 1966? 

22 

23 

That is trueo , 

MR. GRANUCC I: 
;, 

Defendants' next i~;order for identi-

24 fication. 

25 THE CLERK~ Defendants 9 T fo~ identification~ 
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(A copy of a letter dated Apr~l 
12 1966, Mi. Donnelly to M~. 
Fitzharris~ was marked for 
identification as DefendantsR 
Exhibit T.) , 

Dir~cting your attention to the 

5 memo of February 1 1966-- Incidentally, Mr. Fitzha~ris# 

6 do you have a copy of that? 

7 A. In my briefcase in the back th~re. It is in the 

8 second or third row. 

9 Which one are we talking about now? 

10 Q. The one dated February 1 1966, the third sentence 

11 of the third paragraph. 

~ To the best of your understanding, what were the 

~ questionable practices referred to in that sentence? 

MRo COHLER: Counsel, are you asking what the--14 

15 MR0 GRANUCCI: What the witness• understanding of that 

16 was. 

17 MR. COHLER: Of that was at the time he received the 

18 letter? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

-MRo 

THE 

MR. 
- ' 

A. 

GRANUCCI: That is 

WITNESS: I didnlt 

GRANUCCI ~ Q. You 

As I recall, the·re 

correct. 

know. 

didn't know? " 

had been no items brought to 

~ anybody 0 s attention in any of these meetings, there w•s 

24 nothing specified in this memorandum. I took this to mean, 

W that "whoever is doing something wrong. stop it." 
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l Q. Have you or did you subsequently, pursuant.to that 

2 memorandum, undertake a review of Adjustment Center pro-

3 cedures? Or had that been undertaken previousl~, if you 

4 can remember? 

5 A.. I can 1 t exactly place it, but I am sure, from my 

6 usual method of procedure, that when I come home from one 

7 ,of these meetings and something has been emphasized by the 

8 Director or the Administrator or some other member of the 

9 staff, that seems to me to bear some looking into or need 

10 some action, I usually get set on doing it right awaye 

11 

12 

14 

Q. Fine~ 

A. So I presume that we had some discussions prior to 

receiving this. But I have no positive recollectiono 

Q. Nowe there is a letter dated--the next exhibit, 

15 dated April 13 1966, from yourse~f to Mr. Dunbar, the 

~ second paragraph dealing with the installation of an auto-

17 rnatic flushing device for the Oriental toilets in the ·strip 

18 cells, would you read the next sentence, please~ 

19 A. "This eliminates the possibility of staff becoming 

ro involved in other matters and not f~ushing the ·toilets 

u' with regularity.~ 

22 

23 

Q. What did you me~n by that sentence? 

MR: COBLER: Your Ho?or,_I,t~ink the do6ument speaks 
• 0 

24 for it'self. 

25 
'. 

MR. GRANUCCI: , I ·think the--document· does not speak for 
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1 itself. 

2 THE COURT: He may explain. 

5 MR. GRANUCCI: The witness is entitled to expl;ain • . , 
4 THE COURT~ He may explain. 

5 THE WITNESS: My point was simply this, that if the 

8 Adjustment Center is iri the state of fiege and in the state 

7 o~ riot and we are adding additional personnel to try to 

B bring the thing under cQntrol, as we do frequently, we 

~ can 1 t always depend on an officer's thinking at that time 

) that, "~his is now the time to flush the toilets." Besides 

L it is a time-consuming thing to unlock, go down in the 

~ tunnel, flush the toilets, come back and lock the tunnel. 

So in the conservation of staff time in an urgent 

~ situation, and the fact that the human element enters this 

thing, always will and always wo~ld, this is what I had in 

mind. 

~ The next sentence refers to the availability of 

water and personal hygiene materials to inmates in strip 

cells so that hygiene may be maintained. Would you please 

explain to the Court your point in ~hat sentence. 

~ well, I think we had reviewed this matter 5 of the 
......... ' 

a iupplying of washbasins and the pitchers for the water, and 
,, ' 

at that point~we had al~eaQy installed them. 
r • .., v ; 

Q. Now, ~he memorandum from Mr. Donnelly to yourself· 

dated April 12 1966;. secqncf p~g~, paragraph··~,· th~t P;'Fagr · 
-~ '. .. ; .. ; '' - ': '- . ' -
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-
1 makes reference to an apparent deviation from stric~ ad-

2 herence to the Directorqs rules. Mr. Fitzharris, what was 

5 that deviation? ~· 

~- The only one that I can thlnk of; and I haven9t had 

5 a chance to ~pend too much time thinking and certainly 

6 havenit had a chance to review the records, but the only 

7 one I recall at the moment, was that it was the custom and 

8 practice in the past, and contrary to the Director!s rules, 

9 that if an inmate persisted in boisterous, obscene, 

10 obnoxious behavior, verbal or otherwise, and continued to 

ll do this in spite of repeated warnings, the step prior to 

12 having to take him back to the quiet cell was to recommend 

13 a five-day, what they call cell exercise~ which means he 

14 is not turned out into the corridor to pace up and down the 

15 long corridor, but rather is enco_uraged to use isometric 

M exercises. At least, he is assigned to his cell without 

17 his daily exercise. 

16 Now, at that point we found that the officers were 

19 recommending this to the sergeant and the serg~ant was 

00 approving it, an4 while it wasn't a greit deviation,.be9•us 

21} .. regulations provide thi3.t .. the prog_ram administrator could. 

22 approve it, ne·\rertheless,- we went one step further and made 

~ it so that th~: disciplinary committee. would have to approve 

24 it,. 

25 This is the only ~aviation from any ;•gulatiqns that I , 
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1 can think of c 

2 MRo GRANUCCI: Very good, Mr. Fitzharris. Now, to sum 

up: To the best of your knowlEidge, were the cha;nges in 
. . 

4 ·the Adjustment Center procedure occasioned or motivated 

5 by this lawsuit? 

6 I am positive, in my own mind, that they were not. 

7 ~here was a discussion had in file of'l~st year concerning 

8 the deprivation of inmates in quiet cells of their clothing, 

9 and I was told by the staff that one of the serious reasons 

10 --one of the serious reasons--was that we had had a suicide 

11 by the use of the coveralls; and, two6 there had been fre-

12 quently burning of the clothing and mattresses and so forth. 

13 In September--and this we didn't remember the other 

M day--but in September of last year, certainly long before 

15 this suit was involved, we sent qut I have forgotten how ~ 

16 many coveralls and how many blankets to be fireproofed so 

17 

18 

19 

20 

they could be 

to burn their 

Q. Fine. 

A4 May I 

issued to people we thought would be inc·lined 

furnishings. 

Thank you, Mr. Fitzharris •. 

continue to say that in my sincere feeling, 

21 none of these so-called improvements were: occasioned by 

~ this lawsuit. They would have happened if this lawsuit 

23 had not been filed. 

24 Q. Mr. Fitzharris, yesterday you heard the testim9~Y: 
: .. · 

~ of Mr. oonnellyg that Mr. Jordan woul~ probably be moved 
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at the conclusion of this lawsuit. 

. Ao Yes Q 

Q. Row, are ther~ plans to •ove him while the case is 

4 under submission? 

5 Ao There are no plans at all at the moment. This is 

6 Mr. Donnelly 1 s recommendation, and this has to be acted 

7 upon by a classification committee and 'it has to be approve 

8 by a representative of the Director 9 s office. This has not 

9 been done6 nor has it been requested. 

W ~ What will be dope with the plaintiff while the case 

11 is before the Judge for his decision and before he decides 

12 it? 

l3 I would hope that plaintiff could be remanded to 

14 the custody of the Marshal. However, if not, we will re-

15 turn him back to Soledad and he can continue to Live in 

16 his same cell. 

17 Q. NOW 0 Mr. Fitzharris, did you ever conspire with 

W any of the other defendants to bring about a deprivation of 

19 the plaintiffis constitutional rights? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MRo COHLER: 

.. THE WITNESS: 

MRo GRANUCCI: 

plaintiff? 

Same objection, Your Honor. 

Nevero 

~ oo· you have any malic~ toward the 

~ None at allc Only disappointment. 

MR. GRANUCCI~ Your witness, counsel. 
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l CROSS-EXAMINATION 

2 BY MRo COHLER~ 

3 Q. Mro Fitzharris8 in addit~on to the meetings of the 

4 wardens and superintendents~ which·! think you said took 

5 place on two occasions--

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I didn°t say two occasions. 

Q. I misunderstoodo Onceo Is that correct? 

I wasnit sure. 

Q. All righto One or two occasions. 

Out~ide of the actual meetings themselves, and so as 

11 to avoid the embarrassment before your peers and superiors 

12 which you related6 was there any private conversation with 

13 you at all from anyone in the Sacramento office regarding 

14 the subject matter you have testified to? 

15 Yes; in~ormally the Director, Director Dunbar 

M talked to me, I think maybe during a coffee break,or some 

17 time informally, at least, and indicated that people, in-

18 mates being put in the quiet cells without clothing should 

19 be watched very carefully~ At that time I recall telling 

20 him that we had already provided for the fireproofing of· 

' n coveralls~ and ~his would probably alleviate a good deal 

22 

23 

of the problemo 

outside of the meetings themselves, there was con-

M versation relating to the same general subject ~attera 

25 directed at you as Superintenc;i~nt .... -not 11 at :you• ~xcuse me~ 
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--convetsatipn with you as Superintendent of the -

Correctional Training Facility. Is that correct? 

A. Only on this one issue, ~ne topic. 

Q. Mr. Fitzharris, reference bas been made to a 

5 memorandum which is Defendants • Exhibit T for identifica-

6 tion, from Mr. Donnell~ to yourself. I believe you have a 

7 c_opy before you. April 12th is the date on the transcript 

8 copy. 

9 I believe you testified that that memorandum was in 

lO the works before the memorandum from Mr. Stutsman to all 

ll wardens o which is Defendants • --

l2 MR. GRANUCCI: Objection. He is misstating the testi-

mony. There was no testimony that this memorandum was in 

l4 the works before the memorandum of February 1st. It was 

~ his testimony that there were ch~nges for review or under 

~ investigation. 

. 7 MRo COHLER: All right . I am sorry. I will start 

l8 over .. 

l9 Q. I believe you testified, Mr. ~itzharris, that 

ID review was under consideration before Mr. Stut~man•s 
. . ' 

U memorandum to all wardens, Defendants' R for identifictt.tion~, 

had been received .. Is t-hat correct? 

A. Right. 

Q. Mr. Donnelly's memorandum bear~ng the date April 

as 12th, Defendants I T for identificatiqn·; $tarts off in' the 
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l following mannere does it not? 

00834 

2 "The following is in reply to Mr. Stutsmanvs 

3 letter of February 1 6 1966 0 subject as above." 

4 

5 

A. Yeso 

MRa COHLERg Those are all of the questions I have. 

6 Howevero defendants have not moved the admission in evi-

7 dence of their exhibits for identification R, S and T. I 

8 would like to have these marked as Plaintiff's Exhibits, 

9 if they are not goipg to move them in evidence,so they may 

10 come in. 

11 MRo GRANUCCI: It is our position, Your Honor, that 

12 any evidence of change in this case is irrelevant and im­

~ material. We have maintained this position throughout the 

14 proceedingso We have marked these exhibits for identi-

15 fication pursuant to the direction of the CourtG 

16 Now, I will not stipulate to the admission of them into 

~ evidence. In factu I think the Court should not even con-

18 sider them, because I think that they relate to matters of 

19 change, and those matters of change themselves are.irrele-

00 vant in this proceeding. 

21 MRo COHLER: Your Honor, these a:qe documents which have. 

22 both served to refresh the memory of this witness, which 

~- were thought to 'possibly exist by Mr. Donnelly, and -hich 

M appeare by Mro Donnelly 9 s testimony, to have beert generate 

~ at least in part from inquiry of the California.Supreme 
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1 Court or a Justice thereof on some informal basis. 

2 The present witness has- stated ~hat there was d;i.s-

3 cussion at a meeting of wardens and superintendents regard-

ing the Court 1 s view of human rights. These documents 

5 appear to have been generated, at least in part8 related 

6 to such discussion. 
~ 

7 The changes are very much 4:-B-- admission, or at'_ least 

8 support the inference of an admission as to whether or not 

9 human rights were properly protected previo~sly~ That is 

D the very heart of this case • 

. 1 As f?lr as relevancy goes o I see no foundation for an 

.2 objection. 

. 3 THE COURTg The objection is overruled • They may be 

.4 .marked. 

5 Do you propose to mark them •s Plaintiff's exhibits? 

6 MR. COHLER: I would be happy to have them as Plaintiff s 

1 exhibits 6 unless the defendants want to keep the same 

8 letters and have them--

.9 MR. GRANUCCI g I have no objection'to them carrying the 

:o same letters 0 But I do not want to. waive my su.bsequent--

1 MR. COBLER: I will stipulate that ~ounsel's record is 

12 protected. 

~3 THE COURT~ .Perhaps._ they could be marked OJ} behalf of 

14 the Court. 
. L 

i 
MRo GRANUCCI~ That is agreeable. 
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l MR. COBLER: I will be happy to have ~hem as Plaintifft 

2 exhibits 0 

3 THE COURTg Very well. 

4 THE CLBRKz Plaintiff's Exhibits 14, 15 and 16. 

~ MRa COBLERg Corresponding to Defendants' for identi-

6 fication, a,· s and T. 

7 THE COURT g They may be marked .. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

(Copi~s df three letters pre­
viously mark~d for identifica­
tion as Defendants' Exhibits R, 
S and T, were marked for identi 
fication as. Plaintiff's 
Exhibits 14, 15 and 16.) 

~ MRa COBLER: I move their admission in evidence. 

13 THE COURTg They may be marked. 

U THE CLERK~ In evidence. 

15 

16 

17 

18 MR. GRANUCCI~ 

' :, 
(Copi~s1of three letters pre-
viousli marked as Plaintiff's 
Exhibits 14, 15 and 16 for 
identification, were received i 
evidence.) 

I ~ave no furth~r questions ·of this 
l 

19 wit·ness 6 Your Honor. May he be_ exctused? 

00 THE COURT~ Yes. 

21 (Witness excusedD) 

22 MR. GRANUCCI:; Your Honor, that concludes the present,a-

~- tion of defendants~ witnesses. I do have some motions. ' 

~ MRo COBLER~ Excuse me. Do you want tq move after your 

25 case? 
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l MR .. GRANUCCI: I want to move be.fore I $Ubmit my case .. 

2 THE COURT: Do you have any rebuttal at all, couns~l? 

3 .MR., COHLER~ You~ Honor, I am going to move a,.,dmission 

4 of documents which have been produced by the defendants 

5 and ask two questions of the plaintiff. 

6 MRo GRANUCCig This is the Wells disciplinary file. 

7 It was subpoenaed from the California Youth Aut~ority. 

8 THE COURT~ May I see it? This is ·as to Wells? 

9 MRo GRANUCCI:: This is as to Wells. Your Hono;r, Youth 

W Authority records, be~ng confidential, are not readily 

11 available, and we had to obtain a subpoena to get them. 

12 Having obtained the subpoena and having received the file, 

13 we copied the documents~ We introduce those into evidence 

U for the same purpose that the other disciplinary records 

~ were introduced. 

M MR. COHLER: Limited to showing bias? 

17 MR. GRANUCCI: Limited to showing bias. 

18 MR. COHLER: Your Honor, so the record may be clear, 

19 I have not reviewed the documents. However,· I would not 

20 object to the offer for the same purpose. 

U I would like the repord to be clear that I do not re-

~ present Mro Wells, and ~ake no representation as tp whethe 

23 or.r not he would want. his documents, ··Which the Youth 
. ·, 

U Authority Board considers private, to be entered·into evi-

25 dence o 

·' 
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l MRo. GRANUCC! g Now, my second motion· is to expand the 

2 consideration by this Court of the disciplinary records 

3 presently before it ~n the plaintiff's inmate and X inmate 

4 records o Those records were introduced to the Court to 

5 show biaso I now move that the Court expand its considera-

6 tion of those records inasmuch as those records constitute 

7 information which was before the defendants and. could 

8 lead them to draw cone lusions about the propriety of Adjust 

9 ment Center and for quiet cell confinement; 

W MR. COHLER: Your Honor, I shall object rather strenu-

U ously to this for several reasons. 

12 First,· the reports themselves are clear hearsay, an 

~ objection which was not raised as to the limited offer. 

U Secondly~ this would mean that the r~ports came in on 

15 that basis after the opp9rttin_ity _for plaintiff and 

16 petitioner to present any,~n;·w~J::~.Pg side of stories or 
' . ·' "'~-~:>-· ~'~:~:·~·J_!':~:· -- . " 

17 things of th~t matter, ncit:as to what the incident reported 

18 . was, but as to wHat ~appenecf in the hearing commit tee. 
.' -.~ . . 

understand .. f'1=;,-' the offer is designed to show what 19 As I 
' < ~ ·_-.. _, 

n:'-·,-;:·:··}.: 

i'nformation the coltlini·ttee 'acted on. That is pure hearsay 

21 in those documentso Inmates who are spoken of in those 
'.•-.. 

22 reports may have a very different version of what was t<:ilQ. 

23 ·the .committeeo . The opportunity for .that testimony is--
• .:.... '<.) I ,.- • . ~ 

24 THE COURTg .In view of the original ruling c;ind the 
I . 

25 limited nature thefepf, •Y ruling wil~ re~ain a. it is. 
·::·_. ,,A 
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l MRa COHLERg Thank you 0 Your Honor. 

2 THE COURT; The documents are limited in purpose and 

3 scope o 

4 

5 

Thank you 0 Your Honor. 

MRo GRANUCCI~ My next motion,,Your Honor, is to intro-

6 duce the exhibi·ts ~-I do not rec.all the specific numbers--

7 the toothbrush weapons., 

8 'THE CLERK: I will give you the numbers on those .. 

9 Defendants 0 Exhibits for identification K, L. M and N. 

10 MRo COHLER: Your· Honor, I object on the following 

11 groundsg The testimony which was elicited regarding the 

12 weapons amply demonstrates that weapons are found6 weapons 

13 are dangerouso and this is the common occurrencec The 

U weapons themselves have be~n shown affirmatively to have 

~ absolutely no ~elevance at all to the time period or the 

~ people involved in this lawsuit. 

17 THE COURT: Sustainedo 

18· MRo GRANUCCI~ My next motion, which I make before I 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

submit to the Courto but I ask' the right to ~eserve argu­

ment on the motion in the course of my argumen£ is this: 
,:. 

To dismiss this ~ase as again~t the defendants the State of· 

Caltfornia and the Correctional Training Facility at 
,. 

Soledad o .I J!Il?de' the mot .:ion. _freviously during the pretrial· 
'·' ~-- . ~ \ / ·.. .~ ~ 

0 • 

proceedings. lt'was denied, but thci Court allowed me leav 

~ to renew the mot~on. I herein renew ito and will present .. 
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l argument upon this point at the time of argument of the 

2 case" 

3 THE COURT:; I will reserve my rulings 

4 MRo COHLERB In addition to reserving your ruling# You 

5 Honor, I think the record should be clear and we should be 

6 careful here as to when9 if this motion be ~ranted6 it is 

7 effective~ We are going to have some rebuttal testimony 

8 and there is going to be final argument, and I don 1 t want 

9 to have a risk of a new trial. 

10 THE COURTg I reserve the ruling$ 

ll MR ~ COHLER:; Thank you .. 

12 MRo GRANUCCig Having presented our motion, we conclude 

13 our case G 

U THE COURT~ Very well. 

15 MRo COHLERg Your Honor, witl:t leave of Court, I willw.u~ 

16 Mr. Jordan to resume ·the stand. Mr. Jordan? 

17 

18 

ROBERT CHARLES JOR~~~ 

called as a witness in. rebuttal by the plaintiff, having 

19 been. previously duly sworn, was examined· and testified as 

20 follows: 

21 THE CLERK: Rest.ate your name for the record.: 
~ ..... r , !' 

22 THE WI1NESS~ Robert Charles Jordan, Jr. 

23 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

24 BY MRo COBLER~ 

25 Q. Mr. Jordan, if you will ~lease direct your attenti r 
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l to July 20 1965 0 when you were removed from the strip cell 

2 through at least July 24th, a Saturday, and tell the Court 

3 whether or not at that time inmates in isolation, not the 

4 strip cell area, were under escort when they left the cell 

5 for exercise or for a shower. 

6 Yes 0 

7 MR. COHLER: That is all, Your Honoro 

8 THE COURT: Will you read the question and answer, 

9 please. 

10 (The record was read o) 

11 

12 

THE COURT: 

THE WITNESS: 

They were escorted, were they, the inmates? 

Yes, all of them were. 

U THE COURT: By whom? 

14 THE WITNE"'?s: By officer--if I can explain it? 

15 THE COURT~ Yes. 

16 THE WITNESS: The night before I was released from the 

17 strip cell, they had what they call a noise riot in the 

18 whole buildings and the officers--the program administrator 

19 and everybody else showed up, and they stripped everyone 

W in isolation. They stripped--

21 THE COURT~ 
•' 

Including the six cells, they stripped the 

~ whole isolation area? 

23 THE WITNESS: Yes" They took the mattresses, the blan-

~ kets, the sheets. the clothesa and every article in the 

~ house used to make noise or anything like this. 

MltRILYN SEYI!JitAT 
UNITI!tD STATI!tS DISTRICT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT 01'" CAI..II'"ORNIA 

P. 0. BOX SIOIJ% R00MIIIo4.(1J 

SAN fi'RANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 8.(102 

Tll:l.II:PHONII: 1121-IJ7117 
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1 · They they had--these guys were over there for some type 

2 of r~ot or some noise. All of them were YAts. 

S THE COURT: All of them were Youth Authorities? 

4 THE WITNESS: Yes, YA v s Q And they were talking about 

5 if the cells were open they were going to fight and do this 

6 and they were calling the officers out. So every time some 

7 one in that section, they let them shower, they let them 

8 exercise. And the officer would come with a club and open 

9 the man's cell, and they said, "All right, ~ou shower," 

10 and he 9 d go shower, and the officer would stand right there~ 

ll and he~d even walk for five minutes against the wall~ He 

12 

14 

couldn't come against the cell~ 
I 

He had to stay on the walli 

MR. COHLER: Q. Just so it will be perfectly clear, 

15 that applied to inmates in the if?olation as opposed to the 1 

~ strip cell area as well, did it not? 

17 A. YeS, that was isolation. 

18 CROSS -:-EXAMINATION 

19 BY MR... GRANUCCI: 

20 

21 

22 

Q. Mr. Jordan, you are sure this happened~-

Oh, yes6 I am sure. 

I hadn • t fini.shed the question. 
y 

··'ll Q. 

~ Are you sure this happene~around the 20th of July or 

M just before you got Qut of the'quiet cell? 

25 A. It hapyene~ b~fore I got out of the quie~ cell, 
" 
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l and everybody was stripped when I came out. In fact, when 

2 I was up front they brought two of us up to the strip cell, 

3 and they took us up front and they gave us mattresses and 

4 they gave us our clothes, and we were the only guys. in 

5 there so we had to put up with a lot of ~outh from these 

6 guys about, u How come they can have theirs and we can't 

7 have ours? They must be snitchers or something.• You 

8 remember this. 

9 MRo GRANUCCI: . 0. K., Mr.. Jordan. No further questions. 

W MRa COHLER: No questions, Your Honor. Thank you, Mr. 

ll Jordan. 

~ (Witness excused.) 

~ MR. COHLER: Mr. Grace, I ask to be ~arked next in 

U order for identification what purports to be copies, 21 

15 pages in total stapled together, represented to me by 

16 opposing counsel to be the totality of documents found re-

17 lating to psychiatric examinations, interviews, reports, 

~ bearing on the plaintiff. 

19 MR .. GRANUCCI: No objection to their admission into 

m evidence if plaintiff offers them. 

THE COURT: This is a compilation of the psychiatric 
,_ :..JA.,r. 

examinations? 
' 
' 

21 

22 

23 
._,_ ' 

MR. COHLER: Yes, and the purpose of .;my making the ~· 

M offer, Your Honor, is that Dr. Hack read.portions thereof • 

. 25 I think the record ought to be completeo The pla~ntiff and 
'4. . -: ..... 
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l petitioner have advised me that his waiver of privilege 

2 applies equally to these documents. He has no personal 

5 objection if there be any privileq~Q 

4 THE COURT: Is that correct, Mr. Jordan? 

5 MR. JORDAN: Yes sir. 

6 MR. COHLERi I would like the r'cord to be complete, 

7 rather than just excerpts from various reports as read on 

8 the stand by Dr. Hack. I offer them in evidence. 

9 MR. GRANUCCI: No objection. 

10 

ll 

12 

15 

14 

THE COURT: What is Mr. Jordan:e s age at the present 

time? 

MR. COBLER: 27, Your Honor. 

MR. GRANUCCI: That is correct, Your Honor. 

MR. COHLER: I may state to the Court--

15 THE COURT: I notice some o·f these are signed by an-

16 other gentleman. 

17 MR. COHLER: That is correct. I am advised by counsel 

18 that some of these repo.rts came from other institutions, 

19 other places where Mr. Jordan has been. 

20 THE COURT: This is the' compilat.ion, counsel? 
' .. 

21 MR. GRANUCCI: . That is the compilation, Your Ho~or. 
v,.~ 

22 THE COURT: Very well. 

THE CLERK: ~laintiffVs 17 in evidence. 23 

24 

25 

(A compilation of psych1atr~c 
re.orts on Mr. Jordan wer• mar ed 
for identificat~on a~ ~laintif 's 
Exhibit 17 'and receiv~q ip ·eyi .. · 
d~nce.) · ·· 



00845 
463 

1 MR., GRANUCCI: Your Honor, we have some surrebuttal, 

2 very short .. 

3 MR. OAKES: Call Mr. Hoagland, please. 

4 THE CLERK: Mr. Hoagland. 

5 ROBERT R. HOAGLAND, 

6 called as a witness in surrebuttal by the defendants, havin 

7 been previously duly sworn, was examined and testified as 

8 follows: 

9 THE CLERK: Will· the witness restate his name. 

10 THE WITNESS: Robert Hoagland .. 

11 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

12 - BY MR. OAKES. 

13 Q. Mr. Hoagland, did you just hear the testimony of 

14 the plaintiff on the stand? 

15 A. Yes, I did. 

16 Q. Do you have any idea, sir,- what he is talking about? 

17 A. No,. and I mentioned this yesterday. I have no 

18 knowledge of this incident he is talking about. 

~ ~ · Do you recall any incidents during this period whe 

00 you would be escorting men out 6f the isolatiori cells_whert 
~ 

U they were out of the isolation cells? 

22 A. No, I don't remember. 

23 MR. OAKES: I have no furtl:ler_questions .. 

K MR. COHLER: No questions,~Yo~r Honor • 
.,4 • 

25 THE-COURT: Thank yo'll. 
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1 MR. COHLER: The plaintiff has no further evidence to 

2 offer. 

3 THE COURT: Is the matter submitted on the evidence? 

4 MR. COHLER: Yes, Your Honor. 

5 MR. GRANUCCI: Submitted for the defendants, Your Honor .. 

6 THE COURT: . We will take a five-minute recess and then 

7 go into the arguments. 

8 (A short recess was taken.) 

9 MR. COHLER: I hope to be as brief as possible. 

10 THE COURT: No restrictions on argument. 

ll MR. COHLER: Thank you, Your Honor. ------------------------:----·------------------ -----------···--·-------

~ I think the evidence which we have heard and the events 

~- which have been described through various witnesses is of 

14 the type which sticks in the mind. I think the memories of· 

15 some of the inmates and the former inmates who have testi-

16 fied are indelibly impressed with these scenes. And some 

H of these scenes are things most of us would normally expec 

~ to have passed from the scene a long time ago in our histo 

~ There are two actions consolidated before the Court; 

20 a petition for habeas corpus and an action under the so-

21 called Civil Rights Act. 

22 As appointed coune.l ,''' I do not wish to abandon the 

~ petition .for habeas corpus. I f~el the Court should con~ 

24 

25 

' ~ ' r - . _); 

sider the dispo~ition available under that petition and 

the issuanc~ of the ~rit if th~ Court !~el~ in its 
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1 discretion that no other remedy is going to root out the 

2 evils we have had describ~ ra other remedy can ade-

3 quately protect the plaintiff's rights.· 

The civil rights action, so-called, is founded on juri!· 

5 diction under 28 USC Sections 1343 and 1331, and I think 

6 the jurisdiction is clear. 

7 The statutes themselves are designed generally to pro-

8 teet civil rights under the United States Constitution. 

9 Section 1983 deals with individual or unilateral action 

lO wh~ch violates a person's rights. In this case, the con-

11 tention is that the plaintiffjs rights have been violated. 

~ Section 1985 refers to conspiratorial behavior toward 

13 the same end. 

14 THE COURT: Pardon me, counsel. May I interrupt you 

15 just a moment? 

16 

17 

18 

MR. COHLER: Please. 

THE COURT: Do you regard this as a class action? 

MR~ COHLER: Your Honor, the complaint was not framed 

19 as a class action. Consideration was given to that at the 

20 time, and sub,s·equently. My understanding of the new rules 

21 of Federa'l Civil Procedure, and I have not reviewed them 
( . 

. '' 
~ closely, but my understanding is that the requisite. of 

23 ·r~epresent:'ation has been somewhat increased in some r.;espects. 
~ • 0 

24 For a single individual to have brought class action· in 

W thls instance was not in my discretion at the ti~p ·and my 
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l judgment at the time appropriate, I did not do so, nor am 

2 I moving the Court to amend. the complaint to conform to the 

3 evidence in that regard. 

·4 Cognizant, however, that rulings which may affe~t the 

5. 

6 

plaintiff's incarceration may also affect others, and. like­

wise cogriizant that we have heard from inmates on rwhich ' 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11. 

12 

13 

the Court may infer, represents what we would hear from a 

great many other inmates, _t.~!__b,as~t---at-t..lllPt."cl __ 0 
search out those inmates who had the worst possible s~-~-~~:..,- \~~~ •. 
tion. The inmates and former inmates heard by the Court ------- . I 
as witnesses were taken from a list submitted in answers t 

\ 

to interrogatories-propounded by the plaintiff to Superin-J 

tendent Fi tzharri0 From that list, only those available 

at the Correctional Training Facility were interviewe_0 

and affidavits from all of those_persons were submitted. 

14 

15 

~ For various reasons, not all of those persons testified, 

~ nor were they called by the defense. 

~ I do not consider it a true class action, a hybrid 

19 class~action, a spurious class action in the formal sense. 

20 I think the evidence is indicative of what happens to a 

21 large group of people. 

~ Plaintiff need only prove that his rights were deprive 

e he was deprived of his constituti~ri~l rights and that that 

24 happened under the color of State law. 

25 I refer the court to .Mar$hal~ v~ Sawyer found at 
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1 301 F.2d 639, a Ninth Circuit case decided in 1962, and 

2 further to Antelope v. Georg~, 211 F.Supp 657, from the 

3 District Court in Idaho, also in 1962. 

4 Your Honor, the constitutional rights at issue in this 

6 case arf found under the 14th Amendment to the Federal 
I 

6 Constitution, ~articularly the due process clause. It has 

7 been held, and in fact, the defendants conceded in motions 

a for summary judgment and to dismiss, that the standards of 

9 cruel and unusual p1-1nishment as stated in the 8th Amendment 

w are considered under this due process clause. As cited 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

by the defendants in that memorandum, the~authority for. 
. . . 

that proposition is Robinson v. California, 370 u.s. 660, 

a 1962 Supreme Court case. 

In accord, very recently in the Fourth Circuit, Driver· 

15 v a Hinnant. 

16 

17 

THE COURT: 

MR. COHLER: 

What is the citation? 

I beg your pardon. 

18 Fo.urth Circuit, early t:his year 1966. 

356 F.2d, 761, the 

19 The language of the 8th Amendment, which is d~~li with 

20 through or incorpoated in, however. the phrase ·may be used, 

21 the due process clause of the 14"t;~ Amendment, refers to 

~ cruel and unusual punishment. There is no·testimony as to 

~ th~ usual or unusual nature of-the cotiditions which have 

M been described, except that they seem to pre~ail at this 

~ institution, or so the evidence has shown. 
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1 But I do not feel that-the Court ought to be concerned 

2 about the strict language of the "and unusual." 

3 For instancea in the Robinson v. California case just 

4 cited to the Court, the Supreme Court of the United States 

5 held that a law in California, a statute, convicting for 

6 addiction to narcotics constituted cruel and unusual 

7 punishment. Clearly, that was not unusual. It was a 

8 statute being enforced urttil the decision. 
' ' 

9 Likewise, the Driver v. Hinnant case, just cited to the 

w Cburt, went off on the same rationale involving chronic 

Ll alcoholism, clearly again there was no requisite of "arJ 

~ unusual." The sense of the constitutional prohibition is 

~ that this isnut right, it is a breach of human dignity, it 

l4 is going tC?o far. 

l5 The language of "cruel and unusual punishment• in con-

l6 nection with the 14th· Amendment due process clause has 

~ come inside the prison walls before this Court may rule in 

.8 this cas7 in Talley v. ·Stephens found at 247 F. Supp 683. 

l9 In -November o.f 1965 the Eastern Distr'ict of Arkansas Distri t 

!0 Court, a Federal court, held with respect to a ·state prison. 

!1 :that an inmate cquld not be put to hard labor where he was 

~ not physically c~pable of hard labor1 this was cruel and 

!3 ·unusual puni$:hment. 

I think it is fair to say that the law in this area, 

as far as rationale goes, a doctrine goes, is not too 
: tt:. • 



00851 
469 

difficult: as always the application of the law may not be 

as easy .. 

I would like to clear a little more underbrush here, if 

I may, particularly with respect to the responsibility of 

superiors. 

The defendants in this case are, by and large, superior e 

down a chain of command as described by Superintendent 

Fitzharrj,s. The defendants in this case, many of them, 

have not had personal knowledge of the events described by 

p1aintiffis witnesses. 

There has been talk of policy, procedure, what ought to 

be done, rules, et cetera. That does not relieve the de-

fendants of responsibility. 

As stat~d by the court in Talley v. Stephens, just 

cited, the Eastern District of Ar.kansas case in November of 

last year, and I quote as found at page 692: 

11 It is also true that the record does not dis-

close that resp6ndent"--

There.the ward.en, Your Honor, a superior official, in a 

position of superiority--

uauthorized dr had personal~ knowledge of some 

of the events mentioned herein. However, it~ 
not be overlooked that respondent is in charge 

of the Penitentiary and is respqnsi~le for the 

acts of his subordinates, including· trusty 
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l guards. He is not relieved of that responsi-

2 bility by personal ignorance of abuses 

3 practiced in fields and b~rracks.~ 

4 Although the facts are different in this case than that, 

5 the principle is the same. 

6 In addition--

7 THE COURTg wasntt that case concerned with a number 

8 of lashes to be administered to inmates? 

9 MR., COHLER: There were three petitioners or .Plaintiffs 

10 in that case, as I recall it, Your Honor. Different cir-

11 cum~tances were involved with respect to ea~h inmat,. The 

12 holding, as I recall, was more closely with respect to the 

13 hard labor situation rather than corporal punishment. I 

14 may be mistaken in my recollection. 

15 THE COURT: I remember integ~ated in the case was a 

16 matter of corporal punishment. 

17 MR. COHLER: Yes, that was discussed. 

18 This is clearly, I would say, enough under S~ction 1983, 

~ which de~ls w~th unilateral a~tion of a def~ndant or any 

ao persQn •. 

81 S'ection. 19a·s. ·refers to :a conspiracy. A conspiracy was 

82 desc1fibed by Dr. Kunkel as ganging UP; Dr. Kunkel is not 
,, . 

~3 an attorney and is not expected to state the law and I do 

not believe 

more in the 

the law. Conspiracy is 

grQu~ actiqh, working 



l toward the same goal. 
~A 
•Corx:oboxa:~ is a term which.Mr. 

2 Fitzharris himself used to describe a team approach, which 

3 the Director of Cbrrections had emphasized in a speech Mr. 

4 Fitzharris related. This is group action. You don't have 

5 to have a written agreemerit for conspiracy. This has been 

6 settled for a long time. 

7 In this case the group action was intended to effect 

8 certain programso was intended to permit certain types of 

9 incarceration, was intended to permit certain types of 

10 removal of privileges. 

U Those who propose, promulgate and supervise the pro-

12 grams working together take the responsibility for seeing 

~ that it is not abused and that the practice follows the 

U proper procedure. I think that this is sufficient group 

W activity toward that goal to constitute conspiracy. 

16 I want to state at this time, Your Honor, that Mr. 

~ DeCarli defendant and Mr. Swagerty defendant were not at 

~ the institution and in fhis area at the.time of July 1965. 

~ In th~ event damages are awarded, I do not think they 

ro should be held for damages. In the event injurictiv• :relief 

21 of any sort is awarded, they are clearly in positions -o.f ., · 

22 respo-nsibility held by others before them, and ought 'to b• 
' _,. . 

a the subject of injunctive relief as well as the othe~ 

24 . defendants. 

25 I think it is cl.ar on th~ ~videnc~ in this ease.the , 
t 
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1 policy ~hich is supposed to be followed has not been in 

2 many cases. And in other cases, even the policy is not up 

3 to minimum constitutional standards. 

.4: The defendants' evidence consists almost througpou of· 

5 simple statement that, "we do what we are supposed to•: 

6 "we follow poli~y8 : "It was always that way•: "I would have 

7 noticed anything unusual." 

8 I think it is fair to say that the defendants who work 

9 at the institution cannot be expected to remembe~ these 

10 events as well as those who were subjected to tb~:ql .. The 

11 defendants see these things every day. They might not be 

12 able to sort out the time very well~ But the man who is 

13 put in that cell will remember it. And he will remember 

U the specifics, as the testimony shows. 

15 It would have been asking SOII\ething almost inhuman for 

~ the! guards, correctional qfficers, sergeants who heard Mr. 

17 Fitzharris say that he relied upon his subordinate~to come 

~ forward and admit that they didn't do what they were sup-

19 poseQ. ·to do. That was the nature of most of the questions: 

20 11 Was there a policy? Did you follow_ it? Did you do what 

H you were supposed to do?~ I don~~ think any witness can 

22 

23 

24 

25 

come forward and say, ~r didn't do what I was supposed to 

do.:_; I don't think there is· .much weight to that testimony • 
..--· 

That testimony must be balan<:?~d against speci.fic re-

collection and close narratio'n· ·by $everal ~nmate.~ -a·nd forme 
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l inmates, and I will turn to that in a moment, if the court 

2 please .. 

There is also uncontradicted evidence that the policy. 

4 so-called, was not followed in practice. Your Honor will 

5 recall the forms 114, plaintiff's Exhibit 13 in this case, 

6 the sign-in sheets, the movement sheets down in the isola-

7 tion section. Where the inmates are moved from cell to 

8 cell, they are supposed to be marked down they were moved. 

9 Cell exercises indicated. Showers are indicated. Shaves 

10 are indicated. 

11 There has been a problem of a shower in this case, and 

12 I will come to that at a later point in time. But the 

~ defendants themselves say in trying to explain away the 

14 shower situation as to whether or not Mr. Jordan had a 

15 shower when he was in the quiet ~ell or strip cell, that 

~ they don•t keep the records that well. 

17 Well, those records are vital. If it means anything 

~ to these people to have a man take a shower, the only way 

H they can tell whether or not he had one within the past 

20 five days, according to their policy:- is to look at .that o:t 

21 h~ppen to hear it from-so~eone in passing. 

~ Those records are not incidental, technical records 
' ,, 

~ which are kept to be sent off somewhere where they are not 

24 _used. They are used daily. Each officer so testified, 

Z that he us•d that in the normal course of b~siness. 
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1 There has been a lot of testimony that the men w6rkipg 

2 down there are very busy, and I think that may have a good 

3 deal of bearing on just how much they do of what they are 

4 supposed to do. It may be that in being so busy, they 

5 don't sign in as well. 
-

6 THE COURT: Is it not virtually conceded, counsel, that 

7 they were undermanned? 

8 MR. COBLER: Your Honor, it is conceded that they were 

9 understaffed, underfinanced, and under pressure, and had 

W a very tough job to do. 

ll There are problems in this case of two different nature 

12 The defendants have very real problems. we have heard.very 

13 candid t~stimony, particularly from the upper administra-

14 tive defendants. There are very real problems at this 

~ institution which they are trying to work out, and I think 

~ they are trying in good faith to work them out and have so 

H demonstrated to the Court. 

18 But there is a second kind of problem. The defendants! 

~ problems, understaffed, underfinanced, with a tough job to ,. 
;, . ~ 

20 do, cannot be reason for letting a m_an have his consti tu-

H tional rights be deprived. Whether or not Mr. Jordan's 

~ rights were taken from h~m, that _is a question for this 

~3. courtroom. . ..,., -..: 

24 It is not up to the Court to decide the best way to run 

26 .. a prise~ .. 
. . . '~ 

But it is<~p to theicourt to decid(a tn~t' if men 
I . , .. 
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1 ar.e to be incarcerated in special punishment cells called 

2 ttstrip cells" or nqu~et cells," that there has to be 

S enough staff, there has to be enough resources .available 

.4 to see to it· that a man's rights. are not taken awa.y from 

5 him. That is the concern of the court. 

6 In .addition to the isolation log movement sheet which 

7 wasn't filled out, and where men were busy, and where there 

8 was understaffing, there is a disciplinary called the CDC 

9 115. Several are ·in evidence for a limited purpose, to 

10 show bias. 

11 Here is an area where the institution itself recognizes 

~ ~he impor~ance of a hearing, the importance of an inmate 

U telling his story, the importance of discipline which is 

U meted out_fairly: or if it isn 1 t, resentment and hostility 

~ may be built up, as seems to be the case in many instances, 

16 according to the testimony. 

17 The CDC 115, the disciplinary report, is not a quick 

l~ sign-in type piece of paper. It is very important, and it 

19 is acknowl~dged to be important. 

20 The disposition ~n the form 115 is written·b~ ~omeorie 

U present at the hearing. There is approval giveniby sup-

22 eriors who were not at the hearin'g·; · based upon what is 

23 

24 

25 

written. ~ '. 

l 
Mr. Donnelly, .t~e Deputy Superintendent, said that 

"' there were other f~·les available to se~ wru;er~ 4iil m~n m;i.ght 
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l be at the moment.. He didn't look at those in Mr. Jordan v s 

2 case, and it didn u t appear that he did so generally. 

3 It is what is on that piece of paper which is importanto 

4 The disposition in this case, which happens to be before 

5 the Court, of Mr. Jordan--and I don't think that Mr. Jordan 

6 brought this case knowing that his 115 hadn't been filled 

7 out correctly. He brought it for other reasons .. 

8 In this case, which happened to come up for other 

9 reasons, the 115 report itself did not show the disposition 

10 which was made. Sergeant Friedrick, acting unilaterally, 

ll made an entry that the plaintiff was to be placed in a 

~ quiet or strip cell "until behavior warrants change." 

13 It is my understanding that these quiet cells or strip 

U cells are ~omething special. There are only six of them. 

~ They have to be reserved for par~icularly difficult cases, 

L6 some of which are incorrigible, as D+. Hack has said. Care 

L7 must be taken in putting a man in a quiet cell or strip 

LB cell. It is supposed_to be the last thing you do to him. 

L9 You want to reserve those. 
..,.,_ 

ao BUt no superi·or. had a chance to pass upon the w-1:--sdc;>m 

n of assigning Mr. Jordan to the quiet cell or the' strip cell .. 
'.!r ,, 

~2 I thjJ'nk that bears in two ways. First of .all, it is 

~ not suppcisedto be done that way, by their ow~ rules. An 
-~· ~ "' .. 

~ error of th•t nature, I don't think is an inadvertent mis­

~5 take. Perhapf? it is .. 
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l .Mr. Kiepura testified that he didn't remember anythipg 

2 at all about the hearing; he on'!y knew what was in the docu-

s ments. For some reason, hewas able to remember what he 

.4 had forgotten at the hearing itself to write down, that 

6 Mr. Jordan was supposed to go to the quiet cell. 

6 Whether or not Mr. Jordan's going to the quiet cell 

7 was actually discussed between Mr. Kiepura and Sergeant 

8 Friedrick at the meeting, no superior knew of the dis-

9 position, and the superior approved the form as written. 

There were also supposed to be three people at the 10 

11 meeting. There were only two. This also may be attributed 

~ to underst~ffing. It is a rule which is considered im-

lS portant by the Superintendent, and it wasn't followedo 

W Sergeant Friedrick emphasized that a man's clothing 

15 couldn 1 t be taken away by himself alone, that this required 

~ approval. With regard to .Mr. Esparza and the so-called 

~ tear gas incident, Officer 'Mata said that Sergeant Fried-

~ ·rick ordered Esparza to· take off his cloth~s. Sergeant~ 
\ 

.. 19 Friedrick ·said that .he had requested authority for the ,use 

00 of tear ·gas ~fid to remove his clothes. .But I think if 

21 ·anything' is clear about that incident, it is clear that. the 

~ tear gas was ordered because Esparza wouldn't take his 

~ rilothes off. So there was an order to take off·clothes 

M before there was a request for the author~ty. And it was 

25 t~ follow up on that order, mad~ without a J·~~e•t for · 
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l authority that the extraordinary measure of tear gas was 

2 used. 

THE COURT: wasn 6 t it a blanket used as sort of a 

4 shroud over his head rather than clothing? 

5 MR.. COBLER: It was both, Your Honor. There was a 

6 blanket that was used as a shroud over his head, as I re-

7 call the testimony, and he was ordered to throw out all 

8 his clothes except, as Sergeant Friedrick said, his shorts, 

9 I believe: perhaps his socks as well. 

W Sergeant Friedrick testified he wouldntt have been left 

11 in the cell with just his shorts before that .. He was told 

12 to roll out his blanket, step out of his clothes, as I 

13 recall it. 

U The flaps are supposed to be open except when there is-

15 a disturbance .. It is clear ·from all sides that the flaps 

~ were closed most of the time. 

17 However, there is also a lot of testimony here that the 

18 flaps were only closed .when there was a disturbance~ Maybe 

H this .all fits together. 

00 Officer Caldwell said you have ~o leav~ th~ fla~~.close 

21 until you are sure the man won 1 t start a<.:fi tating again. He 

~ sa1s that is two or three days. And, of ~ourse, everyone 

~ says they move the man out of thj quiet cell or strip cell 

24 as .quickly as they can .. 

25 So, isn't it quite pgs~ible that the flap~ are closed 
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l while the man is in the quiet cell or strip cell, because . 

2 for two or three days they have to be closed because he 

3 might agitate and as soon as he stops agitating they move 

4 him out. The result, as Officer Nash testified to directly, 

5 is that the flaps were closed m.ost of the time. 

6 That is also true of the testimony from the inmates and 

7 former inmates with respect to their various occasions in 

8 the quiet or strip cell. 

9 It is interesting to note with respect to the flaps 

10 that Officer Nash, and I believe other officers. testified 

11 that if an inmate wanted more water he could get it on re-

~ quest, and that in fact the request for water could be 

~ heard up at the officers' area, even though the flaps were 

14 closed. 

15 Now, these are the flaps use~ and designed and justifie 

~ to stop noise. Whether or not any noise could be heard 

17 from that cell with the flaps closed, it seems probable 

~ that the noise would sound more like agitation than a 

19 legitimate ~equest for ,water. 

20 With respect to clothing, Your Honor, and what an in-

21 ' mate might be permitte~ to wear inside the quiet or strip' 

~ G~ll, the rule as read by Mr. Fitzharris is that clothing 

23 , .. ,.,,may be .removed only;:iemporarily, only for a suicide watch, 

24 

25 

and only with a note to the psychiatrist or \he officer of 

the.day. 
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1 Plaintiff~ s testimony that he was without clothing for 

2 eight days is uncontradicted. There are people who say it 

3 doesn't work that way.. And there are people who say, ~'well 

.4 I don't remember one way or the other .. Ill! But no one· said 

5 that during those eight days they remember seeing Mr .. 

6 Jordan with hi~ clothes on. 

7 There is a lot of general recollection about what is 

8 supposed to happen and what might have happened. But that 

9 testimony is virtually uncontradicted, and I submit that 

10 even if it is contradicted, it must prevail. 

11 The man didn 1 t say he didn't have clothes at all. He 

~ said he didn't have them for eight of these 12 days. I 

~ believe Mr. Jordan would recall that. 

U No one has had the audacity to come forward and say tha 

15 Mr. Jordan was on su~cide watch. He did have a history of 

~ what appears to be an ·attempted suicide at Vacavillee He 

~ was permitted his glasses, certainly a dangerous weapon for 

~ mutilating himsel£. He was permitted a pencil, which he 

19 had t·o steal to write to the Court; certainly a dang~rous. 

00: weapon. And his flaps were closed, ~hich would pre~ty much 
,, 

21 preclude a suicide watch t.ype of observa-tion. HerE! again, 
., 

~ the policy_was not followed. Procedure was not followed • 
. tt' ~ I 

23 ·I don 1 tthi.nk the clothing.jis. a, trivial mistake. Some-

M body 'has to take your clothes. They just don•t forget, 
-:;•,, 

t/ 
25 they aren r t forgotten to :t;>.j!··wr'i.tt.en down~-' logged so~ewhere-. 
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l In fact, Mr. Fitzharris }ust told us a few momertts ago 

2 there was a very real problem about inmates having clothing 

3 in the quiet or strip cells, that there was a fire problem. 

4 I think it is a fair inference from what Mr. Fitzharris 

5 said that to his knowledge that until th•y could arrange to 

6 have these thirigs fireproofed, there were many occasions 

7 when inmates in quiet cells weren't permitted their clothes. 

8 The plaintiff has testified his was one such instance. 

9 There have been.a lot of abstractions about control and 

10 punishment .. There has been various discussion from various 

11 witnesses on this subject. 

12 Mr. Donnelly said, Deputy Superintendent Donnelly, that 

U a punishment must hav~ a certain maximum time, the time 

14 must be certain as to the maximum amount of punishment. 

15 the plaintiff's own case, SergeaQt Friedrick put him in a 

~ quiet o~ strip cell until his behavior warranted change. 

In 

17 It is true his isolation sentence was 29 days, but there is 

18 a marked difference between isolation and quiet cell. 

19 Reference has been made to th~ hearing, to the number 

20 of ... people· present, to what was written down on 'the 115 

21 disposition regarding Mr. Jordan. I would like to touch 

22 b'r"iefly 'on what might be called the procedural due process 

23 a . .$p.ect of this case. 
• ··.. •. •. ' 1- ~ • ... 

24 It is the plaintiff's major contention that tin4er the 
.. 

~ conditions as testified to bf plaintiff's witnes~e' no man 
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1 can. be incarcertated in these cells. As a part of that 

2 contention, there are certain aspects which I shall po~nt 

3 out to the Court in a moment, which even if they were as 

4 the defendants say they are, no man can be put in that cell 0 

5 There are certain limited functions which can be juati~ 

6 fied for a strip cell. It is, in the very strict sense~ 

7 a control measure to prevent a man from destroying himself, 

8 destroying State property, and arousing the inmate p6pu-

9 lation. I will avoid the term 11 agitation, n ·if possible, 

10 because it seems to be almost all encompassingQ 

ll If this most severe type of confinement, and I don 9 t 

~ mean severe in a colored sense, but it is severe: it is a 

~ stripped cell, with no furnishings and no facilities. At 

L4 least, it w~ until recently. 

L5 If a man should be put in that situation, there must 

L6 be a good deal of care taken that he is not abused, in-

L7 tentionally, unintentionally, by understaffing or whatever, 

LS that while he is down there right near the rock bottom of 

L9 having the necessities for survival, that he·doesnVt lose 

~0 them. 

To put a man in that situation should take a good deal 

~2 of thought by people who are accustomed to thinking in 

~3 larger terms than, "Where do we move this man today?" and 

~ "who do we go with tomorrow? 1111 

!5 One man, at the second highest level, ju't above 



0086. 
483 

l correctional officer, one •an ought not have the discretion 

2 to put a person, as in this case the plaintiffi in this . 

3 most severe cell, regardless of the conditions in that cell 

.4 ttuntil behavior warrants change.• 

5 Any person, even within the prison walls, is entitled 

6 to a little bit more of a hearing. Now, there are no rules 

7 of evidence in these hearings, there aren't judgments--

8 THE COURT: Aren't there areas as contended for by the 

9 respondents or defendants that could center· around emer-

10 gency aspects? 

11 MR. COBLER: Exactly, Your Honor, and I was just about 

12 to exclude .that situation. There may be emergencies of 

many natures. There may be a real riot. There may be a 

14 particular inmate causing a problem. There may be a fire~ 

15 There may be a stabbing. There ~auld be any number of 

~ things easily imagined. There is no reason that the quiet 

~ cell or strip cell could not be used on that occasion. 

~ But when it comes time to making a disposition, and it 

19 appears to take some time sometimes to get to this hearing 

20 committee, but wheneve·r ·it. is deemed pro?er,to have a hear­

H ing at ·some point, :•omebody besides one per~on at the 
.. -~··~·'' . 

22 second hi~hest! leve-l in the institution ought to decide 

~ wheth~r the man remains there and ought to decide more than 

24 "until behavior warrants change~" 

~ I am not trying ·tq interfere with the discre~ions to 
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1 handle, and plaintiff does not submit discretion should .be 

2 inte~fered with to handle anything of an emergency nattire. 

3 But of course emergencies expire, and the matter should 

.4 receive attention. wEmergency" is a word that can be 

5 abused as wello 

6 Now, aside. from the statements of policy offered by 

7 defendants, policy which is shown by their own testimony 

8 not to be fulfilled in some very important areas, on the 

9 other side, the plaintiff's witnesses, those who are and 

w were inmates, have told their story. And I might say it 

11 appeared to me to be much a telling of stories, rather tha 

12 a neatly packaged examination which might have been re-

13 hearsed in some natureo I certainly discussed this case 

U with all of those men. I assure the Court nothing was re-

15 hearsed. Stories were told, questions were asked from the 

16 Bench, and there was what I would call a rather thorough 

17 cross-examination. 

~ These stories were also told at Soledad in the presenc 

~ of t~e very highest perso~nel at the institution, and in 

m "the ptese~6e of guards. I believe it is fair to say tbat 

21 

22 ~. 

23 

24 

25 

if the inmates who were testifying knew they were telling 

lies, they ~GuL~know that their k~epers knew they were 
' ·:··· --

.telling lies;. ~nd there would be room for reprisals--and I 
'-, . . . ". 

am not accusing anyone of· trying to m,ake reprisals"-·-but 

. there would be~r~om for reprisals, at-least ;from -t~e 
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l imagination of the man on the stand. 

2 MR .. GRANUCCI: Your Honor, I must object to this line 

3 of argument. Plaintiff's atto.rney is actually testifying 

.4 now to things that happened when he secured the affidavits 

5 from the plaintiffis witnesses. 

6 

7 

MR. COHLERt I will strike all of that. 

MR. GRANUCCI: There was no evidence of that in the 

8 record. He must restrict his argument to evidence .. 

9 MR. COHLER: I am sorry, Your Honor.. I· will be happy 

10 to have it from the record. I mentioned it in passing.. It 

11 may be stricken upon stipulation. 

12 

13 

MR. GRANUCCI: So stipulated .. 

MR. COHLER: Your Honor, the men who testified in the 

14 room, whether it was real or imagined, may well have 

15 thought that if they weren't telling the truth and it woul 

16 be known to those who kept them in custody, that they woul 

~ have reprisals against them through one means or anothei. 

~ And I am not accusing anyone of attempting reprisals. 

19 THE COURT: Are you undertaking to represent to this 

20 ··cou'rt that-- that factor would enter the mind ·of the 

21 ordinary man under those circumstances? 

22 

23 

MR .. COHLER: Correct. 

THE COUR':fl: There is no charg·e that any reprisal has 

~ been made or would be made. 

25 MR., COHLER: ~bs91utely. 
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1 ... THE· COUR_T: All right., We might take a recess now, 

2 coun~el, until 2:00 o • clock. 

5· MR. COHLER: Thank you, Your Honor. 

4 (The noon recess was taken.) 

5 --ooo--

6 

1 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

15 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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2 

FRIDAY o AUGUST 19 1966 - AFTERNOON SESSION - 2:00 P.M., 

MR. COHLER: May it please the Court: 

S Your Honor 0 before recess I had discussed, at least in 

4 part, the testimony offered by the defendants as to general 

5 policy, and following it some of the problems that arose 

6 in that testimony. 

7 The witnesses for the plaintiff who are.and were inmates 

8 testified to their own recollection of their own personal 

9 experience, which hopefully are uniqu~ experiences and 

10 might well be remembered. 

11 For instance, we have heard quite a bit of testimony 

12 from both sides regarding the so-called Esparza tear gas 

13 incident. 

14 In part, there is a conflict among the defendantsv 

15 witnesses, ~erhaps not significant, but perhaps noteworthy. 

16 Sergeant Friedrick said that he himself called for 

17 authorization for the tear gas, as I recall it. Mr. 

18 Johnston testified that he was the one that Qalled. Of 

19 course, it is possible that they both called or that it 

~ was just a poor recollection. 

U Mr. Esparza says that he got shot right in the face or. 

~ sprayed, whatever the proper term is, with the tear gas. 

~- Officer Mata, admit~edly the officer who did the tear gas 

24 ~ testified to two short bursts.. However short the 

~- -bursts were, they cl~arly had their effe~t; The tear gas 
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was present not only in the cell. 

00870 

It was also present in 

the corridor. And it was also present two or three days 

3 later when Mr. DeCarli felt the tears in his eyes during an 

4 hour and a half interview with Mr. Esparza. 

5 Now, before shooting the second burst.M~. Mata had his 

6 gas mask grabbea at by Mr. Esparza and his head knocked 

7 against the walle Apparently he didn't fall down, accordin 

8 to his testimony. 

9 It seems to me a very fair inference, and a very 

10 natural inference, that when his gas mask was grabbed at 

11 and he hit his head against the wall, in that small space, 

12 that he would have released a shot of tear gas. He didn~t 

13 take the same careful aim as he did when he crouched down 

U and aimed between the bars, as he felt was necessary for 

15 the first burst. It seems to me. an entirely natural, un­

~ intentional reaction to let fly with that nozzle the second 

17 time. I am not saying it was aimed at Mr. Esparza's fa~~-

~ But I think it is very easy to believe and the Court ought 

L9 to. conclude as a matter of fact that that is where it went .. 

ao As to the duration of these bur~ts, how long they 

al actually lasted, I don't think is significant. They had 

~ their effect. As a matter of fact, no other witness said 

23 that he saw the handle turned.. There was testimony from 

defendants•. witnesses present at the scene -that there was 
.. 

a great deal of noi_se, which was still continl;ling, which 
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l was at least in part the cause of the use of the tear gas. 

2 I doubt that anyone heard the noise. In fact, there was 

3 testimony that the noise was not heard. 

4 It would seem unlikely that those without gas .masks 

5 would be standing right up in that little galleyway between 

6 the outer wall and the bars of the cell where Officer Mata 

7 was operating. 

8 There is some confusion in the record about what Mr~ 

9 Esparza had said leading up to this inciden~. There is 

10 testimony about "Ivll cut your heart out." 

11 As I recall it, Mr. Esparza himself was a little con-

12 fusing in his testimony on this point, as to what language 

13 it was in. I think the testimony will bear out the possi­

U bility that he said it twice, in Spanish and in English. 
-

W It seems quite plausible that he would say it in Spanish 

16 to an officer who was Spanish-speaking and would say it in 

17 English for the benefit of other inmates as part of the 

~ agitation of which the defendants have spoken so often, the 

~ saving face, the leading of the gang that has been re-

20 ferred to .. 

21 In any event, Mr. Wells said he heard it in Engl~sh o-r 
f;, 

;. ~ 

22 Spanish, and I am not even sure now. But it was differ.nt 

23 from one of the sta~ements that ~r. Esparza made~ And I 

~ believe that is the only conflict that even comes close 

~ among the testimony of th~ pl.intiff 9 s witnes,es to having 
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1 any significance.. And that is a very small part of a 

2 fairly collateral incident itself. 

3 Nowe tear gas .. Your Ho·nor, · is something that ought to 

4 be treated with respect. In the course of examination, I 

5 made reference to a case Titcomb v. New York, the citation 

a of which is 222 N.Y.State 2d 596, the case arising in the 

7 Court of Claims in New York in 1961 .. In that case $20,000 

8 damages were awarded for conscious pain and suffering 

9 before death, the death resulting from tha use of tear gas 

10 in a closed room which, as related in the report of that 

11 case, was about the same size the testimony shows the strip 

12 cell to have been$ 

13 Another citation I wish to refer to the Court is 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Chaudoin Ve Fuller, 192 P2d 243. This case was in the 

Supreme Court of the State of Arizona. 

THE COURT: 192 ~~? 
MR. COHLER: Yes, Your Honor, at page 243 .. 

W In that case, the Supreme Court of Arizona sustained a 

~ holding of the lower court that the sheriff's conduct in 

20 firing tear gas into the face of a. prisoner was .a wanton 

21 and reckless ass'ault; .. >$10,000 damages was awarded in an 

~ action against the depvty sheriff's superior. 
·'" 

e . There has also been a good deal of testimony about the 

24 

25 

further portitin ot this so-called tear gas incident which 
:.· 

invo·lved Mr. Well·s, hol.;lsed next. door in anotP.er strip cell .. 
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l Mr. Wells testified under oath that he was positive 

2 that it was water he threw at the officers. Mr. Johnston 

3 felt_the sting and assumed it wa• urine. Mr. Johnston 

4 didn~t smell the odor of urine. Of course, it is possible 

5 that in those surroundings no one would notice the dif-

6 ference, the smell of the urine on himj or from the general 

7 conditions as testified to. 

8 This case in particular is a case about the plaintiff 

9 and the time that he spent in a strip ce11, so-called. The 

10 case, Your Honor, has come a long .l/:;fs from the time that 

11 Mr. Jordan was in that very cell during this very period 

12 of time and with a smuggled pencil and smuggled paper he 

U wrote a letter to the outside world. We are past the point 

14 where statements of general policy can provide the answer. 

15 We are past the point where this action can be called 

16 sham and frivolous. We are past the point where the Court 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

can be told that it has no jurisdictio~ over subject mat-

ter of this typeo 

I·would like to pause for a moment and comment about 

the term "strip cell.~ ton its face, one would.thirik ~his 

would be ·a ·rather. innoc~nt usage o Professionally there has 

been testimony that it m~a"n·~
4

irstripped," stripped of 

.pqy~ical·facil.ities: str~pp~~ for a good purpose in its 
. ' . • • ,, •• ~ . : •. . . . ,.. . \i ~ 

intent, to eliminate sel~ destruction, destruction o£ St~t 
f. ~ 

p:~;operty\ and to co~t.rQl ~ inmate o 
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l A cell as barren as that must be used with caution6 it 

2 is true .. 

3 

4: 

Now, Sergeant Friedrick thought he picked up the term 

from the inmates. It seems plausible inference to meg Your 

6 Honor, that the inmates used the term "stripped~ to in-

6 dicated what happens to them: they are stripped, like they 

7 are kept quiet, as opposed to the facilities in the cell. 

8 Even so, standing alone, I would not think this of 

9 particular significanceo But there has be~n a somewhat 

W curious defensive attitude about the use o£ the term. 

11 Someone substituted the term "quiet cell" for "strip 

~ cell" in a quotation in a sworn answer to interrogatories. 

13 MRc GRANUCCI: Your Honor, I object to counsel relying 

14 on that matter in argument, because an objection to the 

~ very question was sustained. 

16 MR. COHLER: It was sustained as argumentativee Your 

17 Honor. This is argument. 

18 

19 

THE COURT: You may proceed* 

MR .. COHLER: Thank yo:u, Your Honor. 

00 My purpose in noting that is not to imply bad faith in 

U ~~swer~~Q our interrogatories, but I think it is indicativ 

22 c;jf a defensive attitude, for some reason, abou:t the term .... :~ 
·' 

23 !lstrip cell. tt Perhaps that in its_elf is indi~.a:;tive of the 

24 _fact that people don't always have clothing i~ these cellso 

00 Now, control, one pf the so-called legiti~a~e f~nction 
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1,_ of. the strip 6r quiet cell is thought by Mr.. Donnelly to 

2 mean a graduated system of rewards and pun~shments: control 

3 is imposed with the hope the inmate will think it is pun-

.4 ishment, so the inmate will be deterred .. 

5 Admittedly control and punishment are abstractions 

6 which overlap.. The testimony of all has been to that effec 

7 But control as a legitimate rationale for a cell barren 

8 of all normal facilities must be taken very narrowly to 

9 serve its legitimate purpose.. When it gets to be used in 

10 a punitive manner, it gets to be abused, and other privi-

11 leges are taken away when the punishment aspect of the 

12 strip cell· begins to fail its purpose .. 

~ I asked the witnesses several times, you may recall, an 

14 I again pose the question to you: Where is the dividing 

15 line between the preventative aspects and the punitive 

16 measures? Where is that line? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

May I suggest the following to the Court: 

In trying to control an inmate from hurting himself or 

destr.oying' State property or hurting other inmates or 
• 

affecting the general prison population, he mu~t, one,. be 
~ 

isolated, and ,sioiat:ion cells serve that purpose; and he 

must, two, be put in surroundings where he has nothing 
~ 

around to use. on himself or to destroy which belongs to. the 
' . >, ~ 

State. 

Control in this·· sense woqld mean putt.].ng ._ 'm,an in a . 
..... .,. . . ·,; . . ' . . 
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1 strip cell with furnishings wh~ch are indestructible or 

2 thought to be as harmless as possible without depriving the 

3 man of ordinary essentials for survival. 

4 Now, when it gets to a point where flaps are left 

5 closed longer than the noise which apparently causes them 

6 to be closed is existent, when it gets to the point where 

7 there is no facility for a man to keep himself clean, to 

8 wash himself be fore he eats, we have moved over into the 

9 punishment area, I suggest, Your Honor, and punishment of 

10 a cruel and unusual nature, because there is no need to 

11 control a man by keeping his hands dirty when he eats a 

~ sandwich, there is no need to control a man by keeping him 

U from light and air, there is no need to control a man by 

U keeping him in filth, even if it is self-made filth. 

~ If the defendants take the p9sition that a man must be 

16 put in a cell without the normal facilities for washing 

17 and in a cell where there is no light to enable him to 

18 properly see to use the facilities, and if the man be 

19 psychotic, _perhaps, such that he would mess up his own cell 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

intentionally with bodily waste, pu~ting a man.in a cello 

that nature must carry the concomitant re~pon~_ibility to 

see that he isn v t left in his own fil-th, t'o see that he ca 

wash before he eats~ and that he ~o~s get ~ir, except wher 

the flaps must be used to keep down the noise, ~hich ap~ 

parently is their purpose. 
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1 I would characterize that . .a.s p\lni.sbment, Your Honor,· 

2 in those circumstances, because the control of the man is 

3 no longer effected by those means, except by means of 

.4 punishment as a deterrent. That kind of punishmente we 

5 submit, is unconstitutional. 

6 There has been discussion in the same line regarding 

7 food and a restricted diet. Dr. Kunkel has testified that 

8 the restricted diet contains adequate calories for human 

9 needs. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

THE COURT: 2,000. 

MR. COHLER: I think he said 2,600, I am not sure .. 

THE COURT: I thought it was 2,000. 

MR .. COHLER: Even if the caloric count is sufficient 

U in that meatloaf type cold restricted diet loaf, it ap-

~ parently is unpalatable, at least so some witnesses have 

16 testified. 

17 Now, it may be that when it leaves the kitchen it is 

18 palatable. But it may .be that it is unpalatable in the 

19 surro.undin'gs in which it must be eaten. Indeed, some 

00 witn~sses testified that they didn't e~en e~t rio~mal food 
~ . 

21 in these circumstances because of the filth and the odor 

~ and the stench and the nauseaous natu~e ol the·d•ll. 

23 Use of a restricted diet ·is denial of another privi1eg 
,~ .. ~ .. 

24 which could be called control, or, I suggest, sholfld be 

~ called punishmento I •m not pre~ared·to arg\1~ th~ use of 
~ 
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1 a restricted diet alone is unconstitutionala But use of 

2 restricted diet for punitive purposes in the arena where 

3 all other conditions as alleged are present, is part of 

.4 the totality of the unconstitutional con£inement. 

5 It was interesting for me to hear Sergeant Friedrick 

6 make the state~ent that it is sometimes necessary to de-

7 prive inmates of the ordinary essentials for survival. 

8 Before testimony was taken in this court, I didn't 
. . 

9 whether an opening statement would be called for= I 

10 drafted a very brief one. In that statement I had written, 

11 "I shall not_burden the record with elaborate statements 

12 of what we-expect the evidence to showa The plaintiff will 

13 show generally that he was confined by the defendants in 

14 what is known here as a strip cell, and that he was de-

15 prived of the ordinary essentials for survival." 

~ Sergeant Friedrick had not made that statement in our 

17 so-called informal interview. 

~ I suggest that in Laymen's language nothing comes 

19 close-r to what the law knows as cruel and unusual punish-

00 ment than depriving .a man of the or~inary esseritials for 

21 survival. 

~ In addition to the failu~e of specific testimony·on 

~ the part of the defendants and some contradictions and a 

24 _ ~eral absence of recollection of this specific period.) 

25 ""Pft.e. Court has before it the specific testimony :!;rom 
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1 plaintiff's witnesses, and plaintiff himself has testified 

2 that during the precise period in time in which he was 

3 confined he was confined for 12 ~ays. The cell was dirty 

.4 when he entered, and each o£ the plaintiff's witnesses has 

5 testified that the cell was dirty when he entered, except 

6 Mr. Porte. Mr.· Porte testified that the~e was dirt. He 

7 ·said on testimony here that there was not human bodily wast Q 

8 According to the answers to interr6gatories, Mr. Porte 

9 was in the cell the plaintiff was lateT con~ined in in the 

10 middle of May, almost two months before plaintiffis con-

11 f inement. 

12 If the Court should find that Mr. Porte was in the cell 

13 without human bodily waste, he was the only inmate who so 

L4 testified, and he would have been in that cell about two 

L5 months before the plaintiff himsE7lf was placed there .. 

L6 The plaintiff has testified that the cell in which he 

l7 was placed had the· flaps closed almost all the time, except 

~ when he persuaded Officer Nash to leave them open. And I 

L9 think. perhaps Mr. Hoagland said that he left. the door open. 

m I am not sure I have the officers corre~~-

~1 But for those few minutes, the flaps and the door were 

~ closed the wh6le time. 

!3 For the first eight days, the plaintiff testified that 
,•- . ,•'".-' _. ". ' ' ,.. '"" 

~ he had no cilothing at all--none--in the cell which he said 

~ was filled:with human excrement ~nd in whi9h he ~aid he 
( 
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3 

4 

5 
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himself vomited and he said 
4

~:~ nauseous .. 

Plaintiff, as with the other inmat.es, and as was ad-

mitted during this period of time, had no opportunity to 

wash before his mealso 

The plaintiff requested medical treatment by two lette so 

6 and a third. The first two were not responded to by Dr. 

7 Kunkel. 

8 As the plaintiff himself said, and of course it was 

9 speculation, they may have miscarried. Dr; Kunkel had no 

~ record of it either. It is not very adequate medical trea -

. l ment if the request for treatment miscarries • There is no 

.2 O·pportunity to even begin treatment, much less than see 

3 whether the treatment is adequate. 

4 Finally, on February 14th the plaintiff was seen by 

5 Dr .• Kunkel. That was three days_after the appointment of 

6 counsel in this case. At that time the plaintiff com-

7 .plained of stomach difficulties, among others, and his 

8 testimony was--and this is uncontradicted by the doctor--
... 

9 that .he received no blood test and no urine· sampling. 

0 I am not a doctor, and I don't know what is proper for 

l a physical when a man is complaining of a stomach a~lm•ftt. · 

2 But I have; always had-- Well, I better"not say ~bat. 

3 

4 

5 

Excuse me. 

Now, the,re has been some question about a, ~.)l9wer · , 

allegedly taken by the J?lai~tiff durin:g ·. th~ ~.i.IMt· h$ Wcl's: 
" 
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l confined in the strip cell or quiet cello We submit, and 

2 I think it is abundantly clear on the record, that the testi= 

3 mony of Officer Hoagland and Sergeant Friedrick is nothing 

4 but a mistaken recollection. 

5 The isolation log which was supposed to show the move-

6 ment of Mr. Jordan if he were to take a shower, reflected 

7 no shower during the per~od in question, July 9 through 

8 July 20, and it did show a shower on Saturday, July 24thQ 

9 Mr. Fitzharrisi answer to interrogatories ~tates 

W specifically with reference to Mr~ Jordan and with respect 

11 to this period of time that plaintiff had no opportunity 

~ to exercise. Sergeant Friedrick testified that you canvt 

~ take a shower without having an opportunity to exercise~ 

14 Mr. Hoagland said that part of his recollection of Mr0 

15 Jordan taking a shower at this t~me is based upon a con-

16 versation he remembers.overhearing between Sergeant 

17 Friedrick and Mr. Jordan regarding the plaintiffWs legal 

~ papers. Sergeant Fried~ick, on the other ~and, said, yesN 

19· there was such a conversation, but it took place back at 

20 the quiet cell or the strip cell. N.ow, that canut be any 

21 part of Sergean~ Hoagland's proper recollection ·if 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Sergeant Friedrick 1 s testimony is from good memo~y. 

. , .. I think the testimony shows clearly that the basic 

factor relied upon to indicate to these gentlemen in their 

testimony that it was dpring the time the plaint~ft was in 

'"R;' 
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l the strip cell is that he was~sero~6~ at the shower. The 

2. plaintiff testified, the last testimony that was heard by 

5 the Court., was that there were special circ\mlstances 

.4 through Saturday, July 24th when all inmates from the 

5 isolation, as well as the quiet or strip cells, were 

6 escorted, a practice which is not generally prevalent, 

7 according to Mr. Hoagland himself. It is very true that 

8 the plaintiff, according to the records themselvesu had a 

9 shower on that Saturday~ According to the plaintiff's 

10 testimony he must have had been escorted. 

11 I suggest that is the basis for the misunderstanding, 

12 and that there was no shower at all for the plaintiff dur-

15 ing the 12 days he was in the quiet cell or strip cell. 

14 Even if there was a shower, it would have been only on the 

15 sixth day, as I count it, or aft~r five days, as they count 

16 it. That is not very often to wash either, when there is 

17 no other way to wash. 

18 

19 

Officer Hoagland, incidentally, on surrebuttal, didn~t 

have.recollection of this period. He couldn't recall 

20 whether or not what Mr. Jordan tes.ti.fied to was accurate .. 

H on the other hand, he seemed to recall the shower very 

22 vividly the other day. 

~ Your Honor, we suggest that the ~Laintif~ 1 s case has 
!' 

24 been proven easily by a preponderauce of the evidende. It - ~~ 
~ is a long w~y from a c~ose questioti.ln •Y view. There is 
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1 an abundance of evidenc~ with a very credible line running 

2 through it and very few contradictions among those p~ople 

3 who I doubt are accustomed to testimony ih court and ~ho 

.4 were cross~examined skillfullyo 

5 There is corroboration from inconsistenc~es among the 

6 defendants' testimony itselfc There is corroboration from 

7 the records which are supposed to be kept accurately, 

8 according to State law. There is corroboration from the 

9 answers to interrogatories. And there i~ corroboration by 

10 way of admissions with respect to the changes which we 

11 heard most fully about this morning for the first time. 

12 It is true and we may take it as true, it seems from 

~ the testimony, that it was not this case which triggered a 

14 reexamination of the conditions of the institution. It 

~ was an inquiry, according to Mr. Donnelly, triggered by 

L6 another court· and passed through the highest part of the 

L7 Department of Corrections to take a look, to see what was 

LS happening. According .to Mr. Donnelly, they took a look, 

L9 saw :what· was happening, decided they had better make some 

ao changes. According to Mr. , Fitzharris; that. is. ·because the 

n court was beginning to~-

THE COURT: Is it br is it not £rue that·t~is ;da~e was 

-before the S~p~eme Co~r~ of California at one juncture? 
i 

- .... ~ .... :: 

MR. COHLER: ~ou~ Honor, the questions were put in 

terms of nthi~ .. ca~e.~ I think they may have been 1,1ngersto d .. 
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l by the ~itnesses to mean this case, No. 44786, in this 

2 court, before Your Honor, with these defendants., Perhaps 

·3 the record ought to have been made more clear in that 

4 respect. 

5 THE COURT: Well, is it or is it nottrue that the 

S petitioner undertook to exhaust his remedi~s in the State 

7 of California? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

MR. COHLER: That is true, Your Honor. The Court may 

take judicial notice--

THE COURT: 
. ~/t:o . 

wasn 9 t that a condition preeediR9 com1ng 

to this Courthouse? 

12 MR. COHLER: Yes, Your Honor. The Court may take 

~ judicial notice of the files of the Supreme Court of 

14 California to establish that, if necessary. 

15 I don 1 t think more need be said about the changes, Your 

16 Honor. It seems there was a good deal of resistance to 

17 making these changes. There were many problems in employ­

~ ing these changes. we·have heard quite a bit of testimony 

19 about how hard it is to have wat~r thrown at you, how the 

20 defendants• exhibits, the pitcher, the bowl, were ripped u · • 

H They lost many~ they had to buy more. It doesn~t seem 

22 · they are really enjoying these water pitchers, down there, 

23 ' 
and these waterbasins. It wasn't a dhange which they 

24 thought was, at first, to be such a 90od J_dea.. Mr. Fitz-

25 ~ .. 
harris isn't sure that they are goi~g to keep ~~-

It 
'• 
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1 But they made it. And it seems to be abundantly clear 

2 that it was made in· response to someone higher up in the 

3 system, and to an inquiry from a courtQ The admission is 

.4 just as strong whether it is this Court or another Court 

5 or the Director of Corrections. It is an admission that 

6 they looked arotind, found out it wasn't up to snuff, and 

7 decided they had better make some changes, which they dide 

8 As I see it, Your-Honor, the defense in this case is 

9 that it just didn't happen the way the plairitiff~s wit-

LO nesses have stated. }rsuggest to the Court that the upper 

Ll administrative personnel, the defendants in this case, are 

~2 not all that aware of what happens in their own institutio • 

. 3 Mr. Fitzharris directed the work of men for 245 hours to 

A find out what happened. This was after an inquiry had bee 

~ received from his own superiors ~o find out what had hap-

6 pened. ·This was after the Court's intention to look into 

1 the matter was clear. This was not a casual look-around$ 

8 

9 

This was, I am sure, an -attempt to find out what was hap-

pening. 

0 The answer~ were generally, "The policy is;"' and .. No 

1 information is available as to specifics." 

2 Understaf,fed and underfinanced as they may ~~eQ the ,, 

5 d·eJ.endan_!:.s are. obliged .to S-~.e that constitutional righ.ts 
.•. :- ,, ' • .,;. . ' '.. . '!'!\ 

l . a;e. not depri~ed/: if they place a man in a special cell, 

5 to see that· that cell, and the use of that cell, is JIOt 
~ 

J 
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l abused. 

2 The statements of general cleanliness and general 

3 ventilation and, "nothing went wrong or I would have 

4 remember~d it," and the six-minute change of air in the 

6 cell, even i£ the flaps were open or closed, according to 

6 the engineer~ and the fact that the air' couldn't be felt 

7 by the hand of someone holding it up to the vent. 

8 Mr. Caldwell, the officer, said that he used to stand 

9 in front of this vent to feel the air, that it was warm 

10 back there. Their ventilation- system wasn't as good in 

11 the officers' area. He felt the air coming through the 

12 ventilation shaft .. 

13 None of the inmate witnesses felt any air coming 

14 through their part of the ventilation system. 

~ Mr. DeCarli's eyes stung two_or three days after the 

18 tear gas incident. That wasn•t moved out by the ventila-

17 tion system. 

W Sergeant Fri~drick says there is a grap~vine, and I~m 

H sure there is: and that the ventilation system is a,good 

00 deal a part of the ~ra~evine, and I~m sure it i~r and that 

U the men are in the strip cells because they are agitators, 
... ,. 

22 and I'm:~ure many of them are. 

23 up that ventilation system back in the strip cell to c'ut 
24 

25 

off the srapevine. 
•.-.., 

~ 

Mr. ~oagland gave the most specific testimPPY as to 
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1 cleanliness. Mr. Hoagland got down 9n his hands and kn¢es~ 

2 with a wash bucket, brooms, mops_e the rags, the cleanser, 

3 and he even got a special ·bleach, apparently from the dis-

.4 pensary, apparently not normally supplied. These cells 

5 must have been pretty dirty to requir~ that special bleach. 
~ 

6 "'One of the-officers noticed an odor ip the area~ 

7 Officer Caldwell said the whole place stunk when he came 

8 to work, but not particularly in this area. Now, I sugges 

9 that even with the automatic flusher, and particularly 

10 before that when it was flushed even twice a watch, as it 

11 was supposed to be, and twice a day, as the testimony has 

12 been, that there was'bound to have been.some odor emanatin 

13 from the cells from commodes which were flushed that less 

14 frequently; just the law of averages. There must have bee 

15 odor back there, Your Honor, and I don't find that the 

16 statement that there was no odof very convincing as . to th 

17 state of cleanliness. 

18 I would like to turn for a moment to the question of 

H relief, if the Court please. Perhaps it is not out of 

20 
~ ' . . 

order to relate -:!b:ir an incident that .. happened to mysf:!lf 

21 riding. in a cab this; morning. The cab driver who was 

~ driving me·~elated that he· had been in an accident awhi1• 
"· ! 

23 ·back, sustai.ned some $3,500 out-of-pocket expenses, had a 

24 lawsuit for': $25,000, and that he would be del~ghted with 

25 $10,000. . --. 
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1 The Courts, in negligent actions 9 award for pain and 

2 suf£ering every day, a good deal: tort actions. 

5 The plaintiff has proven, we submit, that he was de-

.4 p rived of constitutional rights, fundamental human dignity. 

5 If damages are awarded for pain and suffering when you 

6 break a rib or twist a neck, what kind of damages repair 

7 ~ man 8 s memory? How whole can a man be made? 

8 I don't think that this is· just an_emotional_argumento 

9 I think this is a very real argument. This man ought to b 

10 ma~e whole, Your Honor. I don't'think the $25,000 claim 

ll and prayer for compensatory damages compared coincidental! 

12 with what the cab driver is claiming when he suffered 

15 $3,000 out-of-pocket, is at all unrealistic. 

14 This even happens within the prison walls. I read in 

15 the paper that Mickey Cohen got ~100,000 for being hit 

16 over the head in prison under the Civil Rights Act because 

17 he wasn•t protected well enough by the guards. 

18 It must be sure, and the Court must make sure, that 

19 the plaintiff is not subjected to this treatment again, 

20 and injunctive relief must be framed to that end·.. The 

21 enforcement of injunctive relief is not an easy matter in 
.. ; ' 

22 a case of this sort. Enforcement of ~njunctive relief 

25 ·depends upon showing a violation of tihe injunction, in 

~ essence, a trial de novo, putting a burden upon 9ounsel 

~ for .both sides, a member of the priv~te Bar and.the very 
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1 busy Attorney General's office, to insure.proper adherence 

2 to any injunction which this Court may issue. 

Even more so, it takes the courage of an inmate to 

4 come forward as Mr. Jordan did. Your Honor heard testimon 

5 of inmates who seemed inured to these conditions. Some of 

6 them didn't ev~n seem to mind going down there. This was 

7 taken as a part o£ their life. Very few men would come 

8 forward in those circumstances, aside from any fear of 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 
-·· 

20 

21 

.....______ ______ _ 

reprisals. 

The Court will remember Mr. Allison who, real -----------1. 
or \ 

I 

imagined, said that he was afraid to testify. He even l 
said he was afraid 

The plaintiff, 

knows his rights. 

' 
to tell the Court that he was afraid. I 
as stated by Dr. Hack, is a man wh0 

And he has come to this Court to have 

those rights vindicated and has ~ought reasonable relief, 

which we submit should be offered and ordered in full. 
.__-­

In awarding the plaintiff in this action, both in-

junctively and by way of damage award, the Court does more. 1 

The collatera~ effects are not to be overlooked. 

I a~ not even speaking particul~rly of the.institution 
~. 

or the prison system. 
-~ 

There is a good deal of talk these 

22 days about the absence of respect for·· law and order.· And 

~ there is a .lot of talk abciU~ people taking the law ~nto 

24 

25 

their own·hands. Inmates in institutions may be particu-

larly suspect ·to that type'of ap~roac~. They may feel tha 
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1 they can' th buckf the system.''· An order from this Court· 

2 will prove to these men that you can get relief the right 

3 way, through the channels of the law.. When those men hit 

.4 the streets again, all of society~ be rewardedo 

5 Your Honor, the plaintiff submits that his prayers be 

6 granted in full. Thank you. 

'1 MR. GRANUCCI: May it please the Court: 

8 We have been through a rather long two weeks: long for 

9 the plaintiff's very learned counsel, long for ourselves, 

10 lon~ for the defendant•, long for the Court as well. I 

11 do not intend to unduly extend these proceedings by lengthy 

12 or. prolix ·oral argument. aut there are some basic points 

13 I have to make, and I want to make them clearly and if 

14 possible, •ueeinctly. 

~ First off, I want to reriew our motion to dismiss on 

16 · the part of th• State of california and the Correctional 

17 Training Fa¢i1ity, a political •ubdivision of that State. 

~- lf tb$~* i* any o•rtai~~Y at all in this r~thar unsettled 

a •rea·ol ~ivi~ ~i9bt~ litigaeicn~ it ~· this: That neither 
~' 

.the state nor a political subtiivisioJl thereof is a proper 

The Court of 
,. 

Appeals lor t.bis Git~uit has definitvely so ruled in the 

i3 Williford ease, a ease eited by the derefidants .in their 

K . motion to dismiss .. 

Moreover, the stat. is.fi9t a prgper party ifi a habeas 
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1 corpus. proceeding.. This is clear in the case Bohm v., 

2 Alaska, Roseborough v. California, Morehead v. Californian 

3 all cases in the Court of Appeals for this Circuit~ 

.4 Consequently, this case does'n' t involve abstract 

5 political institutions, ab•tract State body, abstract con-

6 cepts: it involves flesh and blood people on both sides~ 

7 The defendants are as flesh and blood as the plaint~ff and 

8 his supporting witnesses, and alll"'--judgment the Court 

9 runs not against the State~ it runs against them. 

10 Now, the law, briefly: We must keep in mind that we 

11 are dealing with a quite narrow and yet at the same time 

12 quite elusive question of law. The plaintiff, in order to 

13 obtain any relief at all against the defendants, mtist show 

14 by a prepC?nderance of the evidence that he has been sub-

15 jected to cruel and unusual puni~hment, a violation of the 

16 8th Amendment to the· Constitution, which 8th ·Amendment is 

17 appl,ied against the States by the 14th Amendment and which 

18 is in turn effectuated against the State officers by the 

19 Feder.p.l·., ci."~il Rights Act, which is only co-extensive with 

20 constitutional rights. 

21 
··: . -

We also should keep in mind this: That in the wisdom 

22 distilled of genera~ions the law has developed that matter 

23 of prison discipline and internal procedures are, ab·sent 

~ constitutional questions, of course, reserved ~o the 

~ ment of the States. 
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1 I need not belabor the pointo Suffice it tq ~-~Y t_h~t 

2 plaintiff's argument to the contrary, procedural due pro­

S cess is entirely out of order in the prison settingo 

So we get down to the facts. But before we get to.the 

5 facts, I would remind the Court again that we are not deal-

6 ing with what is penologically the most advanced concept, 

7 we are not arguing about what is the most desirable concep u 

8 whether they are undesirable: but whether the conditions 

9 of the plaintiffWs incarceration were so extreme as to 

0 constitute cruel and unusual punishment~ This concept of 

1 cruel and unusual punishment is a limited one. 

2 A'rguments have raged back and forth 'about the desirabi -

5 ity of the death penalty. I am using this argument as an 

4 illustration solely. However- no court has ever held that 

5 capital punishment is itself cru~l and unusual. It may be 

6 undesirable, a point much debated, but not cruel and un-

7 usual, at least in the eyes of the law, at least as ap-

B plied to the 8th Amendment. 

9 .We get down to the bare bories of the case: What were 

0 the qonditions of plaintiff's ~onfi~ement from.the 9th day 

1 

2 

3 

' t 
of July,l965 up until the 20th:day of July 1965? And do 

those conditions amount to cruel and unusual punishment? 

' I suggest, Your Honor, that in determining whether 

4 those-condition~ did constitute cruel and unusual punish-

5 ment, the rule of·reasop carries a great parto 
" 

Most of th 
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1 decisions that discuss cruel .and unusual punishment dis-

2 cuss them in terms of being excessive or·disproportionate., 

3 When you refine it out, the decisions, I think 8 talk in 

4 the terms of whether the conditions imposed or the penalty 

5 imposed is reasonable in the light of the offense" 

6 So, what were the conditions of plaintiff~s confinement. 

7 were they reasonable? That is the issue here~ 

8 On the 9th day of July~ plaintiff was placed in a quie 

9 cell in o-wing at Soledad Correctional Training ~acility. 

10 We have said, and we have proven, that he was put in a 

11 clean quiet cell. Officer Nash specifically so testified. 

12 He was in that cell, he serviced it, he found it was cleanG 

13 Officer Hoagland testified to the practice that pre-

14 vailed of keeping it clean. I noted with a sense of 

15 frustrated amusement, if you wil~, counsel's argument that 

16 )Mr. Hoagland was there . with the scrub brushes and the 

17 bleach and the mops and the brooms so the cells must have 

18 been pretty dirty. Well, I think, as I will allude to 

19 later, this is an example of "You 1 re damned if you do and 

20 you' re damned· i'f you don't." You ar;:e condemned by and 

21 criticized if you leave the cells dirty: you are criticize 

22 

23 

24 

25 

if you cl~an up the cells. 1.'. 

But regardless 6f what plaintiff thinks about it~ the 
_,..,, ~' 

fact is that that ce,ll was clean .. , 

"' A second point: Jie was furnished a strong blanket 
·{· [ 
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1 instead of a conventipnal matt-ress. It looks like a barel 

2 ad•quate, if that, means of sleeping. Brit it can be 

3 folded over, contrary to what plaintiff said in his com• 

.4 plaint. It is made of canvas .. It has a blanket in it.· l 

5 has some wamrth. ~nd there is a reason why that type of 

6 facility is furnished instead of a mattress. 

7 Remember Officer Hoagland's testimony about the sad 

8 experience of his father, the inmate that tore his mattress 

9 apart, set it afire in a quiet cell and caused injury to 

W hi~self and to the senior Hoagland~ 

Ll This is a point to keep in mind with regard to the 

~ mattresses and everythihg else. I think the plaintiff 

~ demonstrated it more than anybody else, more clearly. It 

l4 is' easy to get contraband into those quiet cells, very 

L5 easy indeed. 

l6 You saw the plaintiff so adroitly throwing out the fis 

L7 1 ine. I stood over here, right about here (indicating) , 

W asked plaintiff to throw the line, and he hit_me right in 

L9 the face, just as I am sure he intended to do • 
.. - ··- ---·---

m Now, with the possibility of get_ting in contraband that 

~1 easily, is it any wonder that a strong blanket would be 

~2 ·furnished instead of a mattress? 

~ Now, flaps, getting to the testimony of flaps: The 

M policy is that we leave the flaps down. Some 9f plaintiff 9 s 

m witnesses testified that the flaps were up. Officer Nash 
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~ . testified that when he came on duty most of the time, .th~ 

2 flaps were upm Officer Caldwell testified that in the 

3 mornings, the midnignt..:.a: 00 o'clock shift, the flaps .were 

4 sometimes up, sometimes down.~ Officer Nash at first felt. 

5 a little hesitant about moving the flaps becaus.e of his 

6 inexperience$ He was, in that peculiar jargon of the 

7 plaintiff, a "fish bull.m 

8 But in any event, the flaps were there. Sometimes 

9 they were up.. And we say sometimes they were downo And 

10 I think we can believe Officer Hoagland, and we can be­

ll lieve Sergeant Friedrick about that. 

12 Is it unreasonabie to have a cell with flaps? Isn't 

13 there a co.mpelling need to prevent riots, to prevent 

14 agitation from spreading? Shouldn't officers be very care-

15 ful? And I think they were care~ul about the flaps" and 

16 I think that as far ~s the flaps goes, it shows an 

17 exercise of judgment according to the circumstanc~s that 

18 were present to the officers .. 

19 Now, the toilet: Our testimony was that the toilet 

20 was ;flushed twice per shift, six .tim.es a day. Now, that 
·~ 

21 ' doesn•t sound like the sort of thing, the sort of faci~ity 

22 that any one of us would like to have in our homes. But 

23 it is a necessity in a prison setting, as are so many· otb48tt' 

M things. Inmates flood their c•lls. It is easy to flood a 

25 cell, from the teitimc,:>ny. All you do is you take some 
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l material, perhaps. clothing·, put it in -the toilet; press 

2 the button and away we go.. And you have the beginnings of 

3 a disturbance which could turn into a riot .. 

. 4 So very properly, then, those toile,ts are not subject 

5 to the inmate'~ own control. They -weren't then, they 

6 aren't now, and they are never going to· be .. 

7 Water: Again, the plaintiff testified that he got 
• 

8 water three times a day, as much as he wanted.. The gu~rds 

9 testified that there was always a little water left overu 

10 left over in the cells so the man could drink it later or 

11 wash his hands with it·. 

12 Efftir~s to increase the availability of water have not 

13 :been entirely successful.. This is not disputed .. 
. . 

14 Only three sets of water pitchers and basin~ remain 

15 out of a do•en that were or~gina~ly ordered. Apparen~ly 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

the occupants of quiet cells don't particular~y agree or 
. . . \ 

support efforts to ameliotate the conditions of quiet cell 

confinement. 

The fact ·remain$ that plaintiff, using· some water 'from 1 

his cup and a little toilet paper couid ha~e ~~ least 
,•. ' . • 1. 

washed . hi-S hand'S. 'He never' said that he didn't have enough 

toilet paper •. · 

23 Now; . he· -lacked a·. toothb-rush.·, 'toQ. · I would like to talk 
~ ' ' •- I ,' 

24 

25 

about. t·,bi~ a. J;ittle. !:?i:t, . because t'his does' seem, when you 
• . . . ' . . . • I . . • . . ' . . • • . 

first lciok ·at···-it as-a tree man.~ that 'i·t· would be a bit 
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1 extreme ncit to give a man a toothbrush. 

,-.:.: ·.· . ' ' -··· .· 

2 

3 

4 

6 

There was testimony, however, that those too~hbr.usttE!.~ 

could be converted into weapons, and again ~e ~hoqg~t 
' . 

. ease with which the contraband can be smuggl.ed into ·a . ... ' ,;· 
. / 

. ' ·: .> -~. 

quiet cell. 

6 Now, the .fact that toothbrushes are bE7~ng furnished~ , 

7 nOW doesn It mean that it WaS ·unconstitutio'netl not tO furnis' 

8 them last July. States, after all6 are afforded a great 

9 latitude of available choiceso The question- is not whe.f,ber 
... , .. ' 

lO it is better to furnish a toothbrush than not to. furnish·,. 

ll but was it. entirely devoid of reason, entirely unf\lstifl.abl 

12 . for the defendants not to have furnished the plaintiff a 

~ toothbrush in ~uly:of 1965. 

14 There was testimony from-Sergeant Friedrick that he had 

15' seen weaporis mad.e out . of toothbrush handles 0 l submit this 

~ was the.·reason that the to6thbitishes wer~ not furbished. 

17. c'J,othing: · Ag~ain, pol.icy is to- grant clothing .. - usually 
. . . ~ . . 

18 quiet ·c¢]:..1 ·occ~pants are g;ranted cloth;i.ng. Howev_er, ·as was 

19 eli·cit.ed· from .the w'itness stand, there had been a suicide 
' . . ' . . . . 

20 " accomplishe'd. somet~me pre·vio_u~ly by the use of coveralls. 

21 De·fendants- we~e~ co.nfronted with t·hat situation. ':.P.erhaps. 
-: ' ' : ·, ' < • -· -- .,. ' • • ··-~ • ... • • - 1.. • • ,' • ' • - .- - •• - • 

22· hearin'g:':on:: -:ttf~. _·_5:£(:1~: .. '9f · saf.:ety·,· th~~ were mq;re anxious t.o 
•. . • • ~ .. - • . - - • ·, -~-' .:- ... -· .• · • - •. ·, - ·!:__ -..... • 

~;: ·-~ . 

:· •....• ;:~iii~~i~~i~f~i~~~~~:;;;;;;~:;;.a::: .. ::::~:::::i::t::py'' 
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l in connection with petiti6ner Jordan? 

2 

:; 

4 

" MR. GRANUCCI: I believe there was, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: May I ask you to enumerate them, if any" 

MR .. GRANUCCI: Mr o Clerk, may I have Plaintiff~~ 

5 Exhibit 3, the answers to interrogatories. 

6 These answers to interrogatories were admitted ~nto 

1 evidence at the motion of plaintiff. In his disciplinary 

8 file, which is appended thereto, six pages back, it is 

9 noted that on Sunday February 14, 1965, plaintiff at least 

10 made an attempt to hang himself. 

11 Now, I am in no position to argue that this was either 
' .. 

12 a legitimate suicide attempt, or what I might want ~~-dall 

13 an exhibitionist type of attempt. But the record' 1~ in 

14 the file, and it was introduced by the plaintiff .. 

15 THE COURT: That was Februar¥t 

16 MR. GRANUCCI: February of '65. 

17 Also, the taking of clothing has been used and 

18 ·as· a. c:ant;x::ol measure. I will qet to that present~y~ 

19 The.shower: I think there was a sho~er. I am co~~ 

20 :vinced of it· •. · Of· course, these are .. just :my vi.~w~ 9f_::the.: 

21 . ··evidence and my. views of the evidence are not· evi'dei.rtc'e 
~·~ --

22 th.emselv,es. 
~ .'~) ~. 

23 au:t S~rgea~.:t,'Fk~e4tipk'·al1d Officer· H~agian.d~·bof;h:·;: 

24 testif.ie .. d to ,a. silo'wer:;. ' 

25 -.1: th.{n.~.ttiat~ ::~:i.~ir.~t:.~ffrs ·~tt.empJ; .to ·cfisc;J;¢di..i< th,eir: 
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1 testimony i·s. c;t. bi.t contrivedQ ·· Offi'cer Hoagland, it will 

2 be remembered,· testif.ied: that he would have no reason to 

3 be in this area (indicat~ng) if a man were on regular 

4 corr.ftlor exercise. 

5 Now, the pl~intiff attem~ted to contradict that test~-

6 many by ~tating that there was a great disturbance around 

7 :the . time in question, people were brought in from North 

8. Facility, if I remember his testimony this morning correct! a 

9 Of course, we have Mr. Donnelly's testimony that he 

10 checked the records and he found that the only record of a 

ll major disturbance at North Facility was June 29 1965, two 

12 weeks before plaintiff was put in th~t qu~et cell. 

13 Now, I approach the next subject rather gingerly be-

U cause I am not before the Court attempting to disparage or 

15 blacken anyonevs character. Suffice it to say that the 

16 plaintiff is one of a class of inmates that is extra-

17 ordinarily difficult to control. 

18 I think Dr. Hack put it very succinctly when he 

19 described the plaintiff as a five-ton steel ball without 

20 handles. Perhaps plaintiff, by the ~recess of ·involving 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

himself in this .lit.ig.ation, by the process pf cooperating 
a' ~ - . . ''f ~ • • 

with counsel, by the proces.s of helping pl:t.E!pare .the lawsn.1it! 

maybe he has ·given himself a handle., If b.:$: has1 ·:r think 
"· 

4 we are all ha·ppy to that extentQ If he has,· then this ,. 

has served a_t; least o.ne purpose .. 
·- -~ 
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1 But the fact is that he is an extraordinar~ly or has 

2 been an extraordinarily difficult inmate. 

3 What do you do with a man like that? 

.4 I was rather taken with the ease, the almost super-

5 ficial ease, with which counsel articulated his theorl•s 

6 of punishment and control. In a sense it was artictilate, 

7 but it was inconsistent. First, quiet cells were un-

8 constitutional, then quiet cells may be all right but you 

9 have to use them carefully: you can use them for a control 

10 measure but not for a punishment measure; you can take 

11 away clothing for a control measure but not for a punish-

12 ment measure. All so easy, all so straight-forward. I 

13 suppose we all tend to think that way. 

14 Defense counsel, too, were used to finely drawn juris-

15 dictional questions, used to pre9ise questions of law; in 

16 the case of learned counsel, used to precise ~usiness 

17 documents: in the case of defense counsel, used to the 

18 precision of the rul~s on appeal and the rules regarding 

19 the rule of criminal judgment.· 

20' But when you get down inside the Adjustment Center, it 

21 just doesn't work that way~ And if there is any ~oiee 

22 should be 1 istened to, it is the voice of· Sergeant 

23 Friedrick. He said, llf;I have trouble drawing the line· he-
. . .· 

24 tween control and punishment. It· has got to be d()I1E!. ()n ,.th 

25 basis· of individual judgment, the +acts o; th~ inqfvidua1 
«: 
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1 situation, and as you see it then~~ 

2 Now, -in this same connection, much cross-examinati()Il.: - · 

3 was directed to whether a specific set of conditions would 

.4 occasion a specific response on the part of the- correc~ 

5 tional officet:~ who testified .. 

6 Is it possible, given the complexities of. human nature, 

7 given the difficulty, the compound di~ficulti~s that· con­

S front the defendants and their staff, given alsri the in-

9 experience of the defense witnesses in testifyingo is it 

10 possible for them to sit on this wi~ness stand and spell 

11 out with fine precision what they would do ih a qiven 

12 situation? It is a matter of judgmento 

13 Now, I want to say a word about a colia_teral m.et.tter, 

14 the Esparza gas incident. 

15 case at all. It was objected to,. th~ objection ·'¥i'as: o~~·i:-

16 ruled. I mean no criticism, but as the result. of_ that;. 

17 ruling we produced evidence of o~r own. 

18 Counsel dismisses it as incredibl.e,- unworthy of b:elief, 

19 as he has dismissed most of the. defense,ca~e. The'i~c~ 

20 remains that two short bursts were fired. That is,all~ 

21 

22 

23 

As little gas was used as woul~eces~ary~,~to control the --

man. 

THE COURT: ·Is ther~ any refer·ence to gas mentiohed 
... .,. ,:. ~:-' : -_ 

24 the memoranda that was received,' this m()rning? · 

25 . ' 
The memoranda::--:-· ' ., .i - ··.;'.' : . ,· ~ : .. M~_. GRANUCCI: · 
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THE COURT: The three exhibit.~~ ~y-~.(:·;.~~:~+.~f~;~-i~;,)'.fv-~: 
:t:,hat there was a specific reference .. :t<;>"-th.e., use 9-f ·gas o 

. ' . .. -- ' . '~ --.' . 
·-~_ .·.-:/>.--:.J._··_·;·_~:.: . .---'~ .... - -:~~ ... ,-~;y · .. , 

There was a ~e·fe.renc~ t·q. tq:~:a~.,z:- .. :.}.~-.-~was·· 
' •"" _, ' ! <" ',,~' •I; •.< ":::-'~ ,~• 't•:;.: .:, <>(" 

l 

2 

5 
. :o ~:J:r:::: :: :::t fact that for at le~St ~'i¥~~¥ ~r:e~1ou~ i 

6 ~·qtiir~ permi~sion~ 

7 

·s 
9 

10 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

17 

18 

19 

examination afterwaJ;(ds 0 .· ·\,..._ ' 

• ''.. • ~-: •. 1.. . . . . 

carried. out i-n the. E;k .. j;:ra~za matter e' 
- ~ r~ .... ~ , . . • ·:.. ~(~~;-·'.' .. 

· I put it up --~·o \~·ou~~.Ho'R6r: -_ Is·· it: m.ot'¢ hwnan,:'to .·use.· 
• • • .. " • .... • ~- I;> .- ' • • • 

' --~-

gas? or·. is it. more.: -~_uBVi.\~~ to >i? in ax;td ·. wre'fH~l':e_· wi_i:~rL 'a- m~h? . 
It is time.,. ·in: app~d~ach'ing this v··e.~y·~ quest.ion a 

·- . ". :._· f· . ~ ... '.:...''; . 
(#"' ·.·• 

put aside the. liorr--or_·_·st.({ty of Wo·rld war· I·. and look at_ the 
• 0 • • ~· n;. •; ,• ,;_.~ ,( 

realities~-
.-- I 

I£; .Y~~;.r··:~aAt. "to encourage- phy~ica:l W:re_st·lipg, 
.. ~·"" ' : . 

the possibilit~ ·.6£ :assault, th·~~:_:'pQ·~~ibl.l·i:ty of pe;nl'ai!.eni;;· 
·.' •• _.. "': - ·: ~ . • • ... • : •. - . • • ·• . .• --; ~ ~-.;:' • • •• 4 :!';> 

injury, the<}?~e~t:·::w:~~{ .-·t6 do {f i.s :··t.~ ,: ~~;o-1\-ib:i.t ~he .. use of 

Th<:r$~ ::def~n.aatit$. ~e-re· ca're·fu.l· .with. that t'ear gas., 
. . ,· ~ .. . .. "':. . 

: .. ~;~~,::.:.~.-.:.t~'"-. ~--.· :.·. "·. · .. _ .> ... ' r¥. 

There is nO. -doubt. a:Qout ··that at. all&_ 
. •·. • • • . ~ -: I" ' • ~ - - • • 

. ·_. -"_ ... ~ .. ·,;: .• ... ~-. :: •·· t'' '-. . .. ' 

T_her;e ·-was talk .by plaintiff that he was denied medical 
.- ·': -~ . . . . . ', \.~..... . 

tr.eatment, ·his, 'letter to Dr. Kunkel was ignorf:!d. I don 9 t. 

20 believe ·that. was Dr. Kunkel Is te'stim_ony$ Dr .. Kunkel t.esti-

21 fied he answered the letters by visiting the plai~tiffo J{e 

22 observed npthing. other than .:that -t.n~ plaintiff was in 
23 health, a condition 'which 'h:i.s examination of F~b.ruary 4 

.. -~ /" 

24 1966 confirmed. 

25 Much has been made in argument about the ·fact 'tpat · the 
·:----(" 
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1 disciplinary form on the report that Was ·made out duri~g 

2 plf:li}l.~iff ,· s confinement. in- th.ii' qp.f_et cell did not refleCt 

.3 the fact. that he was to remain- in the··cell nuntil -behavio.r 

4 w~!ran~~ ·ch~~~·~~ 
·, _,-

5 From t·his, pt~~?tiff has spun out the ·~t.heo~;Y that his 

. 6 · confi~eme.nt in t_he.~:quiet cell was without. possibility of 

7 review _by 'Mr. Don~~-:liy ·or persons at that lev·eL, 
. . '' 

8 Yet- Mr: · po-nnell'y) s ·testimony was that when he 
'. .,· ·. . " . ' ~ \ 

9: ·.the 115 fo.riris ··for h'is: signature, he always had before. hin(u 
• ' ,L, ,! 

-
10- · · or at least· availa,l::H·e to him, the inmates s cell sta:tus, 

. . ' "··-.·.· 

11 the r~~ord whic~.i~ promptly kept and promptly notic~d .6£ 
i . 

12 ~here the_ de·fendant was housed, the form 103B ~ . 
13 Now"there is something else that plaintiff attempt~~b: 

14 make out.- He does"n 1 ~ say it, but ~he inference is that. 

15 Sergeant Friedrick added to the form 1141-, the segregati·o·n 

16 record, the fact that plaintiff was to remain in the qui~t .. 

17 cell until his behavior warranted change. From that, ~e 

18 infers that th·e sergeant did that without permission ·6f 

19 

20 

21· 

22 

23· 

_- .. _ 

Mr.~ Kiepura, and from. that he infers that his 
.. 
rig~ts ~ere denied. : .- . 

Two answers to that: 
. •·. r 

Mr . Ki ep ura, ~iJ5~lf~v~. ~Ila (It ~~' .· 

of . the testimo.n:'y,<YQur-' ~o'nor~ t;e§t.'-
. .··-- ··... _,. '· ~- - - -_ '> :'" -~ .. ,. ~ :' . . ' ' ,- •. ·. .; ' . 

st~ting my ~ecollection 
/ . .. . .-1 

· fied that ordinarily as a mCl;tter of.·J?,J.:"~-qt.j.q.e',t.l'l:~ c;:el.'.l: 
... ,. ..•. 

·· 25,· .. ·:Friedrick who made the notation .. 
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1 candidly admitted he forgot to w:r:;ite it down on the .}.].46• 

2 I think that is an example of a harmless-error, to borrow 

3 a term from the judicial settingo 

_4 I think it is inappropriate because the cases hold that 

5 procedural due process doesn't apply in the prison setting. 

6 In any event, plaintiff seeks to argue that he was im~ 

7 properly kept in the quiet cell an undue length of time. 

8 However, when he was brought out after a few days~ ~he 

9 record notes that he was still vulgar and disre·spectful 
. ~ , . ~· ' 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

~7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

·.25 

before the committee, 

return him to a quiet cell until behavi.or<~lci'.t'rapte'd-·cliangeo 
. ., ' .. ··:./i';.·-·, . •- .;· ·_;_-."'. . •. >·.,_:' :· ._ .. , -: I, ' 

Sergeant Friedrick said that o~,?h~>~~:~K~~~~,C~i~ote !'<; 
went off he tried to get as ma~y--peopl~ ou~:-~f.J;he (fui~t_>: .. ~ 

' - . - - :-;:. ... . . . . . . ·.· -.' '{.,_ . ~- ,. . . - . 

cells as possible. It is an oby·ii"-us ~·~c·o_ric'l~si:oQ, '·_th.~~;,_, ·: ... 
/' "' ·· .. 

. plc:tLnt,iffY.·s release was conside;~d ?tnd :w~~ · .ri~t-,)::'arr:£e)l._- o-u.t·--
... •" ' - .' . 

:·~.--;;. :·. .:~.-~:-·~-

-becaus-e it was, s·till pr~~a-t-ure-o '· · · ,. · ·· .. -. , : ... : ::· ··._,·· ·' ,: - · .· , . 
.IIi ' ,.- •• . . «>t--· . •. .• . ·. .·· . :._. -- . : .. . . . . .... . . . . . ' 

Something else· ab_out that di's,¢;i.plifi:~f-Y :e·o~it·t_~-e';:~:e.:~r:t.-:.-·1 
•• • J • ' • ' ' • • ---· • • (·.' • ·,: • ' ·.'· ' ·; >· . . ~-., .... ,. -.· '· .. 

"'. • r 

ing , counse 1 a rgu.e s . that pl aihtH;£ 
1 ~L t.e,~,;.~;"~?f.c t~~;;~~~'·.' •.. : < 

corttradicted, .·that he Was withoUt dlotMs );6.; .e~g;jlti,~A~•'t·: 

·- ~ 

had }lj.s(.c·lot.hes o:n~.. " 
"' 

Now, 

.C?bjected 
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1 because the Court., if it is to intelligen~ly fratne: .ani~-·. 

2 junction, which I don 1 t think it should, · should· know, 'what 

3 the present conditions are. 

But to use the changes as admissions of guilt, 

5 · : _p·u~s .the defendants in an untenable position. 
. . 

6 an:i -validity at all or any merit at all6 or any legi'timat_e 

7 pqrpose at all to be served by suits brou~ht by inmates 

8:: - cha-1:1·e1.1ging, trying to collect damages from their warden 

f~ arid g~ardians, it is that by allowing such suits an improve-

10 · ment.of prison conditions will be effectuated. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20' 

21 

22 

23 

Now this proposition is a debatable one. My authority 

for that is Justice Duniway 1 s language in Willow v. Dixon, 

~hich.I have cited in the memorandum. 
\\ 

In any event, if the purpose of the Civil Rights Act 
f ~ ') 

' \ 
is to encourage change, then usi~g evidence of change a• an 

admission of guilt really defeats the purpose of the Acto 
I 
l It is self-defeating. Again you are liable if' you change l 

and you are liable if you don't chang~. 
- I 

If you change you 1 
I 

' ; 
don 1 t change you 

1 

.. 1 

brutal, sadistic. 

~d~it you are guilty in the past: if you 

are stubborn, inccorigibl~, adherinq i~ 

ways. 

Really, -~our Honor, what is the soluti.on to this 
\.> 

,c',\'1 

dilemma? Well, I think I have the solution: ... ·· The fact is 

~ that chang~ is a false issue in this case: 
... 

25 THE COURT: Counsel, P,ow could ·chang~ be ··~ :. :f~T~.~ issue 
' . -: ~ ': . .. -. . '· .':{. 
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'; l. in.··this ·case when we find it, "or, filid the cau$at,ive . 
. .. ' _ .. _.·· 

-~. re~ations~tp 

. 3 · wr·it·ing that. the. Court receive:d this::morn.ing? 

.4 

5 

it be.· immaterial? 

MR. GRANUCCI: 

. ,_. 

Very easy.~ 'You:i:<Honqr~ l;>ecaus'e 
. ' 

6,- have i-s ul t;imately a probl,em of law; 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

MRc GRAN-UCCI: · They·· were- riot spont·a.neous·, -. Yo~r· Honqr.~ ·. 
. . . .. . ' "' . - . ~- ' 

THE COURT: You .a:g.fee oh that-,?· ',, 

MRo GRANUCCI: r· wholeheart'edly agree. 

THE COURT: And a causative relationship_ or ··th~ c~us.a.-;: 

tion, if you please, must be found some place. 

MR. GRANUCCI: Quite so. 

THE COURT: Where, in your opinion, counsel, do we fin 

15 the cause and causatiori for the.~hanges? 

16 MR. GRANUCCI: The inquiry.from the State Supreme Cour 

17 Justice to Mr. McGee's office. 

18 THE COURT: And if that inquiry, in ~urn, from the 

19 Stipreme Court Justice had centered around a petition for 

00 writ of habeas corpus, and if in tu~n that petition for 

21· habeas corpus had as the plaintif:f therein the present 

22 plaintiff before the Court, then the cause and causation 
}''. 

23 would be .. the i"nstant suit, would it not? 

MR. GRANUC:CI: Yes, it woul<L But it WOl:J.ld 

2~ a false issue~ 
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THE COURT: We will take a short recess. 

(A short recess was taken.) 

MR .. GRANUCCI: May it please the Court, before we 

.4 our recess the Court posed a question to me about why the 

5 issue of change is a false issue, even conceding for argu;.. 

6· ment that a Supreme Court Justice of the California Supreme! . . . . - . I 

7 Court was interested in the case, that such ~nterest was 

8 · conveyed to the Department of Corrections in: Sacramento 

9 and eventually filtered its way down to this institution~ 

10 How can I call that a false issue? I insist that it --.:. 

11 

12 

' ~- ~.-
~----

i~, for this rea~on. What are we litigating here? Are we 
- - I 

~~tigating whether the conditions of plaintiff's confine-

13 - ment iri July 1965 was the most desirable penology, the mos~ 

14 advanced, the most practical, the most reasonable? No .. 

15 ~cit at all. We are litigating t~eir constitutionality. 

16 That is what this case is all about. 

17 Now, those conditions in July of 1965 must, as far as 

18 - ·con$titutionality is concerned, stand or fall o_n their own: 

19 me·ri ts. No amount of subsequent change could make an un..; -I 

20 constitut~onal condition constituti6nal. And 1 resp•ct~ 
·1.' I 

21 fu~ly submit to this q6urt that no ~mount of change could 
'"'/. 

22 make a constitutional condLtion unconstitutional. 

23 . E £forts. tq improve, I don't thin,k are relevant in 

24 ·cortstitutional -setting of· thi~ c·a~~~, However, the 

25 
' ' -

of' change doe.s have a:n.other interest~ng asp~c.t, 
'' •• • :"•, • ·.-. '.!t,., 
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l this: 

2 Advocates of federal intervention by w·ay of habea!,? 

3 corpus and the Civil Rights Act have often argued that as 

4 much as the federal courts dislike intervening in State 

5 affairs, it is necessary when the States fa.il to do their 

6 duty. 

7 Here we have evidence that before this case even came 

8 into a federal court there was State action involved, that 

9 it had generated an inquiry into conditions generally, an 

10 effort to change, an effort which I regretfully state to 

11 the Court has not been entirely successful. One of the 

12 important things, the water pitchers and the water jugs 

~ apparently are not working out too well. 

14 That is why I say the evidence of change is a faLse 

15 issue. Why, you know what it is~ It is like a layman 

16 commenting on a matter of law. Remember, I asked the 

17 defendants on the stand whether they conspired against the 

18 plaintiff, whether they had malice, and counsel very dili-

19 gently objected on the grounds that thi:s was a lay con-

20 · elusion on an issue of law. Well, i_t is the same thing .. 

21 It is the same thing.· 

22 Now, a word about conspiracy., The plaintiff says the 

23 defendants conspired to deprivep him .of ~~s constitutiohal 

24 rights. Plaintiff,· now, with considerable adroitne.s$ 
. . . . . . 

25 attempts to convert.; the· coJ:Ispir.acy. thepry· into~~~ ta.i;:.her 
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l refined concept of respondeat superior.. I donit thirik .it 

2 will work. I don w t think it will work at all.· There was 

3 no conspiracy here, nothing intentional, nothing malicio~s~ 

4 The respondeat superior argument, I submit 8 is quite in-

5 appropriate. 

6 Now, I want to talk about the defendants a minute, not 

7 just the defendant officials, but the guards and custod£al· 

8 people themselves, because it is they who are really on 

9 trial before this Court just as much as the officials are. 

10 It is their performance of their duties that has been 

ll called into question. 
\ 

12 Plaintiff says again that the defendant officials didn 9 t 

13 know what was going on. Well, we heard what was going on. 

14 We heard it from the lips of the custodial officers. A 

15 well intentioned attempt to substantially comply with 

16 policies in a very difficult situation. 

17 Again it is somewhat ironic that plaintiff will commen 

18 the defendants -for trying to do a very, very difficult job 

19 .and--if I donvt misquote him--actually trying to do their 

20 best, and yet at the· same time dismiss their testi'mony as 

21 unworthy of credit. 

22 I am not going to comment on.credibility of anybody, 

23 

24 

25 

Your Honor. I think the Court cail judge. that for. itself.··. 

The officers testified fully~rid frank1y ~hat was 
. . . 

favorable, what was not so favor~b_l~ o 

. .. ~·,, . 

Th~ d~fe.ndant 
~ ... 
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l officials did the same: what was favorable what was not 

2 favorable. 

3 I remember in a pretrial proceeding a remark fro:m. th~e 

4 Bench that the State of California should welcome an in-

5 quiry into prison conditions in order that the truth may 

6 be known and they may be vindicated from the charges, if 

7 that be appropriate 0 

8 I wouldn 1 t go so far as to say we welcomed this trial.Q 

9 It has been a great strain on everybody. But we did and 

10 we have put everything in that could possibly bear on the 

11 case. 

12 Now, as the Court takes the case under advisement, unde 

13 submission, I implore Your Honor to consider the position 

14 of these defendants and the custodial officers as well. 

15 It is very true that they are charged with one of the most 

16 difficult jobs that could be given to any human being, 

17 controlling the almost uncontrollable, volatile, explosive 

18 types of inmates. 

19 Now, suppose this Court grants damages •. Do you 

20 what eff·ect that wi'll have? Why, wh~t it. will mean 
. ·:. r 

U It will mean that every inmate confined in the Adjustfuen~ 

22 Center will realize that if he can provoke an incident, if 

23 he can somehow provoke the use of force, . or. if he can get 

~ himself· placed in a quiet cell, he has a good 

25 collecting money from his custodial officers. 
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l desirable situation? Is this what this C·ourt wants· to do.? 

2 I don 9 t think SOa 

3 On the other hand, con~ider the position of the de~ .. 

4 fendants. To award damages here not only undermines the 

5 prison discipline, but it has this other effect, it makes 

6 the prison administrators, it makes custodial officers 

7 leery about imposing discipline, leery about controlling 

8 volatile and violent inmates. 

9 Counsel just mentioned the Mickey Cohen decision in 

10 which Mickey Cohen was awarded $100,000 or so damages--

11 and I don't know that it was under the Civil Rights Act: 

12 I think it was under the Federal Tort Claims Act, because 

13 ironically enough the Civi~ Rights Act does not apply to 

14 the Federal Government--but in any event, Mickey Cohen was 

15 assaulted by a violent inmate anq he collected damages on 

16 the theory that the prison officials did not control the 

17 inmate .. 

18 

19 

20 

21· 

22 

23 

So again, condemned if you do control, condemned if 

you don't. 
\ . 

Please con~~der the position of ~hese defendants whe~ 

Your Honor takes under advisement the question. of damages~ 

Remember, it is not an abstract entity~ the State of 

California. It is damages against flesh and blood in-

24 dividuals. 

25 Injunctive relief: Another very difficult matter., How 
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l can we sit back, either counsel br myself, and 

2 d~e respect the Court, too, and anticipate the almost. 

5 infinite variety of difficult emergency situations w,h,ich . 

. 4 will be confronted by the defend•nts and their staff ~n 

5 the performance of their duties? It is ea~y for lea~ned 

6 counsel to brush aside emergencies, but it is the ~an o~ 

7 the spot who has to make a judgment of what is an emergenc 

8 and what isn 1 t and how much he can do without violatirig 

9 the ~ourt•s order and how much he can't do, and again on 

10 the other side the possibility that conforming convicts may 

11 be injured or killed if they guess wrong. 

12 Now, much has been made about the fact that the record-

15 keeping during this period in question was not all that it 

14 should have been, at least in the opinion of the plaintiff. 

15 And perhaps it was not as comple~e as I would have liked.it 

16 either. 

17 Keep in mind, however, that there is no constitutional 
J . ,, 

18 mandate on the defendants to keep full records. 

~ Counsel narrated a personal experience. I- narrate on~, 

20 too. 

21· I was in the hospital a couple of. years ago • One of · 

22 

25 

24 

25 

"j . 

the things that impressed itselfupop me.~as the 

records that were kept,· al1.,$orts of records. I wondered .. 
f ! ' • • 

This was going beyond 
f'' . . 

what I thought was . even adequCl._te practice.; :-All. sor-ts of 
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l charts, all sorts of checks, all sorts of records.· · Then 

·2 I realized, this is done to provide a record in 

3 is a malpractice case, in case anything is ever 

.4 they will have a lot of evidence. 

5 As a matter of law, it makes good sense. But let 1 s 

6 put that situation in prison context and see W'here it 

7 us. 

8 If Your Honor holds errors in record-keeping against 

9 us, what I think it will mean is this~ is that considerable 

10 attention will be directed in the future to keeping of 

11 records, just papers for the sake of paper, forms for the 

12 sake of forms. The record will doubtless be more accurate 

13 than the records we have here. 

14 But don't think think the time could be more produc-

15 tively spent working and counseling with inmates, personal 

16 contact, personal counseling? 

17 You know, I was struck by Mr. DeCarli's testimony here 

18 that he spent an hour and a half counseling with inmate 

19 Es.parza. And. he had spent much time o·ther than that. But 
' ·-20 one of the things that disappointed }lle, on the other hand, 

21 was the fact that Esparza said that his improvement,·· which · 
.. 

22 is admitted, had nothing to ·do with the institution: it 

23 was all to do with a lady on the o~tside. 

24 Be that as it may', the time of the sta~f . shou·ld be 

25 spent as much as poss:i,.ble in wc:>rking with ·peopJ~, arid not .;. . •. . 



532 
1 working with forms. Consider the effect of any 

2 or decree on that. 

3 Finally, we get back to where we started, t;he · que.stioJ1 

.4. of whether plaint iff's conditions of confinement in July 

5 1965 were cruel and unusual. 

6 I think that persuasive authority might be found in 

7 support of our case from the Manual of Correctional 

8 Standards. That manual is before the Courtm Copies of 

9 what I thought was the appropriate part were furnished to 

10 counsel. 

11 Now, that manual was written largely by California 

12 people, it is true. However, the Association of Correc-

13 tional Standards has on its governing Board members of 

14 federal prison systems, members of prison systems from 

15 other States and other countries. It sets out the standar s 

16 to which Mr. Fitzharris said the institution tries to con-

17 form. 

~ Quiet cells are specifically provided in that manual. 

19 .Restricted diet is specifically provided in that manual ~s 

20 a proper disciplinary device. • I'· 

21 So the conditions of confinement, the fabt of the 
( 
' 22 quiet cells, the fact of the flaps, that·is not unusual. 

. t.' " 

~ In fact, it is standard practice. 

24 without outside controls, that .is considered:standatq 

25 penological practi~e. 
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l So, insofar as there has be~n an attempt on the .part 

2 of these defendants and the officers and the staff as 

3 to conform to good penological· practice, there cannot· be 

4 said to have been cruel and unusual punishment. They have 

5 been attmpting to conform to good practice, not deviate. 

6 from it. 

7 Your Honor, I suppose when I sit down I will think of 

8 about half a dozen other things that I should have said, 

9 but I feel now I have presented in argument all of the 

10 salient features, all of the important points that the 

ll Court should remember in taking this case under submission. 

12 We have done our best to satisfy the Court as to the 

13 factual conditions as they existed. We have tried. to show 

14 the necessity and the reasonableness for these conditions. 

15 We submit this case with sat~sfaction at the showing 

16 that we have made. We also submit it with confidence in 

17 the Court to reach a just decision, a decision that will 

~ take into account the need of these defendants, the diffi-

19 culties of these defendants, the good intentions of these 

20 defendants, the dedication of :these ftefendants, the skills 

21 of these defendants. 

~ Wouldn't it be a wonderful world if there. weren't .any 

prisons? wouldntt it be a wond~rful world•ven if ther~ 
' -, ~<'! ' ,r • 

wasn t t any need for an adjustment center in. any prison? .. , 

Wouldn't it he a wonderful worl.d if there was no need to 
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l control anybody because there w.as no suc·h thing as un..;. 

2 controllable violence? 

3 Well, we are never going to see such a world, not ~n 

4: this life. When this case is over, the_defendants' job is_ 

5 going to be just as difficult tomorrow as it is today .and 

6 it was in July 6£ 1965. 

7 But we respectfully submit this case and we confidenti: 

8 submit this case and we know that the Court will issue a 

9 just decision. 

10 Thank you very much, Your Honor. 

11 MR. COHLER: If it please the Court, I had full in-

12 tention of making no response to counsel's argument. But 

13 I would like to note a few factors as rapidly as possibleo 

14 First, with respect to the ehanges, a matter which I 

15 don't think bears more argument. But I would like to note 

16 some factors in this regard. 

17 Mr. Fitzharris said this was a response to a probe 

18 regarding human rights, not mere improvement. 

19 It is suggested here I think perhaps, at least by ~m~ 

eo plication, that if the court admits _evidence of that 

21 there is a damned if you do and damned if you don't. 

22 I suggest to the contrary. If the Court. didn't .. have a· 

~ full hearing involving evidence of all nature, ther~ 

a4 wouldn't have been any change at all, improveme11t.f; 9r 

rights, whatever. It "fa~ inquiry, trigg~red in som~ 
••. ' -· , .. ·,: 'to{. -. -,_ '_, 
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l from a court, the highest court in the s'tate of Californ-ia; 

2 and then we had changes. 

3 The California Supreme Court Justices or the s~ngl~ 

4 Justice is not a layman such as a witness stating what is 

5 a conspiracy and what isn't. 

6 Reference was made to a major disturbance in North 

7 Facility at the end of June, not the end of July 1965, in 

8 connection with a shower problem. The plaintiff did not 

9 testify that there was a major disturbance of such a natur 

10 that it might be kept in special records. There was 

11 hearsay as to what the record showed through the telephone 

12 call. There was no objection to the hearsay, but the 

13 weight of what the record showed, what was looked for. 

14 All the plaintiff said was that there were people who 

15 had to be under escort from isol~tion cells, not quiet 

16 cells, through Saturday, July 24th, to take a shower. And 

17 thereinj ti the escort and the basic factor which Mr. 

18 Friedrick and Mr. Hoagland thought led to a. shower in thei 

19 zecollectioh during the quiet cell p~riod; and we contend 

20 was just nothing but a mistake. 

21 Counsel has unintentionally, I am sure~ miscon~trtied 

22 my argument to the Court with respect to control and pu::P-:- · 

23 ishment. I_ do not suggest that the line of constitutional· 

24 ity be couched in terms of control or .punishment. 

25 The Court addressed a question J;:~gc;~.r,ding .suicidal . 
... 
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1 tendenci~s of the plaintiff. The record is, ascounsel 

2 read to the Court and suggested to the Court, thatt'h,ere 

3 was an attempt of some sort by the.plaintiff upon.his own . 

. 4 life the previous February. 

5 That, however, is shown conclusively to have nothing 

6 at all to do with the nature of the plaintiff's confinement 

7 in July 1965. 

8 His clothing was taken for eight days, says the pla~n~ 

9 tiff, and was given back to him. Why given back if this 

10 was a suicide problem? There was no testimony about a 

11 

12 

suicide watch. Ther~ was testimony that the flaps were 

closed. That would preclude a suicide watch. The plaintif 

13 had his glasses, clearly weapons or potential weapons for 

14 self mutilation. Tl'e plaintiff was permitted to keep a 

15 pencil, equally useful to hurt himself if that was a prob-

16 lem. 

17 Nor has there ever been any evidence in this case, th'at 

18 I can mcall ~ that the plaintiff went around breaking up 

19 ·his cell or anything of that nature.. And not even that 

20 rationale was available for the·quiet celi continemetit. 

21 In closing counsel made rererence to open~1I'lg ·tile flood.-

22 gates to the claims o£ prisoners and, again, ~t ~a~ a 

23 damned if you do and damned i :f: you don't type of arguntent. 

)' 
Your Honor, the floodgates are open -an.d.shqul(i be open 

25 for full compensation for . any rn.an whose con~titutional 
. . . . ' . : ........ _. ....... ~:,_ ......... 
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1 rights ha~e been deprive~ 

OQ919. 

2 THE COURT: Is the matter submitted on the arguments? 

3 MR. COBLER: Yes, Your Honor. Thank you . 

. 4 MR. GRANUCCI: The matter is submitted for the ·de-

5 

6 

7 

fendants, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: I think in closing I should say a word to-

counsel representing the plaintiff as well as counsel re-

8 presenting the defendants. 

9 I have participated in these courts now for close on 

10 to 21 years. I think apart from the gravity of the situa-

11 tion confronting the Court, that I have never had a more 

12 refreshing experience than I have had in connection with 

13 the presentation of this cause. 

14 The Court, consistent with our policy and having passed 

\ 
\ 
i 

I 

15 the threshold on the motion for ~ummary judgment, and after. 

16 recognition had been given to the fact that we had to take 

17 testimony in view of the issues delineated in the 

18 the Court undertook ~o appoint counsel. 

19 In doing so, we invited Mr. Cobler to undertake the 

20 very arduous and expensive, . at least. to himself, 

21 tio~ of the plaintiff Mr. Jordan. 
. 

22 I have one recollection of the zeal aft~ devotion o£ 

23 counsel in this case that co~pares with 

24 tion. It was many, many years ago. It wa-s,,the case 
-~ . 

25. United States of America v. Grady;,Webb. It' involveCf. a 
,. ,. 
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l ba:pk robber. I appointed a Mr. 0 1 Connor, the partner· of· 

2 Harold Faulkner. We tried the case for about three ~~ek~. 

3 That case left a lasting impression upon me with respedt 

.4 to the sacrifices that lawyers make in preserving t:-he fi.ne 

5 traditions and the background and vitality that lawyers 

6 should have, particularly the trial advocateo 

7 , ri understand that Mr. Cobler has concluded the present -

8 tion of his first case in court. His attitude and h~s 

9 demeanor, his general regard for colleagues on the other 

10 side of the controversy, his respectful demeanor of wit-

11 nesses, and in singular the totality of his conduct, 

12 brought to me again the realization that the art of 

13 advocacy is still present. We should, in turn, note for 

14 the record that this young man has given unstintingly of 

15 his talents.)· 

16 The comments that I have to make for Mr. Cobler are no 

17 more or less applicable to defense counsel. Mr. Granucci 

18 and Mr. Oakes both have undertaken to provide the Court 
. 

19 with every bit of evidence that might aid the Court in the 

20 final solution of this problem. The case is n6t without 

21 difficulty, and I am deeply appreciative of .the services 
' . ~;;( 

22 t:Qey rendered to the Court. In like manner, ·the gener~l . 

23 

24 

25 

. , 
\. 

dl!corum, the general attitude of these m~n .has been a 

source of great comfort to ·this Court. 

I close the chapter in.this case with the thou9ht 
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g·. en .. tl .. e. __ men_· .. ·. have th ari. d .YOU 1. . ow rests wi . . me, 
th.e prob -e~ n . . .. · ·.··.·• · ... blem.· 

'ble to solv• that prR .. ·· .. g~ven me everything poss1 . • ·• . 

Thank you. 

the matter was submitted.) . (Whereupon 

--ooo--
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